
BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

June 03, 2024 

7:00 PM 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners June 03, 2024 

Page 2 of 3 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

Agenda 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 03, 2024; 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library - Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

Welcome & Call to Order 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

Pastor Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. 

ITEM 2. 

ITEM 3. 

ITEM 4. 

ITEM 5. 

Consideration of Agenda

Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

Presentations

A. Employee Recognition - Beverly Fonville

Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

Public Hearings 

A. Proposed FY 2024-2025 Budget - Erin Burke

B. Proposed Capital Improvement Program 2024-2029 - Erin Burke

C. Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment

ITEM 6. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. South Mills Water Association Purchase - Erin Burke

ITEM 7. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners June 03, 2024 

Page 3 of 3 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson

B. Resolution 2024-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards - Erin Burke

ITEM 8. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. ABC Board

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 9. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes

B. Budget Amendments

C. School Budget Amendments

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

E. Refunds Over $100.00

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00

G. Emergency Medical Services Agreement

H. Opioid Litigation

I. Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment

J. Set Public Hearing - Consideration of Establishing a Moratorium

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 11. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report

B. Library Report

ITEM 13. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 14. Adjourn 

Reconvene Board of Equalization & Review 

Adjourn Board of Equalization & Review 



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Presentations 

Item Number: 3.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Beverly Fonville, 

Human Resources 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Employee Recognition 

Attachments: 

Summary: 

Staff that have reached milestone employment anniversaries will be recognized with service 

pins.  

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Public Hearings 

Item Number: 5.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

Finance 

Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

Item Title   Proposed 2024-2025 Budget 

Attachments: FY 2024-25 Budget MessageFINAL (PDF) 

24-25 BUDGET ORDINANCE (DOCX) 

Schedule of Fees 2024-2025 (XLSX) 

24-25 schedule of board adjustments (DOCX) 

Summary: The annual budget process requires a public hearing to allow an opportunity 

for public input on the next fiscal year's budget. Attached documents include the Budget 

Message, Schedule of Board Adjustments and Budget Ordinance. The County Fee 

Schedule is also included to be adopted with the Budget Ordinance.  

Recommendation: 

Approve attached FY 2024-2025 Budget Ordinance along with the Schedule of Fees. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 5



FY 2024-2025 BUDGET MESSAGE 
May 17, 2024 

To the Camden County Board of Commissioners: 

Pursuant to my duties as the County Manager and Budget Officer I am pleased to present for your consideration the proposed budget for fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2024. This budget has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of General Statute 159-11, the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. In accordance with the Local Government and Fiscal Control Act, all funds have been balanced using a combination of 
anticipated revenues and existing fund balance monies. Notice of the proposed budget will be duly posted and shared with the media. A public 
hearing is set for June 3, 2024. 

BACKGROUND 
This budget process began during the budgeting process last year with discussions of staffing and benefits. The Board of Commissioners prioritized 
spending and addressed some needs in the FY23/24 budget and the remainder of those needs in this budget proposal. Mid-year budget reviews were 
conducted in January 2024 to help project remaining expenditures for the year and forecast needs for the coming budget year. The work began in 
earnest with the annual retreat in February. The guidance received at the retreat translated to proposals presented at the subsequent three work 
sessions in April and May. Staff has worked diligently during this time period to track down cost increases and obtain cost estimates for capital 
purchases. 

Previous budgets have been very conservative in spending. While this has allowed the fund balance to grow, this has also been at the expense of 
staffing and equipment purchases. Camden did see some slowing across most fronts during the Pandemic but, there was no stoppage or reversal of 
growth. Previously approved residential and commercial growth will continue to influence the needs of the County for many years to come. This 
growth makes it critical to continue to grow services to meet the demand.  

The approval of the State Budget in September 2023 brought the largest single allocation of state grant funds Camden County has ever received. This 
included monies for water & sewer infrastructure, purchase of patrol vehicles for the Sheriff’s Office, and purchase of three ambulances, for a total of 
$11,008,784.00.  

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 2

02
4-

25
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
es

sa
g

eF
IN

A
L

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



RECOMMENDED BUDGET 
The FY 2024-2025 recommended budget totals $31,510,998.99 for all County operations. The General Fund is $19,993,238.00 of that total. 

Revenues 
The proposed budget was crafted with no change in the ad valorem tax. The proposed budget has a tax rate of $.74 per $100.00 of valuation. This is 
possible due to the increase in property values during the 2023 revaluation period. This rate is intended to be sensitive to the cost burden of the tax 
payers while recognizing the needs of staffing, equipment replacement, and general costs increases. There is a $5.00 increase proposed for the solid 
waste fee.  

The projected revenues for FY 2024-2025 are as follows: 

Revenue Source Projection 
Ad Valorem  $9,509,933.00 
School Reserve Fund  $2,922,514.00 
Special Revenue Fund  $1,111,352.00 
Vehicle Tax  $974,904.00 
Franchise Tax  $740,000.00 
Local Sales Tax Option  $900,000.00 
Article 40  $425,000.00 
Solid Waste Fee  $320,000.00 
Article 42  $250,000.00 
Medicaid Hold Harmless  $400,000.00 

Expenditures 
Compared to the FY 2023-24 General Fund budget of $18,320,894.00, the FY2024-25 budget proposes $19,993,238.00 which represents an 
increase of $1,672,344. The FY2024-25 proposed general fund budget is balanced with $2,960,637.00 in fund balance to finance County 
operational expenses. The FY2023-24 proposed general fund budget was balanced with $2,935,211.00 in fund balance to finance County 
operational expenses.  

The proposed budget is intended to support the necessary staffing and services to meet the expectations of the citizens of Camden County while 
anticipating future needs and projects. Of note is the impending introduction of County operated Emergency Medical Services. As this department is 
brought on line, there will be an increased need for staffing and resources, as well as the ability to recoup some costs through billing which is 
currently all held by Pasquotank County.  

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 2

02
4-

25
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
es

sa
g

eF
IN

A
L

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



Departmental Budgets 
The proposed budget includes two new Buildings and Grounds positions, a shared Veteran’s Services Officer (VSO) position, and a shared 
horticultural specialist position. The proposal includes the purchase of two vehicles for the Sheriff’s Office to replace high mileage administration 
vehicles. The proposed budget also reflects pay study adjustments and a 6% increase in health insurance costs; as well as a 17% increase in 
property and liability and 13% increase in workers comp insurance. 

Below is a list of some of the major departmental expenditures proposed for FY2024-25. 

Department Proposed Budget 
County Administration $288,420.00 
Debt Service $1,088,167.00 
Economic Development $56,350.00 
Elections $203,557.00 
EMS $402,875.00 
Extension $242,848.00 
Finance $318,108.00 
Governing Body $163,531.00 
JCPC $84,140.00 
Legal $50,000.00 
Library $286,963.00 
Museum $32,196.00 
Non-Departmental $419,460.00 
Parks & Recreation $489,624.00 
Personnel $144,375.00 
Planning/Inspections $684,286.00 
Public Works/Buildings & 
Grounds 

$906,247.00  

Register of Deeds $336,684.00 
Senior Center $198,732.00 
Sheriff & SRO $3,668,932.00 
Soil & Water Conservation $143,426.00 
Tax $613,673.00 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 2

02
4-

25
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
es

sa
g

eF
IN

A
L

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



Special Appropriations 
The proposed budget includes $7,957,862.00 in special appropriations. Of that total, $4,031,000.00 is associated with school funding. The Board of 
Commissioners committed to an appropriation amount for operating and capital expenses in a graduated plan during the previous budgeting process. 
The request from the schools exceeded this projected amount. Given the increase in costs for all operating expenses, the recommended appropriation 
for the current operating expenses is $3,400,000.00 with an additional $631,000.00 for capital expenses to allow for the construction of new 
bathrooms at the high school softball fields.  Appropriations for contracted EMS service increased $61,621.00 to $710,266.00 in the proposed budget 
with Communications appropriations increasing as well. The appropriation of $566,708.00 was made to the sewer department to balance the budget. 
This is not something the County should have to continue doing and staff intends to conduct a rate study in FY2024-25. 

Requesting Entity Proposed Appropriation 
CCPS Current $3,400,000.00 
Pasquotank Camden EMS $710,266.00 
DSS $861,218.00 
School Reserve Fund $631,000.00 
Central Communications $437,725.00 
Court House/Shiloh Fire $391,100.00 
Jail Operation $397,369.00 
South Mills Fire $253,334.00 
Sewer $566,708.00 
Forestry $102,511.00 
4H Ins $53,004.00 
COA $49,500.00 
Emergency Management $35,508.00 
Revaluation Fund $30,000.00 
Albemarle Tideland Retirement $10,500.00 
Grant Match $10,000.00 
Albemarle Commission $7,569.00 
Hopeline $3,500.00 
Food Pantry $3,000.00 
Albemarle Food Bank $2,500.00 
MLKing $800.00 
RC&D $800.00 
Total $710,266.00 

$7,765,587.00 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 2

02
4-

25
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
es

sa
g

eF
IN

A
L

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



Other Funds 
The county continues to pursue reimbursements through the FEMA hazard mitigation fund from expenditures made in the wake of Hurricane Matthew 
(September 2016). To date we have received $567,054.00 but we are still due approximately $473,119.64. Staff anticipates receiving this balance in 
FY2024-25. 

The county should continue to focus on the needs of water production and waste water treatment. The Board engaged Timmons Group for planning services 
for wastewater, particularly in the South Mills service area. This contract will outline the entire permitting, design, and construction process and provide an 
estimate of overall project cost and schedule. Staff anticipates the need for a new Waste Water Treatment Plant in the immediate future.  

FY 2023-2024 saw the completion of construction of a new well site using ARPA funds. Staff is now investigating the construction of a new 1million 
gallon clear well at the water plant. A portion of the state grant funds will be used for the planning, design, and construction of this project.  

The Economic Development Projects fund and property in the associated Commerce Park will be wrapping up in the 2024-2025 fiscal year. There are two 
properties in the commerce park left to sell and interest has continued to increase.  

The total of needs-based grant funding received for the construction of the new Camden County High School, is $50,012,600.00, and the county is pursuing 
an additional $12,000,000.00 in needs-based funding with appropriations anticipated in the spring of 2024. These funds in addition to those being collected 
from the 2020 bond referendum will lead to the construction of a new state-of-the-art high school and early college campus. The final portions of planning 
should be completed in FY 2023-2024, with construction beginning in late 2024.  

SUMMARY 
The proposed FY2024-2025 budget reflects the renewed commitment of the County to ensure employees are fairly and properly compensated. The budget 
addresses salaries across all departments following the results of a competitive salary analysis. The budget also commits, once again, to ensuring the 
staffing and tools are available to employees in order to adequately meet the needs of County residents and visitors.  

Prices and inflation appear to be stabilizing but there is not an anticipated return to pre-pandemic prices. These increases are reflected in budgets associated 
with fuel, vehicles, vehicle maintenance, chemical costs for the Water Plant, and general service purchases. The projected numbers are conservative, but 
should cover the anticipated increases.  

The County must remain conscientious of the growth pressures in the region. This budget and the associated Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) place a heavy 
emphasis on anticipated services and infrastructure. The grant funding from the State coupled with previous work on utilities planning have put the County 
in a good position to begin concerted work on construction of new infrastructure. However, the County must remain diligent to not allow growth to outpace 
the ability to maintain existing services while expanding to meet the needs of new development. The County will embark on a Comprehensive Plan update 
in the 2024-2025 budget year. The results of this planning process, with proper public participation, will pave the path for Camden County’s future.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Erin Burke, County Manager 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
 2

02
4-

25
 B

u
d

g
et

 M
es

sa
g

eF
IN

A
L

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 1 

Ordinance No. 2024-06-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF  

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 

CAMDEN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA,  

RELATING TO THE FY 2024 – 2025 BUDGET 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF CAMDEN 

COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA: 

ARTICLE I. BUDGET ORDINANCE 

This Budget Ordinance per G.S. 159-13 hereby incorporates, in its entirety, this 

Budget for the County of Camden for FY 2024-2025, adopted by the Board of 

Commissioners on June 3, 2024. Said Ordinance may hereafter be referred to as the 

“Budget Ordinance”. The levy of the county-wide Tax Rate(s) and Fees affecting any and 

all county managed Funds will accompany and be adopted simultaneously with this Budget 

Ordinance unless amended per G.S. 159-15. 

ARTICLE II. GENERAL FUND 

SECTION 1 – Appropriations: The following amounts are hereby 

appropriated in the General Fund for the operation of county government and its activities 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025 in accordance with the 

Budget Ordinance and the chart of accounts heretofore established for this county. 

Governing Body ............................................................................... $163,531 

County Administration....................................................................... 288,420 

Elections ............................................................................................. 203,557 

Finance...................................................................... ......................... 318,108 

 Personnel ............................................................................................ 144,375 

Tax Supervisor ................................................................................... 613,673 

 Legals ................................................................................................... 50,000 

Register of Deeds ............................................................................... 336,684 

Planning ............................................................................................. 363,409 

Inspections ......................................................................................... 320,877 

Economic Development Commission.................................................. 56,350

Building & Grounds ........................................................................... 759,604 

Sheriff ............................................................................................. 3,316,333 

School Resource Officer (SRO)......................................................... 352,599 

Jury Commission ...................................................................................... 538 

Court Facilities ..................................................................................... 35,804 

Public Works Administration ............................................................ 146,643 

Traffic .................................................................................................... 6,600 

Solid Waste ........................................................................................ 984,700 

Public Health ...................................................................................... 145,140 

Extension............................................................................................ 242,848 

County Public Library........................................................................ 286,963 

Parks & Recreation ............................................................................ 489,624 

Museum………………………………………………………………32,196 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 2 

Emergency Medical Services…………………………………….…402,875 

DDJP (JCPC) ....................................................................................... 84,140 

Senior Center ..................................................................................... 198,732 

Non-Departmental.............................................................................. 419,460 

Soil/Water Conservation .................................................................... 143,426 

Capital Outlay/Debt Service ........................................................... 1,088,167 

Special Appropriations: 

Albemarle Commission ............................................................. 7,569 

EMS ....................................................................................... 710,266 

Conservation/Forestry ............................................................ 102,511 

RC&D ........................................................................................... 750 

Central Communications ....................................................... 437,725 

Emergency Management ......................................................... 35,508 

S. Camden Water & Sewer .................................................... 566,708 

Special Funding ............................................................................ 800 

CH&S Fire Commission Four Cents ..................................... 391,100 

South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents ............................. 253,334 

Social Services ....................................................................... 861,218 

Schools – Contribution to Capital Reserve ............................ 631,000 

Schools – Current Expense ................................................. 3,400,000  

Albemarle Hopeline ................................................................... 3,500 

College of the Albemarle ......................................................... 49,500 

Revaluation Fund…………………………………………..…30,000 

Camden Food Pantry.................................................................. 3,000 

Albemarle Food Bank………………………………………….2,500 

Alb. Dist. Jail Operations ....................................................... 397,369 

Grant Match ............................................................................. 10,000 

4-H Insurance ........................................................................... 53,004 

Albemarle Tidelands Retiree…………………………………10,500 

Contingency ......................................................................................... 40,000 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $19,993,238 

SECTION 2 – Revenues:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be 

available in the General Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 

30, 2025. 

Ad Valorem and Vehicle Taxes: 

Budget Year .................................................................... $10,484,837 

Prior Years Summary ............................................................. 288,100 

Penalties and Interest ............................................................... 40,000 

House Bill 1779 ................................................................................ 0 

Other Taxes and Licenses: 

State 1 cent Sales Tax ............................................................ 900,000 

Local Sales Tax - Art. 40  ....................................................... 425,000 

Local Sales Tax - Art. 42  ....................................................... 250,000 

Local Sales Tax – Art. 44………………………………….....….100 

Unrestricted Intergovernmental:

ABC Profits .............................................................................. 36,000 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 3 

Refuge Revenue Sharing............................................................ 8,500 

Utilities Franchise Fees .......................................................... 700,000 

Medicaid Hold Harmless ....................................................... 400,000 

Restricted Intergovernmental: 

State Grants – JJDP .................................................................. 64,812 

Soil/Water Funds ..................................................................... 25,000 

Capital Reserve & Transfer Tax for Capital Debt Service .... 571,052 

Court Facilities Fees ................................................................ 25,000 

Alb. Comm. Nutrition Site ......................................................... 3,500 

School Resource Officer ........................................................ 161,850 

School Capital Reserve Fund for School Debt Service ...... 1,429,100 

Senior Center Grants ................................................................ 11,800 

Fees and Permits: 

Register of Deeds Fees........................................................... 210,700     

Building Permits and Planning Fees ...................................... 157,000 

Land Use Fees ............................................................................ 9,000 

Leased Property ....................................................................... 50,000 

Tire Disposal Dist .................................................................... 16,000 

White Goods Disposal Dist ........................................................ 4,500 

Recyclables .............................................................................. 25,000 

Disposables Tax Distribution ..................................................... 7,000 

Solid Waste Fee ..................................................................... 320,000 

Cable Franchise Fee ................................................................. 40,000 

Gun Permit Fees ....................................................................... 15,000 

Golf Cart Fees ............................................................................... 300 

Pet/Privilege Licenses ................................................................... 350 

5 Cents Per Bottle Fees .............................................................. 6,000 

Extension Fees ........................................................................... 2,300 

Library Fees ............................................................................... 1,200 

Recreation Fees ........................................................................ 20,000 

Senior Center Participation Fees ................................................ 1,100 

Sales and Services: 

Jail Fees........................................................... ........................... 4,000 

Sheriff’s Office Fees ................................................................ 20,000 

Sale of Fixed Assets ................................................................. 20,000 

Fines & Forfeitures .................................................................. 75,000 

911 Fees for GIS ........................................................................... 500 

Other: 

Sheriff’s Office Grants & Donations ......................................... 3,000 

Interest...................................................................................... 50,000 

Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 80,000 

Camden Heritage Festival  ....................................................... 10,000 

LESO Revenues………………………………………………10,000 

Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund………………50,000 

Appropriated Fund Balance ................................................ 2,960,637 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND $19,993,238 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 4 

ARTICLE III. SOUTH CAMDEN WATER/SEWER DISTRICT FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Camden Water/Sewer 

District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

R/O Plant Operation Expenses............................................... 771,474 

Waste Water Operation Expenses .......................................... 603,488

Distribution Expenses ............................................................ 911,418 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 329,492 

   $2,615,872 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South Camden 

Water/Sewer District Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 

2025. 

Sale of Water....................................................................... 1,440,000 

Sewer Fees ............................................................................. 160,000 

Connection Fees ....................................................................... 60,000 

Miscellaneous .......................................................................... 35,350 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 150,000 

Capital Reserve Fund ............................................................. 203,314 

Interest……………………………………………………………500 

General Fund Contribution .................................................... 566,708 

      $2,615,872 

ARTICLE IV. WATER/SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the System Development Fee 

Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of collecting funds from new construction projects 

which will have an impact on the infrastructure of Camden County and establishing 

Membrane Reserve for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Fund Balance Reserve.............................................................. 54,250 

Membrane Reserve .................................................................. 20,250 

$74,500 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the System 

Development Fee Capital Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and 

ending June 30, 2025. 

System Development Fees ....................................................... 31,000 

Interest........................................................................................ 3,000 

R/O Upgrade………………………………………...…….….40,500 

$74,500 

ARTICLE V. COURTHOUSE & SHILOH FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Courthouse and Shiloh Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 5 

General Expenses ................................................................... 405,875 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 100,000 

$505,875 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Courthouse and 

Shiloh Fire Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 

30, 2025. 

Fire Tax .................................................................................... 97,775 

4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 391,100 

Leased Property ....................................................................... 12,000 

Interest Earnings ........................................................................ 5,000 

$505,875 

ARTICLE VI. SOUTH MILLS FIRE COMMISSION FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the South Mills Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

General Expenses ................................................................... 207,168 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 113,000 

$320,168 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the South Mills Fire 

Commission Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Fire Tax .................................................................................... 63,334 

4 Cent County Match ............................................................. 253,334 

Interest........................................................................................ 3,500 

$320,168 

ARTICLE VII. SOCIAL SERVICES 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Social Services Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Public Assistance ................................................................... 206,176 

Administrative Expenses .................................................... 1,435,287 

$1,641,463 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Social Services 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

County Appropriations........................................................... 860,718 

State/Federal Funds ................................................................ 780,745 

 $1,641,463 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 6 

ARTICLE VIII. JOYCE CREEK DRAINAGE PROJECT FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Joyce Creek Drainage 

Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Projects & Expenses ............................................ $44,160 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Joyce Creek 

Drainage Project Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Improvement Fee ................................................... 41,660 

Miscellaneous ............................................................................ 2,500 

$44,160 

ARTICLE IX. REVALUATION RESERVE FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Revaluation Reserve Fund 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Reserved for Revaluation Expenses....................................... $30,500 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Revaluation 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Fund Balance Appropriated ..................................................... 30,000 

Interest........................................................................................... 500 

$30,500   

ARTICLE X. CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Capital Reserve Fund for the 

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 571,052 

USDA Debt Reserve .............................................................. 540,300 

$1,111,352   

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Capital Reserve 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Land Transfer Tax Collections .............................................. 750,000 

Investment Earnings................................................................. 15,000 

General Fund Contribution………………………………….125,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ................................................... 221,352 

$1,111,352 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 7 

ARTICLE XI. SCHOOL CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the School Capital Reserve Fund 

for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Debt Service ........................................................................... 572,000 

Fund Reserves ..................................................................... 1,343,414 

School Capital Outlay………………..……………………...857,100 

Camden Plantation Funds for Capital Outlay ........................ 150,000 

          $2,922,514 

It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the School Capital 

Reserve Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025.  

Local Option & Restricted Sales Tax ................................. 1,125,000 

Investment Earnings................................................................. 15,000 

New High School Debt Service Revenue………………....1,632,514 

Camden Plantation ................................................................. 150,000 

$2,922,514 

ARTICLE XII.     DISMAL SWAMP VISITOR CENTER FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp Visitor 

Center Fund for the purpose of operating the Center with funds received from NCDOT for 

the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Center Operating Expenses .................................................. $189,987 

DOT Funds............................................................................. 160,000 

Gift Shop Contribution ............................................................ 20,193 

Tourism Authority Contribution……………………………….2,342 

Fund Balance Appropriated……………………………………7,452 

$189,987 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Dismal Swamp Gift Shop 

Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Gift Shop Revenues ............................................................... $44,843 

Gift Shop Expenses ................................................................ $44,843 

ARTICLE XIII.  FEREBEE COURTHOUSE TRUST FUND 

For purposes of summary only, the following amounts are hereby appropriated in 

the Nancy M. & H. C. Ferebee, III Courthouse Trust for the restoration of the 1847 Camden 

County Courthouse for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Fund Reserves .......................................................................... $1,530 

Trust Fund Balance .................................................................. $1,530 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 8 

ARTICLE XIV.   REGISTER OF DEEDS AUTOMATION ENHANCEMENT 

AND PRESERVATION FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Register of Deeds 

Automation Enhancement and Preservation Fund for the purpose of funding for computer 

and imaging technology for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 

2025. 

Technology .............................................................................. $6,550 

Register of Deeds Technology Funds ........................................ 5,000 

Interest............................................................................................. 20 

Fund Balance…………………………………………………..1,530 

$6,550 

ARTICLE XV. CODE ENFORCEMENT REVOLVING FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Code Enforcement 

Revolving Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Demolition Expenses ............................................................. $60,000 

Fee Collection ............................................................................ 3,000 

Interest……………………………………………….…………1,000 

Fund Balance Appropriated ....................................................  56,000 

$60,000 

ARTICLE XVI. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT UTILITY FUNDS 

At the May 5, 2014 Board of Commissioners meeting Ordinance No.  2014-05-01 

was approved.  This Ordinance established the South Mills Watershed, the Sawyer’s Creek 

Watershed, the North River Watershed and the Shiloh Watershed and the parcel fee rates 

relating to each watershed.  Any changes to the fee schedule will be adopted simultaneously 

with this budget ordinance. The billing and collection will be in the same manner as 

property taxes. 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs designed 

to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the South Mills Watershed Fund 

(Fund 36) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $14,125 

Estimated Revenue................................................................. $14,125 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs designed 

to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Sawyer’s Creek Watershed Fund 

(Fund 37) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Expenses & Reserve ............................................ $20,050 

Estimated Revenue................................................................. $20,050 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 9 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the North River 

Watershed Fund (Fund 38) for the fiscal year July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $13,885 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $13,885 

The following estimated revenues will be available for funding the programs 

designed to protect and manage water quality and quantity in the Shiloh Watershed Fund 

(Fund 39) for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Watershed Expenses .............................................................. $14,279 

Estimated Interest & Fees Collected ...................................... $14,279 

ARTICLE XVII. TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tourism Development 

Authority budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

General Expenses ..................................................................... 34,594 

Dismal Swamp Visitor Center ................................................... 2,342 

$36,936 

Donations ................................................................................... 1,000 

Occupancy Tax Collections ..................................................... 21,000 

Interest Earnings ........................................................................ 1,000 

Appropriated Fund Balance ..................................................... 13,936 

$36,936 

ARTICLE XVIII. TAX PENALTIES SCHOOL FUND 

The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the Tax Penalties School Fund 

budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

School Current Expense ........................................................... $8,100 

It is estimate that the following revenues will be available in the Tax Penalties 

School Fund for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

Tax Penalties .............................................................................. 3,000 

Interest on Investments ................................................................. 250 

Fund Balance Appropriated ....................................................... 4,850 

$8,100 

ARTICLE XIX. SCHOOL APPROPRIATIONS 

SECTION 1 – The appropriations to the Board of Education, first, shall be made 

from any such funds which are dedicated to the use of the schools, and secondly, shall be 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 10 

made from the general county fund revenues to the extent necessary to meet the approved 

appropriation. 

SECTION 2 – For purposes of summary only as the actual figures are contained 

in the Budget Ordinance, the total appropriation for Current Expense is $3,400,000 and for 

Capital Expense is $631,000. 

SECTION 3 – Except as otherwise provided in this Budget Ordinance, this Budget 

Ordinance hereby incorporates by reference in its entirety the “PROPOSED BUDGET OF 

THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

BEGINNING JULY 1, 2024 and ENDING JUNE 30, 2025” as presented to the Board of 

Commissioners, and all language in said Proposed Budget is incorporated into this 

Ordinance as if it were included within the body of this Ordinance.  Said Proposed Budget 

may hereafter be referred to as the “School Budget”. The county budget does not include 

any special appropriation for the supplement for teachers’ salaries.  This will have to be 

included in the school budget. 

ARTICLE XX. TAX LEVY 

SECTION 1 – There is hereby levied at the rate of seventy-four cents (74 cents) 

per One Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 

2024, for the purpose of raising the revenue listed in the General Fund, Article II., 

Section 2, of this Ordinance. 

Ten cents (10 cents) of the seventy-four cents (74 cents) is allocated for the debt 

service of the new high school as approved in the 2020 referendum. This shall be applied 

to the additional debt service incurred for the financing of $30M over 30 years. 

SECTION 2 – There is hereby levied at the rate of four cents (4 cents) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024, for the 

purpose of raising the revenue listed in the General Fund, Article II., Section 2, of this 

Ordinance to equal the expenditures listed as CH&S Fire Commission Four Cents and 

South Mills Fire Commission Four Cents in the General Fund, Article II, Section 1, of this 

Ordinance. 

SECTION 3 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 1 and 2 above is based upon a 

total valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $1,683,961,178 and an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-four percent (95.550%) for real property and ninety-seven percent 

(96.840%) for vehicles. 

SECTION 4 – There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of one cent (1 cent) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for the taxes as of January 1, 2024, 

located within the South Mills Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising the revenue 

listed in the South Mills Fire Commission Fund, Article V., of this Ordinance. 

SECTION 5 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 4 above is based upon a total 

valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $662,029,741 with an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-four percent (95.550%) for real property and ninety-seven percent 

(96.840%) for vehicles. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 11 

SECTION 6 – There is hereby levied at the rate of one cent (1 cent) per One 

Hundred Dollar ($100) valuation of property listed for taxes as of January 1, 2024, located 

within the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Protection District for the purpose of raising the revenue 

listed in the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire Commission Fund, Article IV, of the Ordinance. 

SECTION 7 – The rate of tax as shown in Section 6 above is based upon a total 

valuation of property for the purpose of taxation of $1,021,931,437 and an estimated 

collection rate of ninety-four percent (95.550%) for real property and ninety-seven 

percent (96.840%) for vehicles. 

ARTICLE XXI. OTHER PROVISIONS 

SECTION 1 – The Camden County Budget Officer is hereby authorized to transfer 

appropriations within a fund as contained herein under the following conditions: 

(a) They may transfer amounts between objects of expenditure within a

department except salary amounts without limitations.

(b) They may transfer amounts up to ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) between

departments of the same fund with an official report on such transfers at the

next regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners.

(c) They may not transfer any amounts between funds or from any contingency

appropriation within any fund.

(d) They will assign legal costs to departments based upon the legal issue

involved.

(e) They are authorized to approve expenditures up to ten thousand dollars

($10,000.00).

(f) They may approve acceptance and expenditure of emergency funding from

state or federal sources (i.e. LIEAP) up to ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00)

with an official report on such funding at the next regular meeting of the

Board of Commissioners.

SECTION 2 - The Budget Officer and Finance Officer are hereby directed to make 

any changes in the budget or fiscal practices that are required by the Local Government 

Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

(a) As provided by G.S. 159-25(b), the Board has authorized dual electronic

signatures for each check or draft that is made on County funds. The

signatures on the County accounts have been approved by the Board of

Commissioners.

(b) All legal outstanding encumbrances at June 30, 2024 are hereby carried

forward and re-appropriated as an amendment to the budget for the fiscal

year beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025.

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 12 

(c) The Board authorizes one principal account as the central depository for

funds received by the Finance Director. Other accounts authorized by the

Board can be used for special purposes such as the enterprise fund and

various trust accounts. Current accounting techniques shall be used to

assure that all funds will be properly accounted for in the financial records

of the County.

(d) Amendments to this Budget Ordinance and any accompanying fee schedule,

taxes or appropriations are allowed as provided herein or by board approval

in accordance with G.S. 159-15.

SECTION 3 - The Budget Officer and Finance Officer are hereby authorized to 

enter into contracts/agreements, within funds included in the Budget Ordinance or other 

actions authorized by the Board of Commissioners for the following purposes:  

1. Lease of routine business equipment;

2. Consultant, professional, or maintenance service agreements;

3. Purchase of supplies, materials, or equipment where formal bids are not

required by law;

4. Applications for and agreements for the acceptance of grant funds from

Federal, State, public, private and non-profit organizations’ sources, and

other funds from other government units, for services to be rendered which

have been approved by the Board of Commissioners;

5. Construction and repair projects within the budget limits or as approved by

the Board of Commissioners;

6. Liability, health, life, disability, casualty, property or other insurance or

performance bonds;

7. Other administrative contracts which include agreements approved by the

Board of Commissioners.

All other contracts must be approved by the Board of Commissioners and signed 

by the Chairman of the Board. No other employees or officials may sign contracts on behalf 

of the County unless duly appointed to do so by the Board of Commissioners. 

SECTION 4 - County funded agencies are required to submit an audit or other 

detailed financial reports to the County Finance Officer each year.  Approved payments 

may be delayed pending receipt of financial information. 

SECTION 5 -It is the policy of Camden County to not absorb any reduction in 

State or Federal grant funds. Any decrease shall be absorbed in the budget of the agency 

or department receiving funding by reducing personnel or department expenditures to stay 

within the County appropriations as approved. 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025 Budget Page 13 

SECTION 6 -Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Clerk to 

the Board, the Budget Officer, Finance Director, and the Tax Administrator for direction 

in the carrying out of their duties. 

A public hearing on this Budget Ordinance was held on June 3, 2024. 

This Budget Ordinance was adopted on the 3rd day of June, 2024 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

______________________________________ 

Ross Munro, Chair 

______________________________________ 

Troy Leary, Vice-Chair 

ATTEST: 

______________________________            ______________________________ 

Karen Davis  Erin Burke 

Clerk to the Board  Budget Officer/County Manager 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



FY 2024-2025
SCHEDULE OF FEES 

5.A.c

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
20

24
-2

02
5 

 (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



1 

FY 2024-2025 Budget 

Schedule of Changes Per Budget Work Sessions 

The Budget Officer’s Proposed Budget has been accepted by Board of Commissioners with the 

following exceptions: 

General Fund 

Dept. Item Submitted Change Proposed 

106900 MLKing  1,000         200 800   Decrease/BOC 

School Curriculum 4,656,494 1,256,494 3,400,000 Decrease/BOC 

5.A.d

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
25

 s
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
b

o
ar

d
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 2

02
4-

20
25

 B
u

d
g

et
 -

 E
ri

n
 B

u
rk

e)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Public Hearings 

Item Number: 5.B

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

Administration 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Proposed Capital Improvement Program - 2024-2029 

Attachments: 24-29 CIP (PDF) 

Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners will hold a Public Hearing to receive citizen input in regard to the 

proposed 2024-2029 Capital Improvement Program. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

5.B

Packet Pg. 26



 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Capital Improvement Plan(CIP) 
2024-2029 

 
 
 

Public Hearing  
Monday, June 3, 2024 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Table of Contents 
 

Letter to the Board of Commissioners  2 
Introduction  4 
Planning Process  4 
Financial Policy  4 
Project Evaluation  5 
Revenue Sources & Debt Service  7 
Funding Method for the County Capital Reserve Fund  9 
School Capital Reserve Fund  9 
South Camden Water & Sewer District  9 
County Fire Districts  9 
Adoption of Unified Government  10 
Capital Project Narrative Descriptions  10 
 
Capital Project Narratives 
  
A. Approved/Funded  

 
1. Administration Complex Phase II Modified      11 
2. Broadband          12 
3. New High School         13 
4. Treasure Point Rural Education Center      14 
5. Emergency Medical Services Department     15 
6. South Mills Boat Ramps and Park      16 
7. South Mills Waste Water Expansion and Disposal (Plant)   17 

 
B. Recommended/Unfunded 

 
1. US 158 Sidewalk Extension       18  
2. South Mills Waste Water Treatment (High Rate Filtration Pond)  19 

   
 

C. Identified/Unfunded  
 

1. Public Beach  20 
2. Dismal Swamp Trail Extension  21 
3. Dismal Swamp Canal Boating Amenities  22 
4. New South Mills Convenience Center & Transfer Station  23 
   
Resolution Setting Financial Policies: 2007-05-04   Attached

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



May 17, 2024 
 
Camden County Board of Commissioners 
 
Re: Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2024-2029  
 
Chairman Munro and Members of the Board: 
 
The provision of adequate public infrastructure remains a top priority for the County. Being 
the 20th year having a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) process, the Board of 
Commissioners have undertaken significant thought, discussion and consideration to estimate 
critical facility needs and the costs therein for the County. 
 
Financial policy specific to how the County governs the issues of debt, fees & user charges, 
fund balances, competitive employment, and the ad valorem tax rate are shown in the 
attached Resolution No. 2007-06-04. This Resolution puts in place measures to ensure the 
financial strength of the County government as well as protecting the taxpayer. In addition, 
the Board of Commissioners created a Capital Reserve Fund as a mechanism with which to 
fund critical, non-school, county infrastructure projects. 
 
With Camden County being a recipient of significant grant awards in furtherance of the 
Board of Commissioners capital improvement policy goals, key infrastructure projects are 
moving forward. Over the past five years the County has been fortunate to receive grants to 
assist with placing critical infrastructure where it is needed.  
 
A significant project included in the 2024-2029 CIP is the engineering and design of Phase II 
of the Administration Campus Complex on the site across from the Historic Courthouse. The 
Board has decided to approach this project in three phases. The first phase was the Library 
and all the infrastructure necessary to support the remainder of the project. The ground 
breaking and construction started in October 2020 on the new Library. Construction was 
completed in June of 2022 and the facility will serve Camden citizens for many years.  
 
The second phase will start with planning in the 2024-2025 FY when the Board will begin 
the design process to relocate the Parks and Recreation Senior Center. This building will 
house the Parks and Recreation Department and the Senior Center. The building will have a 
space large enough to accommodate basketball, volleyball, bleachers, civic meeting rooms, 
staff offices, and a raised stage for conferences and special events. The Senior Center will 
have a large meeting room for activities, exercise room, staff offices, and a shared kitchen 
for daily meal preparations and catering events.  
 
Once the current Senior Center space is vacated it will be available for the Sheriff’s Office to 
occupy. The Sheriff’s Office is operating at maximum capacity and is in dire need of a space 
that can be converted to areas where evidence and special equipment can be secured as well 
as a holding area. When all departments have relocated to the administration building, the 
Sheriff’s Office will occupy the existing building and have access to the existing parking 
area compound. Once complete this will become a secure area. 
 
During the November 2020 election the citizens had the opportunity to vote as to whether 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



they supported building a new high school. The question was placed as a referendum on the 
ballot and the citizens voted overwhelmingly in support of moving forward with a new high 
school. MB Kahn was selected to conduct a feasibility study to analyze the current and future 
needs. The study was completed and MB Kahn was hired as the Manager at Risk for the 
project. Mosely Architects was also selected as the architect for project design. A projected 
completion date of Fall 2026 is expected.  
 
In July of 2022, the Board of Education was awarded additional grant funding from the 
Needs Based Funding Program. This grant and ones prior bring the awarded amount to a 
grand total of $50mil to be applied toward the construction of the new school. These funds 
will help ensure the County builds a first-class high school that Camden students and citizens 
will be proud of for many years to come. 
 
2025 will bring the completion of the Treasure Point Rural Education Center and the 
relocation of the Cooperative Extension Office. This project has moved up on the CIP with 
the award of $452,000.00 from a PARTF grant received in Fall 2022.  
 
Lastly, the County endeavors to establish a new Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 
Department. The 2023-2024FY will bring the hiring of a new Director with the goal of 
establishing County based EMS in the 2024-2025FY.  
 
Camden County has moved forward with incredible strides over the last year. It is sure with 
the bold work of the Board of Commissioners going forward that the citizens of the County 
will be well served.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Erin Burke,  
County Manager 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Introduction 
The Capital Improvements Program (CIP) is a community planning and fiscal management tool 
used to coordinate the location, timing and financing of capital improvements over a multi-year 
period — usually 4-6 years. Capital improvements refer to major, non-recurring physical 
expenditures such as land, buildings, public infrastructure and equipment. The Camden County 
CIP is a five-year plan that consists of capital projects for various departments/agencies of the 
county government. The CIP includes a description of proposed capital improvement projects 
ranked by priority, a year-by-year schedule of expected project funding, and an estimate of project 
costs and financing sources. The CIP is a working document and should be reviewed and updated 
annually to reflect changing community needs, priorities and funding opportunities. 
 
Purposes of Capital Improvement Planning:  

• Ensure the timely repair and replacement of aging infrastructure.  
• Provide a level of certainty for residents, businesses and developers regarding the location 

and timing of public investments.  
• Identify the most economical means of financing capital improvements.  
• Provide an opportunity for public input in the budget and financing process.  
• Eliminate unanticipated, poorly planned, or unnecessary capital expenditures.  
• Eliminate sharp increases in tax rates, user fees and debt levels to cover unexpected capital 

improvements.  
• Ensure that patterns of growth and development are consistent with the comprehensive 

plan.  
• Balance desired public improvements with the community’s financial resources 

 
Planning Process 
Preparation of the CIP and annual budget are closely linked. The first year of the CIP, known as 
the capital budget, outlines specific projects and appropriates funding for those projects. It is 
usually adopted in conjunction with the government’s annual operating budget. Projects and 
financing sources outlined for subsequent years are not authorized until the annual budget for those 
years is legally adopted. The out years serve as a guide for future planning and are subject to 
further review and modification. Department heads submit to the County Manager information 
relating to items that will cost in excess of $300,000 in at least one year of the CIP planning period. 
The County Manager will review and study all items submitted by the department heads and 
prepare a recommended plan that is provided to the Board of Commissioners. After review by the 
Board, a public hearing is set to receive citizen input. When the plan is complete the Board of 
Commissioners will adopt it with a resolution with the intent to include the first-year projects in 
the annual budget. By providing funding for strategic investments at a given time and location, the 
CIP helps ensure that development occurs consistent with a community’s plans and vision. 
 
Financial Policy 
The following financial guidelines were adopted by the Board of Commissioners on June 4, 2007: 

• Debt service should be equal to or less than 15% of General Fund expenditures. 
• The county will strive to pay outstanding principal debt within 15-20 years. 
• The county will strive to maintain its debt at no greater level than 2% of the assessed valuation 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



of taxable property in the county. 
• The county will strive to maintain an available fund balance equal to 25% of the General Fund 

budget at the end of each fiscal year which is substantially higher than the minimum recommended 
by the Local Government Commission. 

• General Fund balances in excess of targeted levels may be transferred to the County's Special 
Capital Reserve Fund. 

Adoption of these policies will further ensure the county's financial strength and future success in capital 
planning. 
For the past 17 years Camden County has embarked on a very conservative fiscal policy working to ensure 
growth in the fund balance and a stronger financial position for the county government. The total 
unreserved and undesignated general fund balance was $12,731,024.00 at the end of FY2022-23. The 
maintenance of a healthy fund balance must be continued so the County has the ability to arrange 
financing for large projects that have been identified. 
 
Project Evaluation 
Beginning in FY11 through today, project evaluation was done through interaction and discussion 
between the County Manager and the Commissioners as well as input from the Department Heads. As 
noted above the CIP is a working document and should be reviewed and updated annually to 
reflect changing community needs, priorities and funding opportunities. 
 

Project Evaluation Criteria 
Sections Questions Considered When Evaluating Projects 

Department Ranking  What is the departmental priority/ranking 
for project? 

Legal Mandates/Safety  Does the project enable the County to fulfill 
a new or existing state of federal mandate?  

 Does the project eliminate an immediate 
safety hazard for County citizens or 
employees? 

 
 
 
 Demonstrated Need/Timing  When does the project need to be 

completed? Is the project related to another 
priority project? 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Impact on Operating & Maintenance Costs  Will the project save the County future 
operating costs?  

 Will the project improve operating 
efficiency?  

 Will maintenance cost be reduced if the 
project were undertaken?  

 Will the project generate additional 
operating revenue or will it generate 
additional expense? 

Impact on Quality of Life  Will the project improve the quality of life 
of the County's citizens? 

Addresses a deficiency in provision of public 
services 

 Is the County unable to provide basic 
services if the project is not completed? 

 Are current services in the project area 
inadequate?  

 Does the project improve County services? 

Linkage to Board of Commissioners' 
Vision Statement, other 
Long Range Plans, or Community 
Support 

 Does the project help to meet the priorities 
established by the Vision Statement/goals or 
other long-range plans?  

 How will the project help further these 
priorities?  

 Does the project have citizen or community 
support?  

 Does the project service a special need of 
the community? 

Funds/grants available from state, federal, and 
other sources 

 Besides County general fund revenues, what 
funding sources are available to fund this 
project?  

 Can fees or revenues other than taxes be 
raised to cover this project's cost? 

Extent of secondary benefits  Are there intangible benefits to completing 
the project?  

 Are there benefits to the project that are not 
otherwise considered in the  

 evaluation? 

Comments  What comments do you have about the 
project that needs to be considered by the 
Board of Commissioners? 

 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Revenue Sources & Debt Service 
One of the most important factors of financing a major project is the county's ability to pay the 
debt service or the annual costs of the financing. There are several funding sources that will be 
used to fund projects in the CIP. These sources are dependent on the type of project and the 
financial impact on the taxpayers of the county: 

1. General Fund Revenues - May be used to fund Pay as You Go capital projects with 
amounts under $300,000. 

2. General Obligation (GO) Bonds - The County may issue General Obligation Bonds 
for larger projects such as schools. These bonds are legally binding and are a pledge of 
the county's full faith, credit and taxing power. 

3. Installment Financing Agreements - In exchange for bank financing, County assets 
are used as security for private placement of debt. This type of funding can be used for 
any capital projects.  

4. Certificates of Participation (COP) - Essentially a large installment financing 
agreement (banks are limited on how much they can lend). COPs are usually rated a step 
below a GO rating. 

5. State and Federal Revenues - Projects may be financed through low interest federal 
loans from USDA Rural Development such as the completed Camden Intermediate 
School Project. Additionally, several projects have been financed by the use of state and 
federal grants such as the Wastewater Treatment and Collection System. 

6. Private Contributions - Private contributions from developers or adjoining landowners 
that will become a part of a larger project.  

 
Note: There are some limited recurring revenues that are to be used for debt service purposes. 
Portions of the Article 40 and 42 Sales Taxes are restricted for the purpose of school-related debt 
service or school capital outlay. The county also receives funds from the state Public School 
Building Capital Fund (these funds are generated by the state corporate income taxes) that can 
be used for debt service; however, the status of these funds is uncertain based on the 
unpredictability of the NC Education Lottery proceeds and other economics. 
 
Revenue Sources: 

• Restricted portions of Article 40 & 42 Sales Tax 
• Annual contributions to the Special Capital Reserve Fund per proposed policies  
• Accumulated funds in the Special Capital Reserve Fund & School Capital Reserve Fund 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Revenue Sources & Debt Service 
Resources Project Types Advantages Disadvantages 
Pay As You Go Assets with short Saves interest and Limits funding for 
 useful lives, other costs of issuance capital needs 
 or where most of   
 benefit is achieved   
 early   
    
 Assets for which Preserves financial Creates an uneven flow 
 matching local funds flexibility of expenditures 
 are required   

 Assets that are not Protects borrowing  
 expensive to acquire capacity  
 and relative to the   
 total Pay As You Go plan 

 
  

 Projects can be phased Enhances credit  
 with reasonable quality  
 annual expenditures   
General Obligation Assets with long useful Permits governments Adds financial and 
Bonds lives to acquire assets as 

needed 
administrative costs of 
procuring capital assets 

     Projects that are expensive to 
acquire or that exceed the 
capacity of the Pay As You 
Go plan 

Levels out capital 
expenditures 

Limits flexibility by 
committing revenues for life of 
the bond issue 

   Requires voter approval 
    
Certificates of Projects that are Permits governments Interest cost may be 
Participation expensive to acquire To acquire assets as higher relative to 
 or that exceed the needed issuing debt 
 capacity of the Pay As   
 You Go plan   

 Used frequently for No voter approval  
 purchases of   
 equipment, buildings   
 and real property   
Grants Assets qualifying for Expands size of capital Limited amount of 
 grant assistance program with little or unrestricted grants 
  no cost to local availability 
  taxpayers Added administrative or 

compliance costs 
Private Contributions Facilities adjacent to Lowers government Added staff time 
 private properties capital and/or required to identify 
  operating costs contributors and coordinate 

activities 

 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Funding Method for County Capital Reserve Fund 
 
Land Transfer Tax: The Land Transfer Tax is placed in a Capital Reserve fund to support projects in 
the Capital Improvement Plan and transfers from General Fund balance when it is in excess of 
targeted levels (Resolution No. 2007-06-04). 
It is projected that the Land Transfer tax will generate approximately $750,000 in FY 2023-2024. These 
funds are applied to approved capital projects and debt service. Currently $.01 of the county-wide ad 
valorem tax rate generates approximately $168,810 in taxes collected by Camden County. 
 
School Capital Reserve Fund 
The School Capital Reserve Fund will continue to be the primary means the county uses to fund school 
capital projects. Currently capital projects are funded by that portion of the Article 40 & 42 sales tax that 
is earmarked for school construction by the state. The county also may request funds through the State 
Public School Building Capital Fund. Lottery proceeds are annually appropriated to this Fund and reserved 
for School Capital projects. Articles 40 & 42 Sales Tax will generate approximately $675,000 annually that 
goes into the School Capital Reserve Fund. It needs to be noted that falling tax revenue is going to 
be a problem for Camden County due to the COVID-19 virus. Sales taxes on retail, restaurants 
and hotel rooms are all taking a hit, as is the state’s income tax. From a finance perspective it is 
this unknown that local leaders need to be very cautious with moving forward with increasing 
debt. 
 
Enterprise Fund 
 
South Camden Water & Sewer District: The South Camden Water & Sewer District is an Enterprise 
Fund that provides water and sewer to residents of Camden County who live in the Courthouse and Shiloh 
Townships. Water service is available throughout the two townships and sewer service is available only 
in a smaller area that is along the US158 / NC343 corridor. The County did make sewer available in the 
Core village of South Mills due to failing septic systems a few years back. This fund has been in operation 
since 1996. 
 
A Reverse Osmosis Water Treatment Plant was constructed and became operational in 2002 along the 
Pasquotank River in Camden Township near the central area of the county. This facility was built with 
partial funding from the NC Rural Center. 
 
There are two Wastewater Treatments Plants constructed and in operation in South Mills township 
and the Courthouse township. The most recent in Courthouse which was partially funded through 
an EDA Grant.  
 
County Fire Districts 
There are two fire districts in the county, the South Mills Fire District and the Courthouse-Shiloh Fire 
District. The South Mills Fire Department station is located on Keeter Barn Road near South Mills. The 
South Camden Fire Department has a fire station located on Sawyers Creek Road near the Courthouse with 
a second station located in the Shiloh Community along NC343 South. Residents in both districts 
currently pay a total of .05 tax (.01 fire tax plus a .04 general fund contribution). These revenues fund 
the operation and capital needs of the fire departments. The county has contracts with both volunteer fire 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



departments detailing how the fire commissions will oversee the operation of the fire departments which 
includes special approval of all expenditures of $5,000 or more.  
In consideration of the current revenue generated from property tax county-wide, it is expected 
that both districts will have adequate funds to provide for their operational needs and debt service 
for capital needs for the next five years.  
 
Adoption of Unified County Government 
In May of 2006 the voters of Camden County approved the adoption of Unified County 
Government. Effective July 1, 2006 the change was implemented granting Camden County both 
the powers of a county as well as those of municipal government (excluding the creation of a police 
department). This change in form of government restricts the creation of any other municipal 
governments within the county thus assuring citizens of only one layer of local government and 
one layer of taxation.  
 
Utility Franchise Tax: A major benefit of the change in form of government is that it allows the 
County to receive a quarterly allocation of the Utility Franchise Taxes which are typically only 
received by municipalities. As the County grows and develops additional commercial tax base this 
allocation increases. 
 
Capital Project Narrative Descriptions: 
The Capital Project narratives are organized in the following categories: 

A. Approved/Funded - Approved and Funded by vote of the Camden County Board of 
Commissioners; 
 

B. Recommended/Unfunded - Recommended projects by the Camden County Manager but 
currently Unfunded; and 
 

C. Identified/Unfunded - Projects that have been identified by Staff but currently not 
funded. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Capital Project Narratives 
 
A. Approved/Funded:  

 
1. Administration Complex Phase II Modified 
 
Project Description: Construction of an Administration Complex that will serve the needs of 
county residents in a safe and efficient manner. This project will be built in three phases. The 
Library (1st Phase) was completed June 2022. The 2nd Phase consists of the construction of the 
Recreation Center/Senior Center. The 3rd Phase will consist of an Administration Building. 
 
Priority Level:  1 
 
Define Problem: By using existing properties, the relocation of Tax, Water, & Planning will occur 
in 2023; and the Sheriff’s Office will also assume an outbuilding in the Court House Complex to 
relieved some crowding issues within their office suite. The long-term goal will be to house all 
administrative facilities on one campus, and allow for the Sheriff’s Office to absorb the entirety of 
the building they current co-occupy with Parks and Recreation and the Senior Center. Phase III 
will include the construction of a building to house the following departments: County Manager's 
Office, Human Resources, Finance Office, Tax Administration, Utilities, Planning & Inspections 
Department Parks & Recreation, Senior Center. The Community needs a Parks & 
Recreation/Senior Center designed for that purpose. 

 
Recommended Solution: Construction of a Parks & Recreation/Senior Center building on the 
acreage already purchased across the road from the Courthouse Complex. 

 
Alternatives: Continue business in current structure. 

 
Stage of Project: County purchased 7.69 acres across the road from the Courthouse Complex. A 
formal space-needs study was conducted by Wooten Company in March 2016. An architectural 
design firm will need to be secured to develop plans for a design build model of construction.  
 
Relation to Other Projects: Completion of this project will free up space currently occupied by 
the Senior Center for use by the Sheriff’s Office. It will also allow for the demolition of the space 
that is currently occupied by the Planning Department, Water and Sewer, and Tax Administration.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: Design services will be solicited to work on a design build 
model of construction.  
 
Operating Impact: Increased efficiency in daily operations and improved services to the public.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



2. Broadband 
 
Project Description: Eastern Shore Communication is working with NCDOT and NCDENR 
(North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources) to secure county wide 
permits in order to continue to install fiber along Route 343 North and South. Environmental is 
all complete and signed off through USDA.  
 
Priority Level:  1 
 
Define Problem: There is a critical lack of internet and broadband infrastructure throughout the 
entire County. The COVID-19 pandemic has proven that internet access is paramount in 
communicating when in a lock down situation. There has been significant improvement with 
hardware acquisition and installment however there is much more to do before the County will be 
to a point covering 95% of the area with internet accessibility. 

 
Recommended Solution: Continue to install fiber and wireless hardware throughout the County 
and provide affordable and competitive prices to the citizens. Also continue to seek out grant 
opportunities and enlist other outside agencies as needed to move this project along. 

 
Alternatives: N/A 

 
Stage of Project: Phase 1 would bring fiber from the North Water Tower to the South Water 
Tower via the County Office and Library (Community Center). The point of connection to 
MCNC (Microelectronics Center of North Carolina) will be at the Shipyard Road/343 
intersection. Phase 1 would bring fiber from the North Water Tower to the South Water Tower 
via the County Office and Library (Community Center). The point of connection to MCNC 
(Microelectronics Center of North Carolina) will be at the Shipyard Road/343 intersection. ESC 
is also extending the fiber to the Camden Business Park and is moving forward with fiber 
installation in the Shiloh area od of the County. 
 
Relation to Other Projects: Broadband installation throughout the County will improve 
communications with other business, education, and global networks. This will also have a 
positive impact on emergency response times of local first responders.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: Eastern Shore Communications has performed a feasibility 
study for Camden County and is well on the way to having internet access from the Courthouse 
area to the Camden Commerce Park in South Mills.  
 
Operating Impact: Increased internet coverage accessibility for 75 % of Camden County. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



3.  New High School 
 
Project Description: Construction of a new High School/Early College campus with capacity for 
800 students. Campus will include parking and athletic facilities.  
 
Priority Level: 1 
 
Define Problem: The current campus does not meet the needs of a modern high school facility. 
Buildings are over capacity and the use of mobile classrooms to hold the early college does not 
allow for growth in this portion of the school. Current athletic facilities are scattered and 
insufficient to meet the needs of the athletic program. A bond referendum from November 2020 
led to vote to add up to $33 million to the construction costs for the school. As of July 2022 the 
Board of Education has secured $50million in needs based funding grants from the State.  
 
Recommended Solution: Construction of a new High School/Early College Campus.  
 
Alternative: Do nothing and remain at existing campus. 
 
Stage of the Project: M.B. Khan Construction Company Inc. has been contracted to conduct a 
design build of a new high school. The size and layout of the facility are being modified to 
ensure the site on 343N is adequate.  
 
Relation to Other Projects: None 
 
Professional Design Work Detail: M.B. Khan Construction Company Inc. has been contracted 
to conduct a design build of a new high school. The size and layout of the facility are being 
modified to ensure the site on 343N is adequate. 
 
Operating Impact: 
Construction will likely commence 12-18 months from May of 2023. The Construction time 
period will be approximately two years. The new campus should open in Fall of 2027.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



4.  Treasure Point Rural Education Center  
 

Project Description: Construction of the Treasure Point Rural Education Center to house the NC State 
Cooperative Extension Offices, Soil & Water Conservation Officer, and 4H.  
 
Priority Level:  1 
 
Define Problem: The NC State Cooperative Extension Offices, Soil & Water Conservation Officer, and 
4H are currently operating out of a mobile office trailer. There is inadequate storage and no public meeting 
space. Cooking classes have to be arranged with other facilities and summer camps are limited to fair 
weather days.  
 
Recommended Solution: Construction of a facility to include offices, demonstration kitchen, and 
large meeting room along with ancillary storage and restroom facilities. The Campus will have new 
improved parking and a new septic system.  
 
Alternatives: Make no changes 
 
Stage of the Project: A PARTF grant was secured in 2022 in the amount of $452,000.00 towards the 
construction of the new facility. An architectural firm has been selected and final design will commence in 
2023 with construction slated to begin in 2024 and completion in Summer 2025.  
 
Relation to Other Projects:  
This new facility will allow for the elimination of the mobile office trailer from the future administrative 
campus.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail:  
Mark Kasten of Cahoon and Kasten Architecture will lead the design/build process for this project. The 
Board of Commissioners voted at the March 2023 meeting to secure the services of this firm.  
 
Operating Impact:  
The new facility will increase the work load of the Buildings and Grounds Division. Public use of the 
building is planned, and additional resources will be necessary to maintain the facility for this use.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



5. Emergency Medical Services Department 
 
Project Description: The creation of a new Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Department to 
provide County owned and operated emergency medical services 24 hours a day to residents and 
visitors in Camden County.  
 
Priority Level:  1 
 
Define Problem: Camden County currently contracts for 12 hour in-county EMS with 
Pasquotank County. Residents and visitors deserve 24 hour in-county coverage with Camden 
County supervision and oversight of services.  
 
Alternatives: Continue to contract with Pasquotank County with anticipated costs increases for 
24 hour service and separate quarters for staff.  
 
Stage of Project: A director position was been included in the 2023-2024FY Budget. That 
position should be filled in June 2024. $100,000.00 has been set aside to acquire refurbished 
equipment however the County was the recipient of a $900,000 grant from the State and used 
those funds to purchase three new ambulances. FY 24-25 will be when the system is permitted 
and staffed in preparation for a spring 2025 launch.  
 
Relation to Other Projects: None 
 
Professional Design Work Detail: N/A 
 
Operating Impact: The creation of a new department will bring new staffing needs and new 
administrative costs. Once the contract with Pasquotank is terminated, the costs from the 
contract will be used to partially fund the department along with insurance collections.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



6. South Mills Boat Ramp and Park 
 

Project Description: Obtain property and construct a small Community Park in the South Mills 
Township area. 
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: As the County's population grows, demand for recreation space and activities 
will increase. Parks are an integral element of strong communities and promote healthy living 
activities, especially when located in or in close proximity to residential areas. Currently all county 
park facilities are located in the courthouse township at Grandy Elementary School. The distance 
from South Mills to the one central community park is an obstacle to pursuing both organizational 
and independent recreation, and the existing community park has little if any room for expansion 
of park or parking areas. 
 
Recommended Solution: The acquisition of approximately 42 acres of land adjacent to the 
Dismal Swamp Canal with the purchase of the South Mills Water Association will allow the 
County begin planning for construction of a community park with both active and passive 
recreation areas including baseball/soccer fields, playground equipment, and picnic shelter. Limited 
funding may be generated from requiring fees in lieu of land dedications for new residential 
subdivisions. As part of this process, the County is pursuing the construction of a boat ramp and 
parking area adjacent to the canal. 
 
Alternatives: N/A 
 
Stage of Project: Land Acquisition should occur with purchase. Master Planning the site is 
proposed in the FY 24-25 budget.  
 
Relation to Other Projects: Allows expansion of outdoor recreational offerings. 
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None started at this time. Will need a master plan to ensure 
effected use of the property and community engagement to meet the needs of the citizens.  
 
Operating Impact: The project will increase Parks and Recreation operations and maintenance 
budget and will likely bring on the need to add one additional staff person. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



7. South Mills Waste Water Expansion and Disposal (Plant) 
 
Project Description: The South Mills Wastewater Treatment Plant will need additional 
treatment capacity and disposal to handle the increased flow demands from the residential 
developments that are currently proposed. A PER was conducted to evaluate the options for 
increased wastewater treatment capacity and the cost for each. The cost to add 100,000 GPD of 
capacity to the existing treatment plant and disposal was approximately $9M. This expansion 
would handle the first two building phases in the residential development and provide 
information on how much additional treatment capacity is needed. 
 
Priority Level: 1 
 
 
Define Problem: Current Treatment Plant has approximately 10,000 GPD of treatment capacity 
left and two large residential subdivisions are under development. 
 
Recommend Solution: Construct additional capacity at the existing wastewater treatment plant. 
 
Alternatives: Build a new wastewater treatment plant, or require developer to build a 
wastewater treatment plant to handle wastewater flow produced by new development.  
 
Stage of the Project: A P.E.R. was completed to determine the most cost-effective alternatives 
for increased wastewater treatment capacity. 
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date. 
 
Operating Impact: The operating impact would be minimal. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



B. Recommended/Unfunded: 
 

1. US 158 Sidewalk Extension 
 
Project Description: Creation of a safe pedestrian environment with the construction of side walks in 
the area of the 158 and 343 intersection.  
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: The development of the Courthouse Township as a commercial center around 
public uses such as Camden High School, the US Post Office, and future County community complex 
is leading to increasing commercial uses and pedestrian activity among the uses. It is important to 
accommodate the existing and future pedestrians with sidewalks to reduce conflicts with automobile 
traffic and to encourage walking.  
 
Recommended Solution: Require private development to install sidewalks within developments and 
construct public sidewalks to develop an eventual sidewalk network within the core area. The first 
section of sidewalks has been constructed around the Town Center project and in front of the high 
school.  
The proposed project is to extend the existing sidewalk in front of the high school approximately 1900 
linear feet to the Camden Square shopping and restaurant center. A&E cost approximately $8,500 and 
is included in cost estimate. 
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Stage of the Project: As stated above some sidewalk exists in the area and the recently adopted 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requires sidewalk in new development. Project will require 
engineering and construction. 
 
Relation to Other Projects: This project is will enhance and support new and existing businesses in 
the Courthouse area. 
 
Description of Land Needs: Project would be constructed in NCDOT Right of Way (ROW) and 
require encroachment permits. 
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None 
 
Operating Impact: County would be responsible for maintenance of sidewalk and any surrounding 
landscaping. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



2.  South Mills Waste Water Treatment Plant (High Rate Filtration Pond) 
 
Project Description: Increase wastewater disposal capacity to prepare for increased flows from 
sanitary sewer expansions. 
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: The increased wastewater flow as a result of increased residential and 
commercial development will require added wastewater disposal capacity. 
 
Recommended Solution: Study the feasibility of higher rate infiltration ponds for wastewater 
disposal as opposed to the current spray field acreage located near the South Mills WWTP. The 
benefits include using less land area and lower operations and maintenance costs together with the 
ability to use this technology for adequate disposal during winter months  
 
Alternatives: Continue to utilize the existing spray fields in South Mills Township. 
 
Stage of the Project: Eastern Carolina Engineering has prepared a preliminary soils boring test 
analysis at the current WWTP spray fields site. The testing shows the soils at the spray field site 
would support the high rate disposal system.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date.  
 
Operating Impact: The operating impact will be minimal with the exception of normal wear 
and tear. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



C. Identified/Unfunded: 
 
1. Public Beach 
 
Project Description:  Provide protected shallow-water access to the public for swimming and 
sailing.  
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: Currently there is no protected shallow-water access for the public to swim or 
launch small watercraft. A public beach would allow for the access to the water and would 
encourage residents and visitors to enjoy the natural resources of the county. 
 
Recommend Solution: Seek land in a suitable location to provide access, parking, and public 
facilities.  
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Stage of the Project: Research.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date. 
 
Operating Impact: Maintenance of new park space and infrastructure improvements would 
primarily affect the Parks and Recreation Department and Buildings & Grounds.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



2. Dismal Swamp Trail Extension 
 
Project Description: Complete the last section of the Dismal Swamp Trail to the Virginia state 
line, thus providing another off-road link in the East Coast Greenway. 
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: Significant in investment was made in the early 2000s on the Dismal Swamp 
Trail. The trail currently terminates at the Dismal Swamp Welcome Center. The remaining 
portion north to the Virginia state line remains to be constructed. The completion of this link 
would provide safe cycling access to residents and visitor.  
 
Recommend Solution: Prioritize state funding, seek interstate commerce grants to support the 
design work and construction for the project.   
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Stage of the Project: Research.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date. 
 
Operating Impact: Maintenance of new park space and infrastructure improvements would 
primarily affect the Parks and Recreation Department.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



3. Dismal Swamp Canal Boating Amenities 
 
Project Description: The provision of land-based facilities, such as restrooms, showers, 
laundry, fuel, pump-out, and a ship’s store to provide service to boaters traversing the Dismal 
Swamp Canal.  
 
Priority Level: 3 
 
Define Problem: There is a lack of boater services between Elizabeth City and 
Chesapeake/Portsmouth Virginia. A facility that serves the Boaters would encourage visitors to 
stay in Camden instead of just passing through. The Welcome Center receives regular inquiries 
on the distance to amenities, and have to send them on to Elizabeth City or Virginia leading to 
potentially lost revenue.  
 
Recommend Solution: The County could seek land adjacent to the Canal that would provide 
access and support the landward facilities. Solicit private investment supported through an 
updated Comprehensive Plan. Work would have to be closely coordinated with the Army Corp 
of Engineers.  
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Stage of the Project: Research.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date. 
 
Operating Impact: A privately operated facility would have minimal operating impact to the 
County, but has the potential for tax revenue generation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



4. New South Mills Convenience Center & Transfer Station 
 
Project Description: A new larger convenience center and new transfer station to serve the 
residents of South Mills.   
 
Priority Level: 2 
 
Define Problem: The currently convenience center is undersized and difficult to navigate if 
there are multiple customers present. It is also difficult to service for the contractor. The County 
uses a transfer station in a neighboring jurisdiction paying fees for the service.  
 
Recommend Solution: The County should seek land that is adequately sized to provide service 
to current and future development in South Mills. The site should be centrally located and easily 
accessible to the contractor.  
 
Alternatives: None 
 
Stage of the Project: Research.  
 
Professional Design Work Detail: None to date. 
 
Operating Impact: Maintenance of new facility and infrastructure improvements would 
primarily affect the Building & Grounds Division of Public Works. 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
29

 C
IP

  (
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

ap
it

al
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 2

02
4-

20
29

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Public Hearings 

Item Number: 5.C

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

Planning & Zoning 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title  Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map 

Amendment 

Attachments: 1_AgendaSummary_CrouseRezoningPH (DOCX) 

2_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPH

(DOCX) 

3_Deed (PDF) 

4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting (PDF) 

5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24 (PDF) 

6_Development Agreement_Camden County Camden 

Yards LLC 4-30-24

(DOCX) 

7_FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 2-13-24 (PDF) 

8_2-5-24_4790 Crouse MasterPlan (PDF) 

9_(2-13-24) Draft Terms & Conditions with Schedules

(PDF) 

OrdinanceCrouseRezoning_2024-06-02 (DOCX) 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.C

Packet Pg. 51



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   June 3, 2024 

 

Attachments:   Camden Yards LLC Rezoning Staff Findings, Application, Deed, Neighborhood 

Meeting Summary, Proposed Development Agreement, Proposed Master Plan, 

Fiscal Impact Statement, Draft Terms & Conditions with Schedule, and 

Ordinance 2024-06-02 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Zoning Map Amendment from Camden Yards LLC 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Camden Yards LLC has requested a map amendment for approximately 1010 acres from the from 

Highway Commercial (HC) and Light Industrial (LI) Zoning Districts to Planned Development (PD) 

Zoning District.  The 1010 acres is currently being used for Farmland and in the South Mills Township. 

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on October 23, 2023.  The Planning Board on April 17, 2024 voted 

unanimously, recommending denial of the Rezoning Application. 

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

has the property identified as Industrial and Conservation. 

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2012 County’s Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Map which has the property identified as Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation. 

 

 

Recommendations: 

 

Motion to approve the Consistency Statement: 

 

The requested Zoning Map Amendment is inconsistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use 

Plan which identifies the parcel as Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation.  The requested 

Zoning Map Amendment is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the majority of 

property identified as Mixed Use, Industrial, Rural Preservation and Conservation. 

 

 

Motion to deny: 

Planning Staff recommends denial of the Zoning Map Amendment Application (UDO 2024-02-103) and 

Ordinance 2024-06-02 as the rezoning request is inconsistent with the Camden County Future Land Use 

Plans. 

 

Reasonableness Statement for denial: 

 

The requested zoning change is inconsistent with Camden County Future Land Use Plans which 

identify the property as Mixed Use Employment, Industrial, Conservation, Rural Preservation. 

 

Motion of denial of the Proposed Development Agreement. 

5.C.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

C
ro

u
se

R
ez

o
n

in
g

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

STAFF REPORT 

Ordinance 2024-06-02 

UDO 2024-02-103 

Zoning Map Amendment  
 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

File Reference: 2024-02-103 

Project Name:           The Crouse Tract 

PIN:   01-7008-00-26-3513.0000 

 

Applicant:  Camden Yards, LLC 

Address:  417-D Caratoke Highway 

 Moyock NC, 27958 

Phone:  252-435-2718 

Email:  jold@qqhoc.com 

 

Current Owner of Record:  Camden Yards, LLC 

Address:  417-D Caratoke Highway 

 Moyock NC, 27958 

Phone:  252-435-2718 

Email:  jold@qqhoc.com 

 

Meeting Dates: 

October 23, 2023 Neighborhood Meeting 

April 17, 2024  Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: 2/15/2024 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $10,650 Ck1021 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. Neighborhood Meeting Summary 

D. Proposed Agreement Exhibits 

E. Proposed Development Agreement 

F. Proposed Fiscal Impact Statement 

G. Proposed Master Plan 

H. Proposed Terms & Conditions with 

Schedule 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Request:  Camden Yards LLC is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment from Highway Commercial and 

Light Industrial zoning districts to Planned Development zoning district.   

 

Description:  The parcel identified with pin number 01.7082.00.26.3513.0000, consisting of 

approximately 1010 acres, is located on the southeast corner of US Hwy 17 and Ponderosa Drive in the 

South Mills Township.  The parcel consists of approximately 110 acres on US Hwy 17 of Highway 

Commercial.  The remaining acreage is zoned as Light Industrial 

  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Rezoning from the following Zoning Districts of Highway Commercial and Light Industrial:   

 

Highway Commercial Zoning District 151.3.6.5 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, 

US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as 

large floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic. The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special 

use permit. New development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral 

vehicular and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-

connected transportation system. New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along 

the major roadway, or is fully screened from view. Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot 

lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and 

multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5 

Development Standards. 

 

Light Industrial Zoning District 151.3.6.7 

The Light Industrial district is established to accommodate agricultural and light manufacturing uses, 

including assembly, fabrication, processing, distribution, storage, and wholesales sale of finished or 

semi-finished products from previously prepared materials. The district also allows commercial 

activities intended to serve the primary businesses in the district and their employees. Uses allowed in 

the district do not require large amounts of land or large building areas for operation nor large yard areas 

for isolation or protection from adjoining premises or activities. Activities take place almost entirely 

indoors and result in minimal exterior movement of vehicles, materials, and goods in areas around the 

district. Buildings are situated so as to have minimal visual impacts, and are well-screened from adjacent 

lower intensity uses. Heavy industrial uses and uses with significant adverse impacts on adjoining lands 

are prohibited. Single-family detached homes and other low-intensity uses which could interfere with 

industrial operations are also prohibited.  

 

Rezoning to the following Zoning District of Planned Development: 

 

Planned Development (PD) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.6.3) 

The Planned Development (PD) district is established and intended to encourage innovative land 

planning and site design concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of 

development, environmental sensitivity, energy efficiency, and other County goals and objectives by: 

• Reducing or diminishing inflexibility or uniform design that sometimes results from the strict 

application of zoning and development standards designed primarily for individual lots; 

• Allowing greater freedom in selecting the means of providing access, open space, and design 

amenities; 

• Allowing greater freedom in providing a well-integrated mix of residential and nonresidential 

land uses in the same development, including a mix of housing types, lot sizes, and densities; 

• Providing for efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets and 

thereby lowering development and housing costs; and 

• Promoting quality design and environmentally sensitive development that respects surrounding 

established land use character and respects and takes advantage of a site’s natural and man-made 

features, such as trees, estuaries, shorelines, special flood hazard area, and historic features. 

  

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Vicinity Map:  South Mills Township

 

VA/NC Line 

Property 
Location 

Ponderosa Dr 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 

Light Industrial 

Suburban Residential 

Rural Residential 

Rural 
Residential 

Highway 

Commercial 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

 
 

Moderate 
Suitability 

Low Suitability 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Wetlands Map and Not located in Watershed    

 
 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Floodplain Map 

  

Mostly Located in 
Flood Zone X 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 
  

Rural Preservation 
Mixed Use 

Employment 

Residential 

1-2 Acres 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

Conservation 

Low Density 

Residential 

Conservation 

Light Industrial 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 
 

Mining Overlay District 

 

Northwest Annex Buffer 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

SITE DATA 

Size of Lots:  Approximately 1010 acres 

Flood Zone:  X and A 

Zoning District(s): Highway Commercial (HC) and Light Industrial (LI) 

Existing Land Uses: Farmland and Wooded 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Rural Residential, 

Suburban Residential, 

and Light Industrial 

Highway 

Commercial and 

Light Industrial 

Currituck County 

Line 

US Highway 17 

Use & size Mining Pits, 

Residential Lots, 

Woods & Farmland 

Woods Woods NA 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is a Planned Development Subdivision with Phasing consisting of 

residential lots and commercial lots. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Not available 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  South Mills Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning will have an impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning will have impact on Traffic.  A Traffic Impact Analysis will be required at 

development stage. 
 

 
CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan which 

identifies the property as Mix Use Employment and Rural Preservation. 
 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Land Use Plan which identifies the 

property as Industrial and Conservation. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts US Hwy 17. 

 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 
   

 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plans.  The majority of Planned 

Developments are located in the South Mills Township 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The majority of Planned Developments are located in the South Mills Township. 

 

3.  Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plan? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plans.   

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  The proposed Plan Development would consist of over 1500 dwelling units and 

commercial properties. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning The proposed Plan Development would consist of over 1500 dwelling units and commercial 

properties. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will resultin lessening the enjoyment or 

use of adjacent properties?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  Staff opinion is all uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause 

any possibility of lessening enjoyment or use of adjacent properties. 

 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

Yes ☒ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, 

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances. 

 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All areas including environmental concern will be addressed through required permitting 

process of North Carolina State and Camden County. (CAMA permit, NCDEQ Erosion & Sediment 

Control permit, NCDEQ Stormwater permit, County drainage plan, Etc.) 

 

Summary: 
CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the current parcel to be 

Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation.  The Mixed-Use Employment intended uses are 

businesses, light industrial, offices, research and development and related ancillary uses.  Rural 

Preservation promotes the continued use of working lands and protection of environmentally sensitive 

lands from more intense development. 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Conservation.  Small areas on the water are identified as Low Density 

Residential.  Conservation is designated to provide for effective long term management of significant 

limited or irreplaceable areas. 

 

.  The Industrial district is designed to provide space for industries, wholesale and warehouse facilities in 

operated in clean and quiet manner not obnoxious to adjacent properties.  Conservation is designated to 

provide for effective long-term management of significant limited or irreplaceable areas. 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

Property abuts US Hwy 17. 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

 

Recommendations: 
 

Planning Board and Staff make the following recommendations: 

 

Motion to approve Consistency Statement: 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

The proposed planned development zoning change is inconsistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Plan which has the property identified as Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation.  

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which has the 

property identified as Industrial and Conservations. 

 

Motion for denial: 

 

Planning Board and Staff recommends denial of the Zoning Map Amendment Application (UDO 2024-

02-103) and Ordinance 2024-06-02 as the rezoning request is inconsistent with the Camden County 

Future Land Use Plans. 

 

Motion for denial of the Proposed Development Agreement 

 

If the Board approves the rezoning: 

 

A Motion to amend the Camden County Future Land Use Plan Maps is needed. 

5.C.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
H

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.C.c

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Neighborhood Meeting Minutes 

The Crouse Tract 

October 23, 2023 

 

Scheduled Place:  5:30pm, Camden County Library, Camden, NC. 

 

Meeting began at approximately 5:30pm for an informal viewing of the drawings and 6:00pm for 

the formal presentation with questions and answers. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

About 30 residents and other interested parties attended in addition to county and developer 

representatives. 

 

Several presentation boards were displayed in the lobby to give people an opportunity to see the 

master plan and typical development styles and types that are proposed in the development, and 

questions were answered informally. 

 

Following the informal presentation, a power point presentation was presented in the meeting 

room showing the objectives of the development, the context of the property with respect to 

Coastal Virginia Commerce Park, which is being developed approximately one half mile to the 

north, and to show details of the proposed development.   

 

It was explained that there would be a concurrent rezoning application and a Development 

Agreement, and that the purpose of the meeting is to tell the surrounding community everything 

we can about the development in advance of submitting the application to the county for review. 

 

Key elements of the master plan were reviewed, including the different housing types, the 

clubhouses and recreational facilities, stormwater management facilities, walking trails, the 

strong commercial component along US 17, and the nature preserve to the east.   

 

We are envisioning at least a 10-15 year build-out for the development. 

 

A summary of the results of an economic analysis that the developer has had completed were 

also presented, showing that the development will have a significant positive impact on area 

income, jobs, and revenue, and a significant positive impact to Camden County. 

 

Following the presentation, the meeting was opened for questions and answers.  The following is 

a summary of comments and how they were addressed: 

 

 
Attendees: (See attached sign-in sheets) 

 
 Also:  Tiffany White and Amber Curling, Camden County 
                        Ken Bowman, Consultant 
           Justin Old, Developer 
                        Mark Bissell, Engineer 
 

 
 

5.C.d

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Comments from the Community How Addressed 

How will water be provided? Camden County is in the process of aquiring 
the South Mills Water Association.  The 
developer will work with the county to extend 
water lines to the site.  A well-site is also 
being offered to the county if needed.   

Will water become available to the Ponderosa 
community nearby? 

A water main will be brought up US 17 and 
could be extended to the development 
through an agreement with Camden County. 

How will drainage be handled? A series of lakes and ponds will be developed 
which will be interconnect and be connected 
to outlets.  The internal drainage will be 
handled with a series of ditches and enclosed 
piping. 

Concerned about flooding. A stormwater model will be developed which 
will determine what will happen during a 100 
year storm event and the drainage system will 
be designed to protect adjacent properties 
during that storm event. 

What about sewer? A 9 acre site is being set aside for wastewater 
treatment, which will be offered to Camden 
County.  Alternatively, the county is in the 
process of designing a new wastewater 
treatment facility that could be connected to 
the site with a force main. 

Concerned about school capacity. A 30 acre school site is being provided for 
construction of a new school on site. 

We don’t want development to put a strain on 
county facilities. 

The fiscal impact analysis shows that Camden 
County will receive a significant financial 
benefits in excess of costs that will allow for 
expansion of fire and sheriff staffing and 
facilities, as well as other county government 
agencies. 

Will buffers be provided? Yes, there is an existing major drainage way 
(canal) separating the development from 
residential development to the north, and a 
tree buffer will also be provided. 

How will the houses be priced? It will be at least two years before houses are 
on the market, so we don’t exactly what the 
market will be at this time.  

What is the schedule? We expect to file a rezoning application in the 
coming months and if the rezoning is 
approved to then begin work on the design 
and permitting for the water, sewer, street, 
stormwater elements which will probably 
take another year or so, and maybe have the 

5.C.d

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

After the question and answer session, several people stayed to further review and informally 
discuss the development boards in the lobby, and the meeting ended at about 7:30. 

 

 

first phase ready to go in a couple of years.  
We expect a 10-15 year build-out at least. 

What about traffic? An existing connection to US 17 will be 
improved and utilized, and we are also 
proposing a second connection which will be 
designed in accordance input from NCDOT.  
Most traffic should be going to the north and 
should not impact Camden County residents. 

What is Ken Bowman’s role? He is serving as a consultant to the developer. 

We know the county will approve this no matter 
what. 

 

How will we get more information on the progress? We might be able to set up a website for the 
project. 

5.C.d

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



5.C.d

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



                                          
Exhibit “A” 

                                                         Boundary Survey 

  

   

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 79

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



 

Duration of the Agreement 
 

The duration of this Development Agreement shall be a period of fifteen (15) years. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Description of Development Plan 

 
The proposed Development is shown on the Master Plan, now referred to as the “Plan”.  The 
Master Plan was prepared by Koontz Jones Design and Bissell Professional Group and dated 
March 24, 2023, attached as Exhibit B. 

The Master Plan shows a mixed-use development that includes commercial, governmental, 
school and a variety of residential development within a walking scale community.  There will 
be both vehicular and pedestrian connectivity throughout, along with a high level of amenities. 

Typical commercial and residential building elevations, typical site layouts and preliminary 
amenity designs are attached as Exhibit “C” on the following pages.  These plans and elevations 
show the development concept but are subject change during final design.  It is represented 
that these elevations and site layouts are similar to, but do not represent exactly, the actual 
development that will be constructed within the Crouse Tract.  The developer reserves the right 
to modify the final plans to fit builder preferences and changing market conditions. 

A tentative Phasing Plan has also been developed.  The property is expected to be developed in 
four (4) major phases, with each major phase further divided into sub-phases.  The four major 
phases are summarized on Exhibit “D” following the typical development plans. 

 

 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 
 
Exhibit “B”  

Master Plan  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

               
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 83

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



 
Exhibit “C”  

Typical Development Layouts 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 85

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 86

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 87

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 88

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 89

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 90

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



 
Exhibit “D”  

      Phasing Plan  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  
  

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Tentative phase lines are shown on the overall Master Plan in Exhibit “B”, with approximate 
acreages and uses outlined below.  The developer reserves the right to modify the final 
development plans, within the spirit of the Master Plan, to adapt to changing market 
conditions. 

 

PHASE 1: 

8-ACRE (+/-) GOVERNMENT COMPLEX  
20-ACRE (+/-) RETAIL/ COMMERCIAL CENTER 
40 ACRE (+/-) SCHOOL & RECREATION SITE  
TOWNHOMES / COTTAGES (APPROXIMATELY 248 DWELLING UNITS)  
MULTI-FAMILY (APPROXIMATELY 528 DWELLING UNITS)  
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT SITE (APPROXIMATELY 8 ACRES) 
 

PHASE 2: 

MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 238 DWELLING UNITS) 
AGE RESTRICTED (55+) COMMUNITY (APPROXIMATELY 102 DWELLING UNITS)  
PARK AND RECREATION AREA 
 
PHASE 3: 
 
LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 63 DWELLING UNITS)  
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 151 DWELLING UNITS)  
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 71 DWELLING UNITS)  
PASSIVE PARK / PAVILION  
WALKING TRAILS 
 
PHASE 4: 
 
LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 83 DWELLING UNITS)  
MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 152 DWELLING UNITS)   
VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (APPROXIMATELY 53 DWELLING UNITS)  
COMMUNITY CLUBHOUSE / POOL  
WALKING TRAILS  
NATURE PRESERVE 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



The lot sizes in the single-family detached areas of the development range from over 40,000 
square feet in the low-density areas down to a minimum of 6,000 square feet in the higher 
density areas, with a variety of lot sizes in the medium density areas. 

Appropriate open space areas meander throughout the development, and include active and 
passive recreational areas, multi-use paths, parks, and elevation boardwalks through the 
nature preserve.   

An enlargement of the first development phase is included on the following page. 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.e

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Public Facilities 

 
Subject to the approval of the NC Department of Environmental Quality, a new public 
wastewater collection system including gravity lines, lift stations and force mains will be 
constructed to serve the Crouse Tract and will connect to either the existing Camden County 
wastewater treatment and disposal system, or to a new system that will be constructed on site.  
Land has been set aside for a new wastewater disposal system.  If the site is not needed for 
wastewater service, it may be used for other site amenities or government facilities. 

All gravity sewer mains, force mains, pump stations and appurtenances will be designed, 
permitted and constructed at the developer’s expense and then turned over to Camden County 
for ownership and maintenance. 

The developer will also install water mains along US 17 North to and throughout the 
development, and will dedicate the waterlines to Camden County upon their completion and 
acceptance.  The water system will be modeled and designed in accordance with North Carolina 
Public Water Supply Section standards.  

The Public Facilities will be constructed as each phase of the Crouse Tract developed, so that 
facilities are in place prior to the occupancy of the proposed uses. 

 

 

  

  
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Dedication of Land for Public Purposes 
 
Camden Yards, LLC proposes to dedicate the following land areas to Camden County for the 
public purposes listed below: 

 Approximately 8 acres within or adjacent to the proposed commercial/shopping center 
area as shown on the Master Plan for use by Camden County for government facilities 
and offices, such as fire & rescue, sheriff, satellite administrative offices, public works, 
and the like. 
 

 Approximately 8 acres east of the proposed commercial/shopping center area as shown 
on the Master Plan for use by Camden County for a wastewater disposal site.  If it is 
determined that the county does not need the wastewater disposal area, the area may 
be repurposed for additional recreation facilities or similar public purposes. 
 

 Approximately 40 acres east of the proposed wastewater area as shown on the Master 
Plan for use by Camden County for a school and recreation site. 
 

 A one-acre site for construction of a deep well to be used by Camden County in 
connection with its public water supply system. 

 

All land will be dedicated when the first phase of development is approved to go to record.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

List of Required Permits 

 
The following local permits and approvals are necessary for the development of the Crouse 
Tract.  A status of each (secured, in process, or not yet secured) is provided below: 

 

Permit       Status 

Zoning                                                                   In Process  

Master Plan                  In Process 

Preliminary Plat                                                   Not yet secured 

Water System Approval                         Not yet secured 

County Sewer System Review   Not yet secured 

County Stormwater Approval   Not yet secured 

Commercial Site Plan Approval  Not yet secured 

Pre-Construction Approval   Not yet secured 

Final Plat Approval    Not yet secured 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Protection of Public Health, Safety, and Welfare 

 
In order to adequately protect the Public Health, Safety, and Welfare in connection with this 
development plan, the following will be accomplished by the developer and/or the County: 

 

 The water system will be designed in accordance with NC Public Water Supply System 
standards, and will then be maintained as part of Camden County’s public water system. 
 

 The wastewater collection system will be designed in accordance with NC Division of 
Water Resources sewer system standards, and will then be maintained as part of 
Camden County’s public sewer system. 
 

 Stormwater modeling will be performed to the 100-year storm event, and stormwater 
will be managed from that 100-year storm. 
 

 Roadways will be designed and constructed in accordance with NC Department of 
Transportation Roadway Standards, and upon completion, NCDOT will be petitioned to 
take the roads into the state system for maintenance.  Prior to NCDOT accepting the 
roads, they will be maintained by the developer and/or a property owners association. 
 

 A property owners association will be formed, funded and operated in accordance with 
provisions of the Camden Unified Development Ordinance, including operating and 
maintaining the common elements of the development.   A professional management 
entity will be employed to manage the affairs of the association. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

 

Conditions to be Incorporated into the Development Agreement 

 
Obligations of Camden Yards, LLC (the Developer): 

 

1. Install a wastewater collection system as approved by Camden County and the NC 
Department of Environmental Quality; pay for all normal costs associated with the 
preparation of the Engineering Plans, DWR permitting, and the collection system 
construction and dedication to Camden County.  Upon completion and certification, the 
Developer will deed the wastewater collection system to Camden County. 

 
2. Purchase capacity in the Camden County Wastewater System for sewer connections, to serve all 

phases of the development, and pay the county’s System Development Fee and Connection Fee 
(currently $7,400 and $500 for each county sewer connection), payable with each building 
permit application.  If all proposed residential units are developed, the developer/builder will 
pay the amount of $13,343,100 over the course of the buildout for sewer connections. 

 
3. Install water mains to serve the development, as approved by the NC Public Water 

Supply Section, and upon completion and certification, dedicate the water main to 
Camden County for public use. 
 

4. Purchase capacity in the Camden County water system by paying a System Development 
Fee and a Connection Fee for each residential equivalent water connection (currently 
$2,500 + $1,500 per connection), payable with each building permit application. If all 
proposed residential units are developed, the developer/builder will pay the amount of 
$6,756,000 over the course of the buildout for water connections. 

 
5. Perform stormwater modeling to the 100-year storm event, and manage stormwater 

from that 100-year storm. 
 

6. Adhere to conditions of the Master Plan approval as approved by the Camden County 
Board of Commissioners. 
 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



                                          
Exhibit “A” 

                                                         Boundary Survey 

  

   

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.e

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Duration of the Agreement 
 

The duration of this Development Agreement shall be a period of fifteen (15) years. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Description of Development Plan 

 
The proposed Development is shown on the Master Plan, now referred to as the “Plan”.  The 
Master Plan was prepared by Koontz Jones Design and Bissell Professional Group and dated 
March 24, 2023, attached as Exhibit B. 

The Master Plan shows a mixed-use development that includes commercial, governmental, 
school and a variety of residential development within a walking scale community.  There will 
be both vehicular and pedestrian connectivity throughout, along with a high level of amenities. 

Typical commercial and residential building elevations, typical site layouts and preliminary 
amenity designs are attached as Exhibit “C” on the following pages.  These plans and elevations 
show the development concept but are subject change during final design.  It is represented 
that these elevations and site layouts are similar to, but do not represent exactly, the actual 
development that will be constructed within the Crouse Tract.  The developer reserves the right 
to modify the final plans to fit builder preferences and changing market conditions. 

A tentative Phasing Plan has also been developed.  The property is expected to be developed in 
four (4) major phases, with each major phase further divided into sub-phases.  The four major 
phases are summarized on Exhibit “D” following the typical development plans. 

 

 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 
 
Exhibit “B”  

Master Plan  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

               
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C.e

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 
Exhibit “C”  

Typical Development Layouts 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 107

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



5.C
.e

P
acket P

g
. 108

Attachment: 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24  (Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment)



 

Protection of Public Health, Safety, and Welfare 

 
In order to adequately protect the Public Health, Safety, and Welfare in connection with this 
development plan, the following will be accomplished by the developer and/or the County: 

 

 The water system will be designed in accordance with NC Public Water Supply System 
standards, and will then be maintained as part of Camden County’s public water system. 
 

 The wastewater collection system will be designed in accordance with NC Division of 
Water Resources sewer system standards, and will then be maintained as part of 
Camden County’s public sewer system. 
 

 Stormwater modeling will be performed to the 100-year storm event, and stormwater 
will be managed from that 100-year storm. 
 

 Roadways will be designed and constructed in accordance with NC Department of 
Transportation Roadway Standards, and upon completion, NCDOT will be petitioned to 
take the roads into the state system for maintenance.  Prior to NCDOT accepting the 
roads, they will be maintained by the developer and/or a property owners association. 
 

 A property owners association will be formed, funded and operated in accordance with 
provisions of the Camden Unified Development Ordinance, including operating and 
maintaining the common elements of the development.   A professional management 
entity will be employed to manage the affairs of the association. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

 

Conditions to be Incorporated into the Development Agreement 

 
Obligations of Camden Yards, LLC (the Developer): 

 

1. Install a wastewater collection system as approved by Camden County and the NC 
Department of Environmental Quality; pay for all normal costs associated with the 
preparation of the Engineering Plans, DWR permitting, and the collection system 
construction and dedication to Camden County.  Upon completion and certification, the 
Developer will deed the wastewater collection system to Camden County. 

 
2. Purchase capacity in the Camden County Wastewater System for sewer connections, to serve all 

phases of the development, and pay the county’s System Development Fee and Connection Fee 
(currently $7,400 and $500 for each county sewer connection), payable with each building 
permit application.  If all proposed residential units are developed, the developer/builder will 
pay the amount of $13,343,100 over the course of the buildout for sewer connections. 

 
3. Install water mains to serve the development, as approved by the NC Public Water 

Supply Section, and upon completion and certification, dedicate the water main to 
Camden County for public use. 
 

4. Purchase capacity in the Camden County water system by paying a System Development 
Fee and a Connection Fee for each residential equivalent water connection (currently 
$2,500 + $1,500 per connection), payable with each building permit application. If all 
proposed residential units are developed, the developer/builder will pay the amount of 
$6,756,000 over the course of the buildout for water connections. 

 
5. Perform stormwater modeling to the 100-year storm event, and manage stormwater 

from that 100-year storm. 
 

6. Adhere to conditions of the Master Plan approval as approved by the Camden County 
Board of Commissioners. 
 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Development Schedule 
 

The following is the Developer’s proposed schedule for completing the Development that is the 
subject of this Agreement: 

 

Activity    Proposed Schedule 

Zoning Approval   Spring, 2024 

Permitting    2024 

Construction of Phase 1  Commence early 2025 (subject to permitting) 

Record Phase 1   2026 

Record Phase 2   2028 

Record Phases 3              2031 

Record Phase 4                                       2034 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Amendments 

 
The terms of this agreement may be amended by the mutual consent of the parties hereto or 
their successors in interest.  A major modification of the terms of this agreement shall follow 
the same procedures required for the initial approval of the agreement, which procedures shall 
include a public hearing.  A minor amendment to the approved Crouse Tract Master Plan may 
be approved by the Planning Director and shall not be considered a major amendment to this 
agreement.  Minor amendments shall include shifting of roadway and lot locations, 
substitutions of one housing type for another with no increase in development density, shifting 
of pond and amenity locations within the development, and the like. 

The Developer shall provide an annual report to Camden County outlining the status of the 
development plan and any changes to the development schedule.  The developer may provide 
an annual amendment to the phasing schedule based on market conditions.   

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

 
Obligations of Camden County: 

 
 

1. Make sewer taps available upon the payment of System Development Fees by the 
Developer in accordance with the schedule outlined above to enable the development 
of the property to be completed in general conformance with the phasing schedule 
provided and approved with the Master Plan. 

 

2. Make water taps available upon the payment of System Development Fees by the 
Developer in accordance with the schedule outlined above to enable the development 
of the property to be completed in general conformance with the phasing schedule 
provided and approved with the Master Plan. 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Development Schedule 
 

The following is the Developer’s proposed schedule for completing the Development that is the 
subject of this Agreement: 

 

Activity    Proposed Schedule 

Zoning Approval   Spring, 2024 

Permitting    2024 

Construction of Phase 1  Commence early 2025 (subject to permitting) 

Record Phase 1   2026 

Record Phase 2   2028 

Record Phases 3              2031 

Record Phase 4                                       2034 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Amendments 

 
The terms of this agreement may be amended by the mutual consent of the parties hereto or 
their successors in interest.  A major modification of the terms of this agreement shall follow 
the same procedures required for the initial approval of the agreement, which procedures shall 
include a public hearing.  A minor amendment to the approved Crouse Tract Master Plan may 
be approved by the Planning Director and shall not be considered a major amendment to this 
agreement.  Minor amendments shall include shifting of roadway and lot locations, 
substitutions of one housing type for another with no increase in development density, shifting 
of pond and amenity locations within the development, and the like. 

The Developer shall provide an annual report to Camden County outlining the status of the 
development plan and any changes to the development schedule.  The developer may provide 
an annual amendment to the phasing schedule based on market conditions.   

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
 

5.C.e

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 A

g
re

em
en

t 
E

xh
ib

it
s 

4-
30

-2
4 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 
PPAB 10427648v4 

 

 

 

 

 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN  
 

CAMDEN YARDS, LLC  
 

AND  
 

THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN, NORTH CAROLINA  
Effective Date:  _____________ 

 
 
 
 
 

Camden County Parcel Identifier Number:  PIN # 0170082002635130000  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 
PPAB 10427648v4 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 Page 

RECITALS 3 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 6 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT 7 

ARTICLE 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 8 

ARTICLE 4. DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 8 

ARTICLE 5. LAW GOVERNING DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 9 

ARTICLE 6. DEDICATION OF LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES AND 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 

11 

ARTICLE 7. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 13 

ARTICLE 8. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS 14 

ARTICLE 9. GENERAL TERMS 16 

EXHIBITS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE  

EXHIBIT A - Boundary Survey  

EXHIBIT B - Master Plan  

EXHIBIT C - Typical Development Layouts  

EXHIBIT D - Phasing Plan   

  

 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

PPAB 10427648v4 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  

COUNTY OF CAMDEN  

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN CAMDEN YARDS, LLC  

AND THE COUNTY OF CAMDEN  

This Development Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is made and entered 

into as of the ____ day of ____ 2024 by and between CAMDEN YARDS, LLC (hereinafter 

“Camden Yards”), a private entity authorized to conduct business in the State of North 

Carolina, and the COUNTY OF CAMDEN, North Carolina, a North Carolina County 

possessing the powers of a Unified Government pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 153A-471 existing 

under the laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter the “County”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Camden Yards, LLC is the owner of the following tract of land, 

identified in Exhibit A (the “Property”):  A 987.03-acre tract of land located at 2790 US 17 

North, Camden County, NC, PIN # 0170082002635130000, as described in Deed Book 429 

at page 116 of the Camden County Registry.   

WHEREAS, Camden Yards has developed a plan for a mixed-use development that 

will be appropriate for the area and will have land uses that complement a planned 

industrial development site located across the state line in Virginia identified as the 

“Coastal Virginia Commerce Park.”  That mixed-use development is the former “Crouse 

Tract.”  Development of the Crouse Tract according to the plans set out in this agreement 

will be the “Project.” 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Project is to build a community that has a creative 

design, providing a mix of different residential uses in close proximity to one another, while 

at the same time providing an efficient use of open space that promotes an active lifestyle 

and a strong sense of community.  Commercial development is also proposed to serve the 

needs of the residents of the development and nearby South Mills community.  Land is also 

being set aside for government facilities, including schools, Sheriff’s Office, Fire and EMS, 

and satellite county administrative offices.   

WHEREAS, a Master Plan for the Project has been created and is being proposed 

for adoption to serve as a template for the long-term development of the Property.  An 

application for rezoning is in progress, and this Development Agreement is being proposed 

to define the scope of the development and to govern the responsibilities of the Parties over 

the projected 15-year term of the development process.  The Master Plan and associated 

terms and conditions are outlined on the following pages and depicted in Exhibit B. 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

4 
PPAB 10427648v4 

WHEREAS, the general benefits to be received by the County from the 

implementation of the Project include, without limitation:  

a. provision of an efficient, effective, and practical overall plan for addressing 

and building the utilities to serve the Project in the future;  

b. establishment of integrated site plans, urban design elements, land uses, 

architecture, site engineering, and landscape architecture; 

c. assurance of substantial commitments to public infrastructure and amenities 

as a result of sufficient certainty, timelines and predictability for the 

Developer;  

d. creation of a centralized community that will provide necessary housing for 

individuals relocating for the Coastal Virginia Commerce Park. 

WHEREAS, the general benefits to be received by the Developer from the 

implementation of the Project include without limitation: 

a. Obtaining sufficient certainty, timeliness, and predictability in the County’s 

development review and approval process to justify the required substantial 

up-front capital investment for a project that will require multiple years to 

build out. 

b. Realization of the opportunity to implement the development plan for a 

mixed-use development that is consistent with County’s and Developer’s 

goals and needs. 

c. Integration of site plans, design elements, land uses, architecture, site 

engineering, landscape architecture, and mitigation measures over the entire 

Project. 

WHEREAS, in exchange for providing these benefits to the County, Developer 

desires to receive the assurance that it may proceed with the development of the Project in 

accordance with any and all existing County development regulations and conditions of 

approval of the County as they exist on the Effective Date, subject to the terms, conditions, 

and exceptions contained herein and subject to periodic potential amendments to this 

Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of this Agreement have undergone extensive 

review by the County’s staff, advisory boards, and the County Board of Commissioners, and 

the County finds that the Crouse Tract is a development suitable to be planned and 

developed through a Development Agreement as permitted by G.S. 160D-1001 et seq., and 

that it is in the County’s interests to enter into this Development Agreement because 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

5 
PPAB 10427648v4 

significant benefits to the County and its citizens will be realized as a result of this 

Development Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the County, by electing to enter into this Agreement in accordance with 

statutory procedures, acknowledges that the obligations of the County shall survive beyond 

the term or terms of the present governing board and that such action will serve to bind 

the County and future governing boards to the obligations thereby undertaken. By 

approving this Agreement, the County Board of Commissioners has elected to exercise 

certain governmental powers at the time of entering into this Agreement rather than 

deferring its actions to some undetermined future date.  

WHEREAS, based on the foregoing considerations, Developer and the County 

desire to enter into this Agreement for the purposes of: 

a. agreeing upon the plan, design, and uses of the relevant parcels of land and 

the types of uses thereon; 

b. coordinating the construction and provision of infrastructure that will serve 

the above-described development and the community at large;  

c. confirming the dedication and/or provision of the public amenities described 

herein; and  

d. providing assurances to Developer that it may proceed with the development 

of the Project in accordance with the terms of this Agreement without 

encountering future changes in ordinances, regulations or policies that 

would affect their ability to develop the relevant parcels under the approved 

rezoning and the terms of this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to G.S. 160D-1001(b) and 160D-1004, a local government is 

authorized to enter into a development agreement with Developer for the development of 

property of any size for a reasonable term.  

WHEREAS, pursuant to G.S. 160D-1003 and G.S. 160D-1005, the County has 

published notices of and has held a public hearing to consider the approval of this 

Agreement. The notice of public hearing specified, among other things, the location of the 

parcel of land subject to this Agreement, the development uses proposed on the parcels of 

land and a place where a copy of the proposed Agreement could be obtained. The initial 

draft of this Agreement was posted on the County website in _________________ and was 

available for public inspection at County offices at that time. In addition, Developer hosted 

a town hall meeting with the public in the Camden County Public Library in October 2023, 

to explain the Project and address concerns and answer questions.  

WHEREAS, after holding the public hearing and carefully considering the terms and 

conditions of this Development Agreement, the County Board of Commissioners duly 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

6 
PPAB 10427648v4 

adopted this Agreement as an ordinance and directed its execution by the Chairman of the 

Board of Commissioners and attestation by the Clerk to the Board.  The approval of this 

Agreement constitutes a legislative act of the Board. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 

contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, and pursuant to North 

Carolina law, the County and Camden Yards agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS 

In the construction of this Agreement and its incorporated Exhibits, the following 

definitions and rules of construction shall be observed, unless inconsistent with the 

manifest intent of the Parties or the context clearly requires otherwise. Except as otherwise 

provided in this Agreement, terms used in the relevant portions of the North Carolina 

General Statutes or the County of Camden Unified Development Ordinance shall have the 

same meanings as employed in those statutes and ordinances.  

1.1. Agreement. The word “Agreement” shall mean this Development Agreement by 

and between Camden Yards and the County. 

1.2. Annual Report. The words “Annual Report” shall mean the annual report required 

pursuant to Section 8.2 of this Agreement. 

1.3. Board. The word “Board” or “Board of Commissioners,” shall mean the legislative 

body of the County of Camden, which shall constitute the governing body of the 

County. 

1.4. County. The word “County” shall mean the County of Camden in the State of North 

Carolina. 

1.5. Crouse Tract. The words “Crouse Tract” shall mean the mixed-use development 

proposed to be developed on the Property by Camden County.   

1.6. Development. The word “development” shall mean the planning for or carrying 

out of a building activity, the making of a material change in the use or appearance 

of any structure or property, or the dividing of land into two or more parcels. 

“Development,” as designated in a law or development permit, includes the 

planning for and all other activity customarily associated with it unless otherwise 

specified. When appropriate to the context, “development” refers to the planning 

for or the act of developing or to the result of development. Reference to a specific 

operation is not intended to mean that the operation or activity, when part of other 

operations or activities, is not development. Reference to particular operations is 

not intended to limit the generality of this item. 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

7 
PPAB 10427648v4 

1.7. Development Permit.  The words “Development Permit” shall mean a building 

permit, zoning permit, subdivision approval, site plan approval, special or 

conditional use permit, variance or any other official action by the County having 

the effect of permitting the development of the Property. 

1.8. Developer.  In the singular or plural shall mean Camden Yard. 

1.9. Effective Date. The word “Effective Date” shall mean July 1, 2024. 

1.10. Land Development Regulations.  The words “Land Development Regulations” 

mean ordinances and regulations enacted by the County for the regulation of any 

aspect of development and includes zoning, subdivision or any other land 

development ordinances. 

1.11. Laws. The word “Law” or “Laws” means all ordinances, resolutions, regulations, 

comprehensive plans, land development regulations, policies, and rules adopted by 

the County affecting the development of the Property, and includes laws governing 

permitted uses of the Property, density, design, and improvements. 

1.12. Manager. The words “Manager” or “County Manager” shall mean the County 

Manager of the County of Camden. 

1.13. Parties. The word “Parties” shall mean the parties to this Agreement, the County 

and Camden Yards. 

1.14. Project. The word “Project” shall mean the development of the Crouse Tract subject 

to this Agreement. It includes all buildings constructed on the Property and its 

supporting infrastructure unless specifically provided otherwise in the Agreement.  

1.15. Property. The word “Property” shall mean the approximately 987.03 acre parcel of 

land owned by Camden Yard as depicted in Exhibit A. 

1.16. UDO. The term “UDO” shall mean the Unified Development Ordinance of the 

County of Camden in effect as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

Nontechnical and technical words. Words and phrases shall be construed according 

to the common and approved usage of the language, but technical words and phrases 

and such others as may have acquired a peculiar and appropriate meaning in law shall 

be construed and understood according to such meaning. 

ARTICLE 2. DURATION OF THE AGREEMENT 

2.1. Effective Date.  The Effective Date is the date this Development Agreement is 

executed by both Parties after the adoption of this Development Agreement by the 

County Board of Commissioners as an Ordinance.  The County shall sign and deliver 

this Development Agreement to Camden Yards within a reasonable time after 

adopting the Ordinance.  

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

8 
PPAB 10427648v4 

2.2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date and it 

shall expire fifteen (15) years thereafter unless sooner terminated by the mutual 

consent of the Parties hereto or their successors in interest or is otherwise 

terminated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. This fifteen (15) year term has 

been established by the Parties as a reasonable estimate of the time required to carry 

out the Project subject to this Agreement and to obtain the public benefits of the 

Project. The County finds that a term of fifteen (15) years is reasonably necessary to 

assure the County of the realization of the public benefits from the Project. All of 

the development authorized by this Agreement must be initiated within the term of 

the Agreement, but expiration of the fifteen (15) year term shall not terminate 

mutually agreed to obligations and commitments included within this Agreement 

that are expressly specified to extend beyond the term of the Agreement.   

ARTICLE 3. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

3.1. Background.  The City of Chesapeake and the State of Virginia are working together 

to develop the Coastal Virginia Commerce Park.  The first phase of the park, 

consisting of 1,435 acres located adjacent to the state line, about one-half mile north 

of the Property, has recently obtained zoning approval, and a financial commitment 

of $14.3 Million for development.  With the commerce park in close proximity, it is 

not economically feasible to develop the Property for industrial purposes, as it is 

currently zoned.  Therefore, Camden Yards has developed a plan for the Crouse 

Tract mixed-use development that will be appropriate for the area and will have land 

uses that complement the Coastal Virginia Commerce Park. 

3.2. Legal Description of the Property.  The property subject to this Agreement 

includes all of the approximately 987.03 acres of the Property located at 2790 US 17 

North, Camden County, NC, PIN # 0170082002635130000, as described in Deed Book 

429 at page 116 of the Camden County Registry, also known as the Crouse Tract.  A 

boundary survey of the Property is attached as Exhibit A.  All of the Property subject 

to this Agreement is owned by Camden Yards for the use and benefit of Camden 

Yards. 

3.3. Zoning of the Property. The Property is currently zoned Highway Commercial 

(HC) and Light Industrial (LI).  Pursuant to the conditions voluntarily imposed on 

the Property by Developer, the Property shall be zoned in accordance with the 

zoning set out in Planned Development (PD).  There are no historic structures on 

the Property that require preservation or restoration under G.S. 160D-1006.   

ARTICLE 4. DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

4.2. Development of the Property. Development shall be substantially consistent with 

that depicted on the Exhibits B & C.  The density/intensity standards, dimensional 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

9 
PPAB 10427648v4 

standards and development standards for development of the Property shall be in 

accordance with Exhibit B.  Community form and design development of the 

Property shall conform generally to the sample buildings attached in Exhibit C.  

Variations may be provided and shall be permitted so long as they are compatible 

with the overall design concept.  Provided, however, that in the event of any conflict 

between the provisions of these Exhibits and the express provisions of this 

Agreement, the terms of the Agreement shall be controlling. 

4.3. Uses. The Project shall be devoted to those uses that are allowed under the UDO 

for the Planned Development (PD) district.  The following are the contemplated 

uses, the development of which is shown on Exhibit B: 

a. Possible government complexes 

b. Retail/commercial centers 

c. School and recreation cites 

d. Townhomes 

e. Multifamily housing 

f. A wastewater treatment plant site 

g. An age restricted (55+) community 

h. Walking trails and a passive park/pavilion 

4.4. Development Schedule. The Project shall substantially comply with the specific 

timetables and triggers for action set forth below. The Parties acknowledge that, as 

provided in G.S. 160A-1008, the failure to meet a commencement or completion date 

shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach of this Agreement, but must 

be judged based upon the totality of the circumstances. 

Activity    Proposed Schedule 

Zoning Approval   Spring 2024 

Permitting    2024 

Construction of Phase 1 Commence early 2025 (subject to 

permitting) 

Record Phase 1   2026 

Record Phase 2   2028 

Record Phase 3              2031 

Record Phase 4                                   2034 

ARTICLE 5. LAW GOVERNING DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 

5.1. Law in Effect at Time of the Agreement Governs the Development. Pursuant 

to G.S. 160D-1007, the County may not apply subsequently adopted ordinances or 

development policies to the Project during the term of this Agreement without the 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

10 
PPAB 10427648v4 

written consent of Developer or its successors in interest. Accordingly, Developer 

and its successors in interest shall have a vested right to develop the Project in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement and the terms of the UDO and any 

applicable laws and regulations as they exist as of Effective Date during the entire 

term of this Agreement. A certified copy of the UDO and any other applicable 

County ordinances in effect as of the Effective Date shall be provided to and 

maintained on file by the County and Developer. 

a. Exceptions under State and Federal law: This Agreement does not 

abrogate any rights that may vest pursuant to statutory or common law or 

otherwise in the absence of this Agreement. The Parties agree, intend, and 

understand that the obligations imposed by this Agreement are only such as 

are consistent with state and federal law. In accordance with G.S. 160D-

1007(c), in the event state or federal law is changed after the Effective Date 

and the change prevents or precludes compliance with one or more 

provisions of this Agreement, the County may modify the affected provisions, 

upon a finding that the change in state or federal law has a fundamental effect 

on the Agreement, by ordinance after notice and a hearing.  

b. Developer may elect to apply subsequently adopted ordinances or 

development policies.  Developer may elect to apply any ordinances or 

development policies adopted by the County to the Project and the 

development in the Project.  Such election will occur upon written notice to 

the County by the Developer.  Any subsequently adopted policies the 

Developer elects to be applied to the Development will be maintained on file 

by the County and Developer along with the notice requesting application of 

said ordinances and policies.   

5.2. Development Permits. In accordance with G.S. 160D-1001(d), the local 

development permits approved or needed to be approved for the development of 

the Project are set out in this section.  The failure of this Development Agreement 

to identify a particular permit, condition, term, or restriction, applicable as of the 

Effective Date does not relieve Camden Yards of the necessity of complying with 

said permitting requirement, condition, terms, or restrictions.  However, the County 

represents to Camden Yards that the following identifies all permits or approvals 

which are required by the County prior to the County issuing certificates of 

occupancy for uses and improvements at Crouse Tract: 

a. Zoning approval 

b. Master Plan approval 

c. Preliminary Plat approval 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

11 
PPAB 10427648v4 

d. Water System approval 

e. County Sewer System approval 

f. County Stormwater Plan approval 

g. Pre-Construction Plans 

h. Commercial Site Plan Approval 

i. Final Plat approval 

j. Building Permits for all structures pursuant to the North Carolina State 

Building Code 

5.3. Reasonable Diligence in Processing Permits. The County shall exercise 

reasonable diligence to expedite the processing of the required permit and approval 

applications for the development of the Project. Developer shall in a timely manner 

provide the County with all documents, applications, plans, and other information 

necessary for the County to carry out its obligations hereunder. 

ARTICLE 6. DEDICATION OF LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES AND PUBLIC 
FACILITIES 

6.1. Dedication of Land for Public Use. Camden Yards, LLC proposes to dedicate the 

following land areas to Camden County for the public purposes listed below.  All 

land will be dedicated when the first phase of development is approved to go to 

record. 

a. Approximately 5.7 acres within or adjacent to the proposed 

commercial/shopping center area as shown on the Master Plan for use by 

Camden County for government facilities and offices, such as fire & rescue, 

sheriff, satellite administrative offices, public works, and the like. 

b. Approximately 8 acres east of the proposed commercial/shopping center area 

as shown on the Master Plan for use by Camden County for a wastewater 

disposal site.  If it is determined that the County does not need the 

wastewater disposal area, the area may be repurposed for additional 

recreation facilities or similar public purposes. 

c. Approximately 30 acres east of the proposed wastewater area as shown on 

the Master Plan for use by Camden County for a school and recreation site. 

d. A one-acre site for construction of a deep well to be used by Camden County 

in connection with its public water supply system. 

6.2. Public Facilities (Infrastructure).  The following infrastructure are the public 

facilities that will be needed to service the Project (the “Public Facilities”): 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

12 
PPAB 10427648v4 

a. Wastewater.  Subject to the approval of the NC Department of 

Environmental Quality, a new public wastewater collection system including 

gravity lines, lift stations and force mains will be constructed to serve the 

Crouse Tract and will connect to either the existing Camden County 

wastewater treatment and disposal system, or to a new system that will be 

constructed on site by the developer.   

b. Water.  The developer will also install water mains along US 17 North to and 

throughout the development, and will dedicate the waterlines to Camden 

County upon their completion and acceptance.  The water system will be 

modeled and designed in accordance with North Carolina Public Water 

Supply Section standards.  

c. Stormwater. Stormwater modeling will be performed to the 100-year storm 

event, and stormwater will be managed from that 100-year storm. 

d. Roadways.  Roadways will be designed and constructed in accordance with 

NC Department of Transportation Roadway Standards (“NCDOT”), and upon 

completion, NCDOT will be petitioned to take the roads into the state system 

for maintenance.  Prior to NCDOT accepting the roads, they will be 

maintained by the Developer and/or a property owners association. 

e. Land.  Land has been set aside for a new wastewater disposal system.  If the 

site is not needed for wastewater service, it may be used for other site 

amenities or government facilities.  In the event the site is to be used for other 

site amenities or government facilities, the County and the Developer shall 

meet and agree on the best use for the land that was set aside for a new 

wastewater disposal system. 

f. Developer’s Expense. All gravity sewer mains, force mains, pump stations 

and appurtenances will be designed, permitted and constructed at the 

developer’s expense and then turned over to Camden County for ownership 

and maintenance. 

g. Phasing. The Public Facilities will be constructed as each phase of the 

Crouse Tract develops, so that any required facilities for a proposed use are 

in place prior to the occupancy of the proposed uses. 

6.3. Creation of a Property Owners Association.  A property owners association will 

be formed, funded and operated in accordance with provisions of the Camden 

Unified Development Ordinance, including operating and maintaining the common 

elements of the development.  A professional management entity will be employed 

to manage the affairs of the association. 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

13 
PPAB 10427648v4 

ARTICLE 7. OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 

7.1. Obligations of Camden Yards: 

a. Install a wastewater collection system as approved by Camden County and 

the NC Department of Environmental Quality; pay for all normal costs 

associated with the preparation of the Engineering Plans, NC Division of 

Water Resources (DWR) permitting, and the collection system construction 

and dedication to Camden County.  Upon completion and certification, deed 

the wastewater collection system to Camden County. 

b. Purchase capacity in the Camden County Wastewater System for sewer 

connections, to serve all phases of the development, and pay the County’s 

System Development Fee and Connection Fee are payable with each building 

permit application.  If all proposed residential units are developed and 

current amount of fees used to estimate total payment, the developer/builder 

would pay the amount of $13,343,100 over the course of the buildout for sewer 

connections.  That amount is the current rate, which is used as of the date of 

this Agreement for estimation purposes only. 

c. Install water mains to serve the development, as approved by the NC Public 

Water Supply Section, and upon completion and certification, dedicate the 

water main to Camden County for public use. 

d. Purchase capacity in the Camden County water system by paying a System 

Development Fee and a Connection Fee for each residential equivalent water 

connection (as of the date of this Agreement, $2,500 (connection fee) + $1,500 

(tap fee) per connection), payable with each building permit application. If 

all proposed residential units are developed, the developer/builder will pay 

the amount of $6,756,000 over the course of the buildout for water 

connections. 

e. Perform stormwater modeling to the 100-year storm event, and manage 

stormwater from that 100-year storm. 

f. Adhere to conditions of the Master Plan as approved by the Camden County 

Board of Commissioners. 

7.2. Obligations of Camden County: 

a. Make sewer taps available upon the payment of System Development Fees by 

the Developer in accordance with the schedule outlined above to enable the 

development of the Property to be completed in general conformance with 

the phasing schedule provided and approved with the Master Plan. 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

14 
PPAB 10427648v4 

b. Make water taps available upon the payment of System Development Fees by 

the Developer in accordance with the schedule outlined above to enable the 

development of the Property to be completed in general conformance with 

the phasing schedule provided and approved with the Master Plan. 

ARTICLE 8. AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS 

8.1. Amendment and Modification. The terms of this Agreement may be amended or 

modified by the mutual consent of the Parties hereto or their successors in interest.  

Either Party may propose a modification to this Agreement.  A modification of this 

Agreement that is considered a Major Modification of the terms of this Agreement 

shall follow the same procedures as required by North Carolina law for the adoption 

of a development agreement.  Upon receipt of a proposed modification, the County 

Manager shall determine within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of a proposed 

amendment and modification whether a proposed amendment or modification is a 

Major or Minor Modification and shall promptly notify the Board and Applicant of 

that determination. The County Manager shall consider the following criteria in 

making the determination:  

a. Major Modification. A substantial change to the Master Plan, attached as 

Exhibit B, within or concerning the boundaries of the Property shall 

constitute a Major Modification or any single proposed increase in the 

number of buildings subject to this Agreement of more than fifteen (15) 

percent.   

All proposed Major Modifications to this Agreement shall be publicly posted in such 

a manner that citizens of the City will have the opportunity to express any concerns 

to the Board and/or the County Manager. 

b. Minor Modification. Any other amendment or modification to this 

Agreement that is not a Major Modification shall be considered a Minor 

Modification, and therefore would not require the procedures for adoption 

of a development agreement.  Minor amendments shall include shifting of 

roadway and lot locations, decreases in density, substitutions of one housing 

type for another with no increase in development density, shifting phases for 

construction, shifting of pond and amenity locations within the 

development, and the like. All Minor Modifications require notice to the 

Board of Commissioners and shall be subject to review and approval by the 

County Manager.  Such approval shall be memorialized by letter from the 

County Manager and acknowledged by the Developer.  A copy of the Minor 

Modifications shall be maintained on file by the County and the Developer.  

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

15 
PPAB 10427648v4 

Minor Modifications to this Agreement may be approved by the County Manager as 

long as such changes: (i) continue to be in substantial compliance with the 

Agreement and all other applicable requirements; and (ii) result in a configuration 

of buildings/development that is generally consistent with this Agreement.  The 

County Manager shall not have the authority to approve changes that constitute a 

Major Modification to this Agreement.  

8.2. Periodic Compliance Review and Enforcement.  The Developer shall provide an 

annual report to Camden County outlining the status of the development plan and 

any changes to the development schedule.  The developer may provide an annual 

amendment to the phasing schedule based on market conditions.  The failure of 

Camden Yards to complete any phases of Crouse Tract within the times set forth in 

this Development Agreement shall not, in and of itself, constitute a material breach 

of this Agreement, and whether a material breach exists must be judged based on 

the totality of the circumstances.   

a. Material Breach.  If, as a result of the annual report, the County finds and 

determines that any Developer has committed a material breach of the terms 

or conditions of the Agreement, the County shall serve notice in writing to 

the Developer (the “Notice”), within fifteen (15) days after the Review setting 

forth with reasonable particularity the nature of the breach and the evidence 

supporting the finding and determination. 

b. Right to Cure.  After Notice has been served, the Developer shall have a 

reasonable time in which to cure the material breach (“Cure”), but in no event 

shall the Developer have less than thirty (30) days for the Cure. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer, as applicable, shall be 

afforded an additional reasonable period of time to cure the breach if cure is 

commenced within the time period and thereafter diligently pursued but 

cannot be completed within said time frame. 

c. Termination or Modification by the County.  If the Developer fails to cure 

the material breach under Section 8.2(a) of this Agreement, then the Board 

may elect to terminate or modify the Agreement.  Any notice of termination 

or modification or finding of breach by the County may be appealed to the 

County Board of Adjustment. If after mediation, the Board elects to 

unilaterally modify the Agreement, the Developer may elect for the 

Agreement to be terminated rather than accede to the Agreement with the 

modifications made by the County by giving written notice to the County 

within sixty (60) days after the proposed modification.  In such event, the 

Developer shall have the right to file a termination in the Registry. Failure of 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

16 
PPAB 10427648v4 

the County to conduct this Periodic Review shall not constitute a waiver by 

the County of its rights to otherwise enforce the provisions of this 

Agreement, nor shall the Developer have or assert any defense to such 

enforcement by reason of such failure to conduct a Periodic Review. 

ARTICLE 9. GENERAL TERMS 

9.1. Default. The failure of Developer or the County to comply with the terms of this 

Agreement shall constitute a default, entitling the non-defaulting Party or Parties to 

pursue such remedies as allowed under applicable law against the defaulting Party, 

provided, however, that no termination of this Agreement may be declared by the 

County or Developer absent providing to the defaulting Party the notice and 

opportunity to cure set out in Section 8.2 of this Agreement. A Party believing the 

other Party to be in default shall provide reasonable notice of that to the other Party 

and shall provide that Party an opportunity to cure any default within a reasonable 

time. 

9.2. Recordation/Binding Effect. Within fourteen (14) days after the County enters 

into this Agreement, Developer shall record this Agreement in the Camden County 

Public Registry, as required by G.S. § 160D-1011. The burdens of this Agreement shall 

be binding upon, and the benefits of this Agreement shall inure to, all successors in 

interest to the Parties hereto. All of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable during the Term as equitable servitudes and constitute covenants 

running with the land pursuant to applicable law. Provided, Developer benefits 

under this Agreement shall inure only to those whom Developer has expressly 

assigned them and only to the extent of the assignment.   

9.3. Force Majeure. In addition to specific provisions of this Agreement, neither 

Developer nor the County shall be responsible for any default, delay or failure to 

perform if such default, delay or failure to perform is due to causes beyond such 

Party’s reasonable control, including, but not limited to, strikes, lockouts, actions or 

inactions of governmental authorities (excluding Parties to this Agreement), 

epidemics, wars, embargoes, fires, hurricanes, acts of God or the default of a 

common carrier. In the event of a default, delay or failure to perform due to causes 

beyond such Party’s reasonable control, any date or times by which the Parties are 

otherwise scheduled to perform shall be extended automatically for a period of time 

equal in duration to the time lost by reason of the cause beyond the reasonable 

control of such Party. If written notice of such delay is given to the other Party after 

the commencement of such delay, an extension of time for such cause shall be 

granted in writing for the period of the enforced delay, or longer as may be mutually 

agreed. 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

17 
PPAB 10427648v4 

9.4. Disclaimer of Joint Venture, Partnership and Agency. This Agreement shall not 

be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint venture, or partnership 

between Developer and the County, or to impose any partnership obligation or 

liability upon such parties. Neither Developer nor the County shall have any right, 

power or authority to enter into any agreement or undertaking for, or act on behalf 

of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind, the other 

Party. 

9.5. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. The Agreement is not intended to and does not 

confer any right or benefit on any third party. 

9.6. Notices. Unless specifically provided otherwise by this Agreement, any notice, 

demand, request, consent, approval or communication which a signatory Party is 

required to or may give to another signatory Party hereunder shall be in writing and 

shall be delivered or addressed to the other at the address below set forth or to such 

other address as such Party may from time to time direct by written notice given in 

the manner herein prescribed. Such notice or communication shall be deemed to 

have been given or made when communicated by personal delivery, by independent 

courier service, by facsimile, by electronic mail to the address provided, or, if by 

mail, on the fifth (5th) business day after the deposit thereof in the United States 

Mail, postage prepaid, registered or certified, addressed as hereinafter provided. 

Parties shall make reasonable inquiry to determine whether the names or titles of 

the persons listed in this Agreement should be substituted with the name of the 

listed person’s successor.  

 

All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals or communications to the 

County shall be addressed to: 

County of Camden 
P.O. Box 190 
117 North NC 343 
Camden, NC 27921 
Attn: County Manager 

 
All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals or communications to Camden 
Yards shall be addressed to:  
 

 
 
Camden Yards, LLC 
417 Caratoke Highway, Unit D 
Moyock, NC 27958-8608 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

18 
PPAB 10427648v4 

Attn: Justin Old 
 

9.7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth and incorporates by reference all of 

the agreements, conditions and understandings between the County and Developer 

relative to the Project and supersedes all previous agreements. There are no 

promises, agreements, conditions or understandings, oral or written, expressed or 

implied, among these Parties relative to the matters addressed herein other than as 

set forth or as referred to herein or as contained in the UDO or as expressed in the 

development conditions applicable to this parcel of land. 

9.8. Construction. The Parties agree that each Party and its counsel have reviewed and 

revised this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that 

ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not apply in the 

interpretation of this Agreement or any amendments or exhibits hereto. 

9.9. Assignment. After at least thirty (30) days’ notice to the County, Developer may 

assign its respective rights and responsibilities hereunder to affiliates of the 

Developer, provided that no assignment as to a portion of the relevant parcel of land 

will relieve the assigning Party of responsibility with respect to the remaining 

portion of the relevant parcel of land owned by the assigning Party without the 

written consent of the County.  The assignee/Affiliate shall assume in full all of the 

obligations of Developer under this Agreement, from the effective date of such 

assignment forward.  

9.10. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina. 

9.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original and such counterparts shall constitute one and 

the same instrument. 

9.12. Agreement to Cooperate. In the event of any legal action instituted by a third party 

or other governmental entity or official challenging the validity of any provision of 

this Agreement, the Parties hereby agree to cooperate in defending such action; 

provided, however, each Party shall retain the right to pursue its own independent 

legal defense. 

9.13. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate on the earlier of the expiration of the 

term specified in Section 2.2 of this Agreement or a specific termination made by 

operation of the provisions of this Agreement.  

9.14. Severability. If any term or provision herein shall be judicially determined to be 

void or of no effect, such determination shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

19 
PPAB 10427648v4 

terms and provisions. The Parties agree that if any provision of this Agreement is 

judicially determined to be invalid because it is inconsistent with a provision of state 

or federal law, this Agreement shall be amended to the extent necessary to make it 

consistent with state or federal law and the balance of the Agreement shall remain 

in full force and effect. 

9.15. Authority. Each Party represents that it has undertaken all actions necessary for 

approval of this Agreement, and that the person signing this Agreement has the 

authority to bind the County or Developer. 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local 
Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  

  

      _____________________________ 

By: Stephanie Jackson 

      Finance Officer 

      Camden County, North Carolina 

  

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

20 
PPAB 10427648v4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereby set their hands and seals, effective the 
date first above written. 

 

County of Camden 

By: 

__________________________________  

Title:_______________________________  

Camden Yards, LLC 

By:________________________________  

Title:_______________________________  

 

  

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

21 
PPAB 10427648v4 

=====================================================================  
State of North Carolina 
County of Camden 
 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify 
that __________________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged 
that he or she is _________________ of Camden Yards and acknowledged, on behalf of 
Camden Yards, the due execution of the foregoing instrument. Witness my hand and 
official stamp or seal, this the _____ day of ___________________, 2024.  
 

My Commission Expires: _________________________________________  
____________________  Notary Public  
 

 
=====================================================================  
State of North Carolina 
County of Camden 
 

I, the undersigned, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify 
that __________________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged 
that he or she is _________________ of the County of Camden and acknowledged, on 
behalf of the County of Camden, the due execution of the foregoing instrument. Witness 
my hand and official stamp or seal, this the _____ day of ___________________, 2024.  
 

My Commission Expires: _________________________________________  
____________________  Notary Public  
 

  

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 

22 
PPAB 10427648v4 

EXHIBITS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

 

 

5.C.f

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t_

C
am

d
en

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s 
L

L
C

 4
-3

0-
24

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap



 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
for 

The Crouse Tract 
 

The following is a summary of the anticipated Fiscal Impact for The  Crouse Tract Planned Development 
based on the current plan that is being reviewed for P.D. approval: 
 

A. Estimated Total Property Valuation at Build-out: 
748 Single-family Homes @ $395,000 (average)…………………………………..$295,460,000 
414 Townhome Dwellings @ $315.000 (average)…………………………………$130,410,000 
528 Multifamily Dwellings @ $225,000 (average)…………………………………$118,800,000 
150,000 sq. ft. Commercial Development @ $150/sq. ft………………………$  22,500,000 
 
Estimated Total Value at Build-out……………………….………………………………$567,170,000 

 
B. Tax Revenue (Annual): 

The positive operational impact on Camden County at full buildout is estimated to be as follows: 
Ad Valorem Tax:  .74/100 x $567,170,000……………………………………...…..$4,197,000 
 South Mills Fire Tax:  0.04/100 x $567,170,000…………….…………….……..$    226,868 

 
Total Estimated Annual Tax Revenue:…………………...……………………..…….$4,423,868 

 
C. Annual Fees: 

Solid Waste Fee:  $75/yr. x 1690 Properties………………………………….……..$ 126,750/year 
Stormwater Fee:  $10/yr. x 1190 Properties………………………………..…..…..$   11,900/year (min.) 

 
D. Water and Sewer Fees 

Water Fees (System Development Fees): $1,690 x $2,500/Conn….……… $4,225,000 
        (Connection Fees):  $1,690 x $1,000/Conn…….…………….………$1,690,000 
 Subtotal, Water Fees:                  $5,915,000 
Sewer Fees (System Development Fees):  $1,690 x $7,400.....................$12,506,000 

-      (Connection Fees):  $1,690 x $500..........................................$     845,000 
Subtotal, Sewer Fees:..................................................................$13,351,000 

 
 Total, Water & Sewer Fees (estimate)………………………………..…….………….$19,266,000 
 

E. Other Revenue Sources: 
Transfer Taxes on Home Sales:  1.0% x $425,870,000..……………….………...$4,258,700 
Revenue Stamps:  0.2% x $425,870..…………………………………………….……….$    851,740 
     Subtotal:………………………………………………………………………………………..….$5,110,440 
 
Development Review Fees:  1690 Units @ $150/unit………...……………..…..$253,500 
Building Permit Fees: 1,190 Homes @ 1,300/home (Average)….……………$1,547,000 (estimated) 
 
           Subtotal:……………………………………………………………………………………….$1,800,500 
 
Total, Estimated Other Revenue:…………………………………………………………….$6,910,940 
 
 

5.C.g

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_F
IS

C
A

L
 IM

P
A

C
T

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 2

-1
3-

24
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



 
 
 
 
Summary of Revenue: 
 
One-time Revenue:…………………………………………………………………………………$20,261,940 
 
Annual Revenue:.……………………………………………………………………………………$  4,562,518 

5.C.g

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_F
IS

C
A

L
 IM

P
A

C
T

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 2

-1
3-

24
  (

C
am

d
en

 Y
ar

d
s,

 L
L

C
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



VA
NC

TO
   CHESAPEAKE

SITERO
UTE  17

CURRITUCK  CO.

CAMDEN  CO.
PONDEROSA  RD.

McP
HE

RS
ON

  R
D.

G
ALLBERRY  RD.

ISLAND  RD.

COASTAL VIRGINIA
COMMERCE PARK
(PHASE 1)

479000EC1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 N/A

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

1

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

, D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

T
H

E
 C

R
O

U
SE

 T
R

A
C

T
C

AM
D

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

SO
U

TH
 M

IL
LS

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 N
O

T
E

S 
&

 S
IT

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

8

VICINITY MAP    SCALE: 1" = 5,000'

N

S

W E MASTER PLAN FOR

THE CROUSE TRACT
A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

SOUTH MILLS TOWNSHIP  CAMDEN COUNTY  NORTH CAROLINA

Sheet Number Sheet Title
1 COVER SHEET, DEVELOPMENT NOTES & SITE LOCATION

2 EXISTING SITE FEATURES & CONDITIONS

3 PROPOSED REZONING EXHIBIT

4 MASTER PLAN & DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

5 UTILITY & STORMWATER DISBURSEMENT & DRAINAGE PLAN

6 TYPICAL DEVELOPMENT RENDERINGS

7 TYPICAL DEVELOPMENT RENDERINGS

Objective:
To build a community that has a creative design, providing a mix of different residential uses
in close proximity to one another, while at the same time providing an efficient use of open
space that promotes an active lifestyle and a strong sense of community.  Commercial
development is also proposed to serve the needs of both the residents of the development
and the nearby South Mills community.  Land is also being set aside for government facilities,
including land for schools, police & fire station, and satellite county administrative offices.

TENTATIVE PHASING SCHEDULE

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE UNITS* DEVELOPMENT OTHER IMPROVEMENTS OTHER LAND

(AC) (AC) MF TH SFD
INTENSITY
(D.U./AC) DEDICATIONS

1 196.5 25 528 218 30 3.95 Main entrance, Roundabout, Portion of Multi-use Path, 30 AC School  Site, 9 AC Wastewater Site,
Mail Kiosk, Main drainage outlet, Clubhouse, Rec. Park  5.7 AC Government Site, 25 AC Shopping Center

2 127.5 33.3 - 124 216 2.67 Clubhouse, Pedestrian Connectivity, Lakes

3 232.3 46.6 - 72 213 0.92 Clubhouse and Rec. Park

4 452.8 525.3 - - 289 0.64
Final Clubhouse and Rec. Area, Nature Trails, and
Boardwalks

TOTAL 1009.1 357.2 528 414 748 1.67

* MF = Multi-family

TH = Townhouse
SFD = Single Family
Detached

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: 1. PROJECT NAME: CROUSE TRACT PROJECT NAME: CROUSE TRACT 2. APPLICANT: QUALITY HOMES OF CURRITUCK, INC APPLICANT: QUALITY HOMES OF CURRITUCK, INC   417-D CARATOKE HIGHWAY                               MOYOCK, NC 27958 3. OWNER:  CAMDEN YARDS LLC OWNER:  CAMDEN YARDS LLC CAMDEN YARDS LLC 417-D CARATOKE HIGHWAY MOYOCK, NC 27958 4. PROPERTY DATA:  PROPERTY DATA:         PARCEL ID#:017082002635130000 PARCEL ID#:017082002635130000       PRIMARY ADDRESS: 2790 US HIGHWAY 17, SOUTH MILLS, NC PRIMARY ADDRESS: 2790 US HIGHWAY 17, SOUTH MILLS, NC        RECORDED REFERENCES: D.B. 429, PG. 116 RECORDED REFERENCES: D.B. 429, PG. 116 PROPERTY ZONING: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 5. F.I.R.M. DATA: F.I.R.M. DATA: ZONES X AND A PER F.E.M.A. F.I.R.M. MAP NUMBER 3721708200 K, EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 16, 2005. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\479000EC1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPER/OWNER: ______________________________________  MANAGER, CAMDEN YARDS, LLC. CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: ______________________________________     CHAIRMANCHAIRMAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



FEMA ZONE: "X"

PtA

BaA

RpA

BaA

WdA

U.S.  RO
UTE  17

FEMA ZONE: "X"

FEMA ZONE:  "A"  (FLOOD
MODEL NOT AVAILABLE)

CAMDEN COUNTY

PtA

HyA

PeA

HyA

PtA
BaA

PuA

LEGEND

479000EC1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 1" = 400'

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

2

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 S
IT

E
 F

E
A

T
U

R
E

S
T

H
E

 C
R

O
U

SE
 T

R
A

C
T

C
AM

D
EN

 C
O

U
N

TY
SO

U
TH

 M
IL

LS
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 &

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

8

SOILS LEGEND

SOILS LINE

BaA BELHAVEN MUCK

HyA HYDE SILT LOAM

PeA PERQUIMANS SILT LOAM

PtA PORTSMOUTH FINE SANDY
LOAM

PuA PUNGO MUCK

RpA ROPER MUCK

WdA WASDA MUCK

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT CHART

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ROADWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DILAPIDTED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 400'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVERNMENT CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL USES

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECREATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESERVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT ROADWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\479000EC1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8-10 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 ACRES±

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 ACRES± ALONG HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES THROUGHOUT DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
200 AC.±

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 SITES SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MIX OF HOUSING TYPES (1,700 UNITS±)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40-50 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OR DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 AC.±

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



CURRITUCK COUNTY

CAMDEN COUNTY

U.S.  RO
UTE  17

CURRITUCK COUNTY

CAMDEN COUNTY

U.S.  RO
UTE  17

LEGEND

479000ZON1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 1" = 800'

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

3

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

 
T

H
E

 C
R

O
U

SE
 T

R
A

C
T

C
AM

D
EN

 C
O

U
N

TY
SO

U
TH

 M
IL

LS
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
 E

X
H

IB
IT

8

EXISTING ZONING EXHIBIT

PROPOSED ZONING EXHIBIT

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ROADWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DILAPIDTED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: RURAL RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: RURAL RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ROADWAY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DILAPIDTED BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINING PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\479000ZON1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
3200

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT ROADWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT ROADWAYS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHORELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: RURAL RESIDENTIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONED: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



U.S.  RO
UTE  17

WASTEWATER

GOVERNMENT

COMMERCIAL

COMMERCIAL

APARTMENTS

TOWNHOMES

SCHOOL

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

TOWNHOMES

TOWNHOMES

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

ACTIVE O
PEN SP

ACE

CAMDEN COUNTY

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

NATURE PRESERVE W/ TRAILS

47900AREA1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 1" = 400'

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

4

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

 M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N
 &

T
H

E
 C

R
O

U
SE

 T
R

A
C

T
C

AM
D

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

SO
U

TH
 M

IL
LS

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

8

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

PHASE 1 PHASE 2 PHASE 3 PHASE 4 TOTALS

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2 5552153 S.F. 127.46 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 4 22076123 S.F. 506.80 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 400'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVERNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETACHED LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
127.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
31.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
48.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETACHED LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES) (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
506.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
452.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
200.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRITUCK PART

AutoCAD SHX Text
NET, CAMDEN PART

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GOVERNMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APARTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
300.54*

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ACREAGES ARE APPROXIMATE AND WILL BE REFINED DURING THE DESIGN PROCESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 8560401 S.F. 196.52 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3 10115082 S.F. 232.21 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETACHED LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES) (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
49.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
128.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NET, CAMDEN PART

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETACHED LOTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA (ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
169.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*EXCLUDES CURRITUCK COUNTY PORTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3 10115082 S.F. 232.21 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\47900AREA1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
196.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
232.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRITUCK COUNTY PART

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1062.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
236.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
28.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
1009.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNHOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
383.17



U.S.  RO
UTE  17

WASTEWATER

GOVERNMENT

COMMERCIAL

COMMERCIAL

APARTMENTS

TOWNHOMES

SCHOOL

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

TOWNHOMES

TOWNHOMES

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

ACTIVE O
PEN SP

ACE

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL
WL

W
L

W
L

WL
WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL WL WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL

WL

WL

WL

WL
WL WL WL

WL

WLW
L

WL

WL
WL

WL

W
L

W
L

WL

WL
WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

W
L

WLWLWL

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

WL WL WL WL WL

W
L WL

WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

WL

WL WL WL WL WL WL
W

L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL

FM

FM

FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM FM FM FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM

FM

FM

FM

CAMDEN COUNTY

ACTIVE OPEN SPACE

WL WL

WL

WL

WL

WL

WL
WL WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL WL

WL WL WL WL

W
L

W
L WL

WL

W
L WL WL WL

W
L

WL
WL

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL WL W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

W
L

WL WL WL

W
L

WL
WL WL

W
L

W
L

FM FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

NATURE PRESERVE W/ TRAILS

47900AREA1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 1" = 400'

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

5

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

C
O

N
C

E
PT

U
A

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 &
 

T
H

E
 C

R
O

U
SE

 T
R

A
C

T
C

AM
D

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

SO
U

TH
 M

IL
LS

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

ST
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
L

A
N

8

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E

UTILITY & DRAINAGE LEGEND
WL WL

FM FM

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2 5552153 S.F. 127.46 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 4 22076123 S.F. 506.80 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
800

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" = 400'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER DISTRIBUTION TRUNK LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORMWATER DRAINAGE INTER-CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1 8560401 S.F. 196.52 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3 10115082 S.F. 232.21 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1600

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASTEWATER LIFT STATION & FORCE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 3 10115082 S.F. 232.21 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\47900AREA1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
400

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



47900AREA1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 N/A

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

6

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

T
Y

PI
C

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

T
H

E
 C

R
O

U
SE

 T
R

A
C

T
C

AM
D

EN
 C

O
U

N
TY

SO
U

TH
 M

IL
LS

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

R
E

D
E

R
IN

G
S

8

TYPICAL RETAIL DEVELOPMENT RENDERING TYPICAL TOWNHOMES RENDERING

TYPICAL PARK APARTMENTS RENDERING TYPICAL SINGLE FAMILY RENDERING

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\47900AREA1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



47900AREA1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 N/A

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

7

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

T
Y

PI
C

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 
T

H
E

 C
R

O
U

SE
 T

R
A

C
T

C
AM

D
EN

 C
O

U
N

TY
SO

U
TH

 M
IL

LS
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
R

E
N

D
E

R
IN

G
S

8

TYPICAL CLUBHOUSE RENDERING TYPICAL NATURE PRESERVE TRAIL RENDERING

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\47900AREA1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



TYPICAL DIVIDED BOULEVARD W/ BIKE LANE BOTH SIDES 

TYPICAL LOCAL ROADWAY

TYPICAL LOCAL ROADWAY W/ ON-STREET PARKING ONE SIDE

TYPICAL ALLEY ROADWAY

47900AREA1

PR
O

JE
C

T:

DATE: SCALE:

DESIGNED:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

APPROVED:

SHEET:

OF

N
O

R
TH

 C
AR

O
LI

N
A

CAD FILE:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
IS

 T
H

E 
SO

LE
 P

R
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
B

PG
, I

N
C

. O
F 

K
IT

TY
H

A
W

K
, N

O
R

TH
 C

A
R

O
LI

N
A

.  
TH

E 
R

EP
R

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
, I

N
 W

H
O

LE
 O

R
PA

R
T,

 O
R

 T
H

E 
M

O
D

IF
IC

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

A
N

Y
 D

ET
A

IL
 O

R
 D

ES
IG

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

B
E 

M
A

D
E 

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

EX
PR

ES
S 

W
R

IT
TE

N
 C

O
N

SE
N

T 
O

F 
M

A
R

K
 S

.
B

IS
SE

LL
, P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

O
F 

B
PG

, I
N

C
., 

C
O

PY
R

IG
H

T 
20

05
.

PRELIMINARY
DO NOT USE FOR
CONSTRUCTION

02/04/24 AS NOTED

BPG

KFW

MSB

BPG

4790

8

M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

T
Y

PI
C

A
L

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 
T

H
E

 C
R

O
U

SE
 T

R
A

C
T

C
AM

D
EN

 C
O

U
N

TY
SO

U
TH

 M
IL

LS
 T

O
W

N
SH

IP
D

E
T

A
IL

S

8

TYPICAL RESIDENTIAL ROADWAY PAVEMENT SECTION

5.C.h

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 8

_2
-5

-2
4_

47
90

 C
ro

u
se

 M
as

te
rP

la
n

  (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.17' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"ASPHALT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIAN CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CROSS CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CURB INLET OR CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. WATER SERVICE TO DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.17' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00' TRAVEL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' CORNER SIDE MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN  

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.50' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SDR 21 WATER MAIN CENTERED IN SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. WATER SERVICE TO DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.50' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CURB INLET OR CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"ASPHALT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE FROM DWELLING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00' RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' FRONT MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' FRONT MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.00' TRAVEL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"ASPHALT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00' RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. TRAFFIC RATED DROP INLET STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR MBL TND SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SDR 21 WATER MAIN CENTERED IN SHOULDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. WATER SERVICE TO DWELLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Engineers, Planners, Surveyors

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bissell Professional Group

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 1068

AutoCAD SHX Text
(252) 261-3266

AutoCAD SHX Text
Firm License # C-956

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PAVING SHALL CONSIST OF FINE GRADING THE SPECIFIED PARKING & DRIVE AREAS AND INSTALLING 2" SF-9.5A OR SF-9.5B ASPHALT CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE IN CONJUNCTION WITH A 6" AGGREGATE BASE COURSE. THE SOIL SUBGRADE BENEATH PAVEMENTS SHALL BE COMPACTED TO AT LEAST 95% OF ASTM D 698 PRIOR TO ANY PLACEMENT OF SUBBASE FILL OR STONE BASE COURSE. ALL SITE PREPARATION AND THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF ALL FOUNDATIONS, GROUND SLABS, AND PAVEMENTS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED BY A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00' TRAVEL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CROSS CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' CORNER SIDE MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
19.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEDIAN CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CURB INLET OR CURB & GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE PER GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE FROM DWELLING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.50' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-55' RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' FRONT MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' PARKING SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SEWER SERVICE FROM DWELLING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
and Environmental Specialists

AutoCAD SHX Text
Kitty Hawk, North Carolina 27949

AutoCAD SHX Text
S:\projects\4790 900 Acre Crouse Tract\dwg\MasterPlan\47900AREA1.dwg  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  2/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  Plotted: 2/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc32/5/2024 10:10 AM  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3  HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3HP Designjet T2500 PS HPGL2.pc3

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" SF-9.5A OR SF-9.5B ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"ASPHALT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SDR 21 WATER MAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES  CENTERED IN ISLAND (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"ASPHALT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CROSS CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CROSS CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' FRONT MBL SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' REAR MBL TND SINGLE FAMILY LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX (252) 261-1760

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00' PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3512 North Croatan Highway

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.50' TO BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET TREES (SEE LANDSCAPING PLAN FOR TYPE AND SPACING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP. CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
.



   Crouse Tract Planned Development • Draft Terms and Conditions 
 

Statement of Planning Objectives: To build a community that has a creative 
design, providing a mix of residential uses in close proximity to one another, while 
at the same time providing an efficient use of open space that promotes an active 
lifestyle and a strong sense of community. Commercial development is also 
proposed to serve both the needs of the residents of this development and of the 
northern Camden community.  Land is also being set aside for government 
facilities, including land for schools, sheriff and fire stations, and satellite county 
administrative offices. 

 

a. The Phasing Plan attached to this terms and conditions document and incorporated 
herein by reference as Schedule A (attached) shall be adhered to except that the 
Developer may determine the sequence in which phases are developed. The 
Developer may provide an annual update of the Phasing Plan for the development. 

 
b. Development on the Property shall e i t he r  be connected to Camden County's 

permitted and approved central wastewater treatment and disposal system, or to a 
centralized wastewater treatment and disposal facility located on the 
Crouse Tract.  A 9-acre parcel has been set aside for this purpose, and is 
proposed to be conveyed to Camden County for public use.  The Property 
will also connect to the Camden water system.  

c. The density/intensity standards, dimensional standards and development standards 
for development of the Property shall be in accordance with the Master Plan and 
Schedule B (attached), subject to the degree of flexibility provided in these conditions. 

 

d. Community form and design for development of the Property shall conform 
generally to the typical renderings provided as part of the Master Plan. Variations 
may be provided and shall be permitted in colors, materials, and architectural 
detailing that are compatible with the design  concept. 

 

e. Transportation:    Two subdivision   entrances are proposed from US 17.  The northern 
entrance will involve a modification to the existing access; and a second access is 
proposed, subject to NCDOT review and approval.  A   Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) 
wi l l  be prepared for this development a t  t h e  p r e l i m i n a r y  p l a t  s t a g e  o f  
t h e  a p p r o v a l  p r o c e s s ,  a n d  r o a d w a y  i m p r o v e m e n t s  w i l l  b e  
d e s i g n e d  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e  T I A  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  as 
approved by NCDOT. Internal roads shall be designed in accordance with North 
Carolina Department of Transportation ("NCDOT") standards, including adhering with 
the “NC Complete Streets” standards to the greatest degree practicable, and shall be 

5.C.i

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

_(
2-

13
-2

4)
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

&
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 S
ch

ed
u

le
s 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



approved by NCDOT prior to construction. Roadways shall be laid out generally as 
shown on the Master Plan and in accordance with the typical sections shown on the 
Master Plan drawings. 

 

f. Potable Water: Water shall be supplied by Camden County via ex tens ion  o f  a  
wa te r l i ne  a long  US 17  tha t  w i l l  con nec t  with the existing water distribution 
system.   Individual lots and dwellings shall be metered. The Developer shall model 
the water system to demonstrate adequate 
water flow and pressure. 

 
g. Wastewater: A wastewater collection system will be constructed by the Developer 

and then dedicated to and managed by Camden County, or by a privately owned 
public utility if Camden County prefers not to own and operate the system. 

 
h. Stormwater: 

i. On-site stormwater will be managed by construction a series of stormwater 
management ponds that will be interconnected and will retain and slow-
release stormwater to existing drainage outlets both directly and indirectly. 

 
In addition to modeling and retaining stormwater to the UDO and Stormwater 
Manual standard for the 10-year developed condition and runoff, stormwater 
will be modeled for the 100- year storm event and property line berms 
constructed as necessary to manage the 100-year storm without adversely 
impacting neighboring properties. 
Stormwater will be conveyed to on-site retention ponds through a 
combination of curbs with inlets, stormwater pipes and open, vegetated 
swales. 
The Improvements set forth in this section shall be maintained by the 
Developer, or a management association created by the Developer. 

 

j. Perimeter compatibility shall be addressed as follows: 

 
i. Minimum 50-foot vegetated buffers shall be provided to existing residential 

development along areas adjacent to residential properties. 
ii. Commercial development is adjacent to US 17 and within existing property 

that was previously zoned Highway Commercial in anticipation of this type 
of development.  The commercial property is also located away from 
existing residential development. 

iii. Architectural Features: Building placement, design features, orientation 
and entryways will promote compatibility with adjacent properties. 

 

5.C.i

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

_(
2-

13
-2

4)
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

&
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 S
ch

ed
u

le
s 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



k. Environmental Protection and Monitoring: Wetlands subject to the jurisdiction of the US 
Army Corps of Engineers will be delineated and confirmed by the Corps of Engineers. The 
Association documents (Declaration) will include provisions that prohibit the filling of 
wetlands and prohibit the wholesale clearing of any woodlands other than incidental tree 
cutting and vegetation removal, and for stormwater management.  Traditional forest 
management practices will also be utilized in areas that are to remain wooded. 

 
 

A community association, either itself or via a management entity, will assume 
responsibility for ongoing operation and maintenance of all stormwater 
management facilities in accordance with the Camden County UDO requirements 
and all NCDEQ permit requirements. The association dues will be structured in a 
way that funds are provided for the upkeep of these facilities, as well as a 
contribution to off-site ditch maintenance as may be necessary to keep outfalls open 
and flowing. 

 
I. Developer general responsibilities: 

The developer is responsible to design and construct or install the 
required and proposed on site public utilities in compliance with applicable 
county, state and federal regulations. 

The developer shall dedicate to the public the right-of-way and easements 
necessary to construct or install the required and proposed on site public 
facilities in compliance with applicable county, state and federal regulations. 

 
NCDOT will be petitioned to assume ownership and maintenance of roadways as  
sections of the development are completed and built out. 
 
In addition to the 9-acre wastewater site outlined in paragraph b. above, the developer  
will convey to Camden County a site of approximately 5.7 acres for the construction of 
governmental facilities as needed, and a site of approximately 30 acres for the 
construction of a new school, in accordance with the proposed Development Agreement 
that has been offered to govern the development of the Property. 

 

5.C.i

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

_(
2-

13
-2

4)
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

&
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 S
ch

ed
u

le
s 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Schedule A

TENTATIVE PHASING SCHEDULE

PHASE AREA OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENT EST. RECORDING OTHER IMPROVEMENTS OTHER LAND

(AC) (AC) MF TH SFD INTENSITY (D.U./AC) YEAR DEDICATIONS

1 196.5 25 528 218 30 3.95 2026 Main entrance, Roundabout, Portion of Multi-use Path, 30 AC School  Site, 9 AC Wastewater Site, 

Mail Kiosk, Main drainage outlet, Clubhouse, Rec. Park  5.7 AC Government Site, 25 AC Shopping Center

2 127.5 33.3 - 124 216 2.67 2028 Clubhouse, Pedestrian Connectivity, Lakes

3 232.3 46.6 - 72 213 0.092 2031 Clubhouse and Rec. Park

4 452.8 525.3 - - 289 0.64 2033 Final Clubhouse and Rec. Area, Nature Trails, and Boardwalks

TOTAL 1009.1 357.2 528 414 748 1.67

* MF = Multi-family

TH = Townhouse

SFD = Single Family Detached

UNITS*

5.C.i

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

_(
2-

13
-2

4)
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

&
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 S
ch

ed
u

le
s 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Schedule B

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND SETBACKS

Commercial Single Family Lot Townhome Lot Apartments

Min Lot Size N/A 6500 SF 1,800 SF N/A

Typ. Lot Size N/A 7,000-40,000 1,800-2400 SF N/A

Min Lot Width N/A 50' 20' N/A

Typ. Lot Width N/A 60'-200' 20'-25' N/A

Front Setback 10'(parking)50'(Bldg.) 20' 15' N/A

Side Setback 10'(parking)0'(Internal) 5'-15' 0 N/A

Corner Side Setback 10'(parking) 15' 10' N/A

Max. Front Setback N/A 100' 40' N/A

Max. Height 35' 35' 35' 35'

Max. Bldg. Size N/A 4800 SF 15,000 SF 45,000 SF

Max. Lot Coverage 80% 60% 90% N/A

Max. Floor Area Ratio 0.4 N/A N/A 0.4

Min. Set-back to Adj.   

Residential Dev. 50' 50' 50' 50'

5.C.i

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 9

_(
2-

13
-2

4)
 D

ra
ft

 T
er

m
s 

&
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 S
ch

ed
u

le
s 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Ordinance No. 2024-06-02 

An Ordinance  

Amending the Camden County  

Zoning Map  

Camden County, North Carolina 

Article I: Purpose 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Zoning Map of Camden County, North 

Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on December 

20, 1993, and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended. 

Article II. Amendment to Zoning Map 

The Official Zoning Map of Camden County, North Carolina, which was adopted 

on December 20, 1993, and revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, is 

hereby amended as follows: 

The parcels of property currently shown in the Camden County Tax 

Assessor's Office as PIN 01.7082.00.26.3513 from Highway Commercial 

(HC) and Light Industrial (LI) to Planned Development (PD). 

Article III. Penalty 

1. Violations of the provision of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its 

Requirements, including violations of any conditions and safeguards established in 

connection with grants of variances or Special Use or Conditional Use Permits, 

shall constitute a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine of up to five-hundred ($500) 

dollars or a maximum thirty (30) days imprisonment as provided in G. S. 14-4. 

2. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to 

comply with any of its requirements, including violations of any conditions and 

5.C.j

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

C
ro

u
se

R
ez

o
n

in
g

_2
02

4-
06

-0
2 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



safeguards established in connection with the grants of variances or Special Use or 

Conditional Use Permits, shall also subject the offender to a civil penalty of one-

hundred ($100) dollars for each day the violation continues. If the offender fails to 

pay the penalty within ten (10) days after being cited for a violation, the penalty 

may be recovered by the county in a civil action in the nature of debt. A civil 

penalty may not be appealed to the Board of Adjustment if the offender was sent 

a final notice of violation in accordance with Article 151.568 and did not take an 

appeal to the Board of Adjustment within the prescribed time. 

3. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action. 

4. Each day that any violation continues after notification by the administrator that 

such violation exists shall be considered a separate offense for purposes of the 

penalties and remedies specified in this section. 

5. Any one, all or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be 

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

Article IV. Severability 

If any language in this Ordinance is found to be invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction or other entity having such legal authority, then only the specific language 

held to be invalid shall be affected and all other language shall be in full force and effect. 

  

5.C.j

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

C
ro

u
se

R
ez

o
n

in
g

_2
02

4-
06

-0
2 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Article V. Effective Date 

 

This Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

 

Adopted by the Board of Commissioners for the County of Camden this 3rd day of June, 

2024. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Ross B. Munro    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners Clerk to the Board of Commissioners  
 

5.C.j

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

C
ro

u
se

R
ez

o
n

in
g

_2
02

4-
06

-0
2 

 (
C

am
d

en
 Y

ar
d

s,
 L

L
C

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Old Business 

Item Number: 6.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

Administration 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   South Mills Water Association Purchase - Erin Burke 

Attachments: 

Summary: 

The Board will be updated on any available new information in regard to the status of the 

SMWA System Transfer and Purchase Agreement.   

6.A

Packet Pg. 156



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

New Business 

Item Number: 7.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

Taxes 

Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

Item Title   April 2024 Monthly Report 

Attachments: April20240528113527967 (PDF) 

Summary:  April Monthly Report 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

7.A

Packet Pg. 157



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
ri

l2
02

40
52

81
13

52
79

67
  (

T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 L

is
a 

A
n

d
er

so
n

)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

New Business 

Item Number: 7.B

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

Finance 

Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

Item Title  Resolution 2024-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various 

Boards and Commissions 

Attachments: Salaries and Compensation 2024-25 (DOC) 

Summary: A Resolution of the Camden County Board of Commissioners Salaries and 

Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions 

Recommendation: To approve the Resolution as presented. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 165



 

 

 
 

Resolution No. 2024-06-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SALARIES AND COMPENSATION  

FOR VARIOUS BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 

 

 
Whereas, the Camden County Board of Commissioners desires to provide reasonable compensation for 

service on various boards and commissions of the County; 

 

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Camden County Board of Commissioners meeting this 3rd day 

of June 2024 in Camden Village, Camden County, North Carolina does hereby amend the following 

salaries and compensation for the stated boards and commissions for the period beginning July 1, 2024 

and ending June 30, 2025, 

 

 

Section 1:  BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Chair $750.00 per month plus mileage. 

 

Vice-chair/  $725.00 per month plus mileage.  

Board Member  

  

1. The monthly “salary” of the Board members shall be considered as compensation 

for regularly scheduled meetings of the board per the annual Meeting Calendar. 

Same day attendance at meetings will not be eligible for reimbursement – i.e., a 

closed session in advance of a board meeting.  

 

2. Board members attending Special Meetings and Budget Work Sessions will be 

compensated at a rate of $75 per meeting. Board members will be compensated 

up to $75 for attendance at other board meetings to which they have been  

appointed and not already compensated for by those boards.    

 

3. For purposes of reimbursement, eligible meetings would include those in which 

the board members serve and participate by virtue of their position and/or in 

representation of their position as a board member and/or are an invited 

“participant” by staff or agency/department and may include Association Ad Hoc 

Committee meetings, Ground Breakings and Ribbon Cuttings or any meeting at 

the request of the Board of Commissioners in the Commissioner’s official 

capacity.   

 

4. The following are not reimbursable expenses:  Attendance to social occasions 

(banquets, meals (except as part of a participatory meeting), entertainment, 

sports, galas, fundraisers, clubs, etc.), or informal or telephonic conversations;  

alcoholic beverages, political contributions, tips greater than 18%, parking or 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

an
d

 C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

25
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



 

 

traffic violations / fines, entertainment expenses such as tickets to sporting events 

or theaters, and in room movies.  For any fundraisers the board decides to attend, 

the County will pay for the ticket if the Commissioners agree that the event 

benefits Camden County residents and serves a public purpose, However, they 

will not receive meeting pay for attendance. (Must be non-partisan and non-

profit.) 

 

5. Attendance at Board appointed Board Meetings (i.e. Library, DSS, ADJ) will not 

be reimbursable to Commissioners who are not appointed to those boards unless 

they are requested to attend by the appointee who is unable to attend or at the 

request of the Board of Commissioners in the Commissioner’s official capacity.  

 

6. Commissioners with a commitment of greater than four (4) hours for travel 

and/or meeting out of the county (90-mile radius of the Courthouse) shall be 

compensated at a rate of $150 a day.   

 

7. Board members are required to submit in writing a payment request in the form 

of an expense report (via internal form) to the Finance Officer not later than the 

last business day of each month. The report will contain all expenses including 

compensation along with a description of the meeting, date, time and place.  

 

8. Special meeting reimbursement requests that exceed seven (7) in a month will 

require Board approval. 

 

Section 2:  BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

Chair Compensation - $50 for meeting with Board. $50 per day for Election Day, 

canvass day, and instruction day plus mileage. 

 

Board Members Compensation - $40 per meeting with Board. $40 per day on Election Day and 

canvass day plus mileage. 

 

Chief Judge Compensation - $40 per day for instruction day and canvass day plus mileage.  

$150.00 per day for Election Day plus mileage.  $20 for pick-up day. 

 

Judges Compensation - $20 for instruction day.  Election Day at $120.00 per day. 

 

Assistants Compensation - $20 for instruction day. Election Day at $100.00 per day.   

 

Section 3: PLANNING BOARD AND ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS 

 Compensation - $50.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

Section 4:  SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

 

Chair   Compensation - $50.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

Board Members  Compensation - $40.00 per meeting plus mileage. 

 

Section 5:  AGING ADVISORY COUNCIL 

                                   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage and meal if required. 

 

Section 6:                       RECREATION BOARD 

   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

an
d

 C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

25
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



 

 

Section 7:                      JURY COMMISSION   

 Compensation - $ 100 per day for work to compile jury list. 

 

Section 8:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 

               Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 9:  SENIOR CENTER BOARD 

   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 10:  LIBRARY BOARD 

   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage. 

 

Section 11:   POTENTIALLY DANGEROUS DOG APPEALS BOARD 

   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage.  

 

Section 12:  AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY BOARD & FIRE COMMISSIONS 

   No Compensation 

 

Section 13:   ALL OTHER BOARDS AS APPOINTED BY THE BOARD OF   

  COMMISSIONERS 

   Compensation - $40.00 per meeting, plus mileage 

 

Section 14:  TRAVEL & MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 

All Boards and Commissions are subject to the approved Camden County Travel 

Policy. Mileage will be computed based on home of record and return.  Mileage 

will be reimbursed at the rate established by the Federal Mileage Reimbursement 

Rate for travel as allowed in IRS Publication 15 for all compensable meetings. 

Any volunteer or non-paid meetings will not qualify for travel or mileage 

reimbursement without Board of Commissioners approval. 

   

Adopted this the 3rd day of June 2024. 

 

                                                                         _________________________________________ 

                                                                         Ross Munro, Chair   

ATTEST:            Camden County Board of Commissioners 

 

      

Karen M. Davis, NCCCC 

Clerk to the Board of Commissioners   

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

an
d

 C
o

m
p

en
sa

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

25
  (

R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 2

02
4-

06
-0

1:
 S

al
ar

ie
s 

&
 C

o
m

p
en

sa
ti

o
n

 -
 E

ri
n

 B
u

rk
e)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Board Appointments 

Item Number: 8.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   ABC Board 

Attachments: 

Summary: 

It is the request of the North Carolina ABC Commission that Wayne Walston's current term be 

extended to October 2026 to realign board member terms to be suitably staggered per state 

statute. 

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

8.A

Packet Pg. 169



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes 

Attachments: bocminutes_050624 (DOCX) 

bocminutes_050724 (DOCX) 

bocminutes_051424 (DOCX) 

9.A

Packet Pg. 170



1 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Board of Equalization & Review 

May 6, 2024 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM  

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

Minutes 

A duly-noticed regular meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held at 7:00 PM on May 6, 

2024 in the boardroom of the Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.  A closed session was held at 6:00 

PM for consultation with the County Attorney in regard to potential litigation.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chair Ross Munro at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice Chair Troy Leary, 

Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Tiffney White.   

 

Administration Staff Present: County Manager Erin Burke, County Attorney John Morrison and Clerk to the Board 

Karen Davis.   

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to consult with the County Attorney in regard to potential litigation. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to approve the March 4, 2024 Closed Session minutes as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to come out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Chair Munro reconvened the Board of Commissioners at 7:00 PM for open session.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Tommy Berry gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

 

Motion to add Special Use Permit UDO 2009-05-19 to the agenda under New Business as Item 6.F.   

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Motion to add discussion of a potential development moratorium to the agenda under New Business as Item 

6.G. 

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 

MOVER: Sissy Aydlett 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

NAYS: Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



2 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 2. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

 

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3. PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Girl Scout Gold Award Recognition – The Board recognized Macayla Barry for her achievement in 

receiving the highest award in Girl Scouts, the Gold Award.   

 

ITEM 4. PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

County Manager Erin Burke read the Public Comment information statement.  Chair Munro opened the floor for 

public comment.  

 

Robert Nobles of South Mills spoke in opposition to the requested application for a zoning map amendment from 

Camden Yards LLC.  Mr. Nobles’ concerns included the proposed development’s effect on the school system. 

 

Keith Haric of Camden requested that code enforcement violations and submitted and approved permits be listed on 

the County web site.  In addition, Mr. Haric requested that signs be placed on properties that are in violation of the 

ordinance to bring awareness to and discourage violation. 

 

Derrill Wickens of South Mills expressed concerns and presented photographs in regard to the sand mine operation 

on Ponderosa Drive.  His concerns included contaminated materials in the roadway that have caused flat tires and 

excessive dust.  Mr. Wickens brought with him a bucket of metal that he had collected along the roadway, including 

rebar.  Mr. Wickens also spoke in opposition to the requested rezoning of what he referred to as the ‘Crouse tract’ 

due to a lack of available resources.  County Attorney Morrison advised the Board to return the photographs to Mr. 

Wickens as they may be presented as evidence in a potential future quasi-judicial hearing.   

 

John Morrison of Camden presented information on an upcoming 5K event (walk, run or cycle) in honor of his 

daughter, Mary, for the purpose of raising funds for cancer research at the Lineberger Comprehensive Cancer Center 

in Chapel Hill. This event, referred to as “Run With Mary – Make It A Fair Fight” will take place Saturday, May 11th 

at 10:00 AM in Elizabeth City.   

 

ITEM 5. OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. Director Salary Increase Request from DSS Board – Erin Burke 

 

During the hiring process of the new director, the DSS Board made additional commitments that don’t typically fall 

within the guidelines of the County’s personnel policy.  As such, and based upon the performance of the Director, 

the Department of Social Services Advisory Board has requested a salary increase as per the policy upon her one-

year employment anniversary.  Manager Burke is in support of the request, but added that in the future any potential 

employment offers by hiring boards will be submitted to the Human Resources Specialist for review prior to the 

negotiation of the offer.   

 

Upon inquiry by Commissioner White, Manager Burke explained that the Director was given a salary increase at six 

months and according to the employment offer agreed upon by the DSS Board, is due another increase on the one-

year anniversary.  She would then be placed in accordance with the County’s step and grade pay scale.   

 

Commissioner Krainiak confirmed that upon hire, the DSS Director was willing to accept a lesser salary until the 

DSS Board had opportunity to evaluate her performance.  The DSS Board committed to a performance review at the 

six-month and one-year marks for potential salary increases and Commissioner Krainiak confirmed that she should 

receive the increase based on her performance.  

  

At the April 1, 2024 meeting the Board voted to table this item to the May 6, 2024 meeting.   

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



3 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

Motion to approve the salary increase as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

ITEM 6. NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. New High School USDA Loan Package – Monica Thornton 

 

The loan package is available in its entirety in the County Finance Office and is herein incorporated by reference.    

 

   

  

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



4 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

Motion to adopt the Resolution accepting the conditions set forth in the Letter of Conditions dated May 6, 

2024, Loan Resolution and Security Agreement for the new High School USDA Loan Package. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

Chair Munro requested that the County Manager work in consultation with the School Superintendent to schedule a 

joint meeting between the Board of Commissioners and Board of Education.   

 

B. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 

 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



5 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



6 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal  

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

C. Camden County Wastewater Planning Proposal – Erin Burke  

 

  
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



7 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

  

  
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



8 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

  

  
 

Motion to proceed with the Timmons Group Preliminary Engineering Report Planning Proposal for 

wastewater expansion as presented.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

County Manager Burke added that this project will be funded with State grant funds.   

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



9 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

D. Proclamation in Recognition of Older Americans Month – Erin Burke 

 

 
 

Motion to adopt the Proclamation Recognizing May 2024 as Older Americans Month in Camden County. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

E. Proclamation in Recognition of World Elder Abuse Day – Erin Burke 

 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



10 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

Motion to adopt the Proclamation Recognizing June 15, 2024 as World Elder Abuse Awareness Day in 

Camden County. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

F. Special Use Permit UDO 2009-05-19 – Erin Burke 

 

Staff’s recommendation was to begin the process of revoking the Special Use Permit UDO 2009-05-19.  The UDO 

outlines the process, which includes filing application with the Planning Board for a recommendation and then to the 

Board of Commissioners as a quasi-judicial hearing.   

 

Motion to direct and authorize staff to begin the revocation process for Special Use Permit Ordinance 2009-

05-19 due to health, safety and welfare concerns. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

G. Development Moratorium – Erin Burke 

 

It is the request of staff that the Board of Commissioners be authorized to begin the process of implementing a 

development moratorium based on the availability of utilities in the county, in particular the availability of 

wastewater and water.  The process will include a recommendation from the Planning Board and then presentation 

of findings of fact to, and consideration by, the Board of Commissioners. 

 

Motion to direct and authorize staff to begin work on the necessary requirements and procedures to establish 

a development moratorium based on wastewater capacity concerns recently presented to the Board.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [4-1] 

MOVER: Ross Munro  

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

NAYS: Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 7. BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Tourism Development Authority – Reappointment of Dismal Swamp Park Supt. Adam Caver. 

B. America 250 NC Committee – Appointment of Library staff member Rachel Bryant 

 

Motion to approve the Board Appointments as presented. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett, Tiffney White 

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors       

 

Chair Munro recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



11 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tiffney White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak, Troy Leary, Sissy Aydlett 

 

New Business 

 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



12 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



13 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Motion to adjourn South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 8. CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – Herein incorporated by reference; available for public inspection in the County 

Clerk’s office and via the County website.   

• April 1, 2024 

• April 10, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



14 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

B. Budget Amendments 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



15 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

C. School Budget Amendments 

 

  

  

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



16 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



17 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

 
 

E. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



18 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 

 
 

 
 

G. 2024 Estimated Tax Values 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



19 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

H. Mid-Currituck Bridge Letter of Support 

 

 
 

I. Set Public Hearing for June 3, 2024 – FY 2024-2025 Budget 

 

J. Set Public Hearing for June 3, 2024 – FY 2024-2028 Capital Improvement Program 

 

K. Set Public Hearing for June 3, 2024 – Camden Yards LLC Zoning Map Amendment 

 

Camden Yards LLC has requested a map amendment for approximately 1010 acres from High Commercial and 

Light Highway Commercial (HC) and Light Industrial (LI) Zoning Districts to Planned Development (PD) Zoning 

District.  The 1010 acres is currently being used for Farmland and in the South Mills Township. 

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on October 23, 2023.  The Planning Board on April 17, 2024 voted 

unanimously, recommending denial of the Rezoning Application. 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which has the 

property identified as Light Industrial and Conservation. 

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2012 County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which has the property identified as Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation. 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.   

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Randy Krainiak  

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett 

 

ITEM 9. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Erin Burke included the following in her report: 
• South Mills Water Association Update – The County Attorney has received all the documentation that we 

can expect to receive.  Documents should be finalized soon. 

• Attended the following meetings: 

▪ High School Steering Committee Meeting 

▪ Jail Board 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



20 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

▪ Tourism Development Authority 

▪ America 250 Committee Meeting 

▪ Heritage Festival Meeting 

▪ EMS Board Meeting 

• Completed Community Survey – (The Board requested the survey be reopened to gather more responses.)   

• UNC School of Government Capital Budgeting for Local Elected Officials Webinar 

• Currituck Chamber of Commerce Reception with Senator Ted Budd 

• Budget Work Session One 

• Meeting with Currituck to discuss Veteran Services Officer Position 

• Camden County Farmland Preservation Meeting 

• Lobbyist discussion of legislative priorities 

• Senior Center Cookout 

• Dismal Swamp Canal Trail Extension Planning Meeting 

• Agenda & Meeting Management Software Kickoff Meeting 

• Board of Education Budget Review Meeting 

• Treasure Point Extension Office Community Meeting 

• Opioid Funds Planning Meeting  

 

ITEM 10. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

 

Commissioner Aydlett 

• Great time at Paddle for the Border 

 

Commissioner White 

• Recognition of Sarah Hill and Dismal Swamp Welcome Center Staff for Paddle for the Border 

 

Commissioner Krainiak 

• Registration for Paddle for the Border filled in 9 minutes, 385 boats 

 

ITEM 11. INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

 
 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



21 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

 
 

B. Library Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



22 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 6, 2024 

C. New High School Project Status Report 
 

  
 

ITEM 12. OTHER MATTERS          

 
None. 

 

ITEM 13. ADJOURN           

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair Munro adjourned the meeting at 8:05 PM.   
 

Board of Equalization & Review 

 

Chair Munro convened the Board of Equalization & Review. 

 

There were no cases to come before the Board of Equalization and Review.   

 

Motion to recess until June 3, 2024 at 7:00 PM or as soon thereafter as practical. 

 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Ross Munro, Troy Leary, Randy Krainiak, Tiffney White, Sissy Aydlett 

 

Chair Munro recessed the Board of Equalization & Review until June 3, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

9.A.a

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
06

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 7, 2024 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

FY 2024-2025 Budget Work Session 

May 7, 2024; 1:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a duly-noticed budget work session on May 7, 2024 at 1:00 PM 

in the Community Room of the Camden County Public Library. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Ross Munro at 1:00 PM.  Additional Board members present: Vice Chair 

Troy Leary, Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Tiffney White.  Staff Present: County Manager Erin 

Burke, Finance Officer Stephanie Jackson and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis. 

 

The following items were presented to the Board for information, discussion and direction:   

 

Budget Schedule 

• May 17th  Budget & CIP available to the BOC/Public 

• June 3rd   Public Hearing on FY 24/25 Budget 

Consideration of Budget Ordinance & Consideration of CIP 

• June 10th  Adoption of Budget Ordinance & Adoption of CIP if not approved June 3rd  

• June 17th  Special Meeting to adopt Budget if needed 

• June 24th  File copies of Adopted Budget with County Finance Officer & Clerk 

 

Presentations 

The Board of Commissioners met with the following to discuss matters relating to the FY 2024-2025  

Budget: 

A. College of the Albemarle – Dr. Jack Bagwell, President 

B. Camden County Schools –Sally Norfleet, Chief Finance Officer 

 

New Positions 

• Two fulltime Buildings & Grounds  

▪ One for Buildings & Grounds 

▪ One for Housekeeping 

• One shared Veteran Services Officer Position 

• One shared Horticulture Specialist for Extension 

Note: Two additional staff will be added with the South Mills Water Association acquisition  

 

New Vehicles 

• One JCPC Van 

• Two replacement vehicles & equipment for the Sheriff’s Office  

• EMS Supervisor vehicle(s) 

 

Insurance / Benefits / Personnel 

A. Insurance 

• Health Insurance Increase +6% 

• Property & Liability Increase +17% 

• Worker’s Compensation +13% 

B. Benefits 

• Employee Retirement +.75% 

• Law Enforcement Retirement +1% 

C. Personnel 

• Salary Study Adjustments & Sheriff’s Office Career Path Plan with adjustments 

• Longevity Pay 

• Christmas Bonuses 

• Personal Holiday 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
07

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



2 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 7, 2024 

Appropriations Discussion 

 

 

 

 

Capital Improvement Plan Proposal 

 

• Recommended / Funded 

▪ Administration Complex Phase II, modified 

▪ Broadband 

▪ High School 

▪ Treasure Point Building 

▪ EMS  

▪ South Mills Boat Ramp & Park Planning Phase 

▪ South Mills Wastewater Expansion & Disposal 

• Recommended / Unfunded  

▪ US 158 Sidewalk Extension 

▪ South Mills WWTP (High Rate Filtration Pond) 

• Identified / Unfunded 

▪ Public Beach 

▪ Dismal Swamp Trail Extension 

▪ Dismal Swamp Canal Boating Amenities  

▪ New South Mills Convenience Center & Transfer Station  

 

Review of Department Budgets 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair Munro adjourned the work session at 5:00 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Ross B. Munro, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

9.A.b

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
07

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



1 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

May 7, 2024 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

FY 2024-2025 Budget Work Session 

May 14, 2024; 6:00 PM 

Camden County Public Library 

 

MINUTES 

 

The Camden County Board of Commissioners held a duly-noticed budget work session on May 14, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

in the Community Room of the Camden County Public Library. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Ross Munro at 6:00 PM.  Additional Board members present: Vice Chair 

Troy Leary, Commissioners Randy Krainiak, Sissy Aydlett and Tiffney White.  Staff Present: County Manager Erin 

Burke and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis. 

 

The following items were presented to the Board for information, discussion and direction:   

 

Board of Education Budget 

• 2022 Funding Letter outlining Projected School Appropriations (3 years)  

• FY 23-24 Request 

▪ Operations - $3,279,276 

▪ Capital - $587,200 

• FY 23-24 Appropriation 

▪ Operations - $3,000,000 

▪ Capital - $587,200 

• FY 24-25 Request 

▪ Operations - $4,807,241 

▪ Capital - $857,100 

• Review with a 10% adjustment – Consensus of the Board to include the following appropriation in the 

proposed FY 2024-2025 Budget and that the Board will consider additional funding if positions included in 

the budget request are at risk of lay-offs.   

▪ Operations - $3,400,000 

▪ Capital - $631,000 

  

Final Budget Notes 

• Sheriff’s Office Vehicles – Approval by consensus of the Board. 

• Extension Office Van – Approval by consensus of the Board. 

• Mid-Year Adjustment for EMS – Approval by consensus of the Board. 

• SMWA Adjustment – Information only. 

• Removed High School Debt (June 2024 payoff) – Information only.   

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chair Munro adjourned the work session at 7:00 PM. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

            

Ross B. Munro, Chair    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

9.A.c

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

05
14

24
  (

B
O

C
 M

ee
ti

n
g

 M
in

u
te

s)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.B

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Stephanie Jackson, 

Finance 

Prepared by: Stephanie Jackson 

Item Title   Budget Amendments 

Attachments: 23-24 BA 038 Increase to Sheriff's K-9 Fund

(DOC) 

23-24 BA 039 JCPC Salary monies for Capital Outlay

(DOC) 

9.B

Packet Pg. 196



                                                       2023-24-BA038 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Revenues  

10360510-434898 Grant Revenues                                       $7,500 

   

Expenses  

105100-541000         K-9 Fund       7,500 

 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds received from the AKC Reunite 

Adopt a K-9 Cop  grant to increase the K-9 Fund expense line. 

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2024. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.a

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
38

 In
cr

ea
se

 t
o

 S
h

er
if

f's
 K

-9
 F

u
n

d
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



                                                       2023-24-BA039 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT 

 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the County of Camden, North Carolina 

that the following amendment be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Section 1.  To amend the General Fund as follows: 

 

                 AMOUNT   

ACCT NUMBER           DESCRIPTION OF ACCT            INCREASE     DECREASE 

     

Expenses  

106200-502000         Salaries                5,500.00 

106200-505000         FICA               420.75 

106200-507000         Retirement               710.05 

106200-507100         401 (k) Retirement             275.00 

106200-574000         Capital Outlay     6,905.80 

 

 

 

 

This Budget Amendment is made to appropriate funds that were not used from salaries 

and benefits to capital outlay.  

 

This will result in no change to the Contingency of the General Fund. 

 

Balance in Contingency  $40,000.00 

 

 

Section 2.  Copies of this budget amendment shall be furnished to the Clerk to the  

Governing Board and to the Budget Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction.  

Adopted this 3rd day of June, 2024. 

 

       

______________________________ _________________________________  

  

Clerk to Board of Commissioners    Chair, Board of Commissioners 

 

9.B.b

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

3-
24

 B
A

 0
39

 J
C

P
C

 S
al

ar
y 

m
o

n
ie

s 
fo

r 
C

ap
it

al
 O

u
tl

ay
  (

B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.C

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

Schools 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

9.C

Packet Pg. 199



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



9.C.a

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

S
ch

o
o

l B
u

d
g

et
 A

m
en

d
m

en
ts

)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.D

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

Taxes 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

9.D

Packet Pg. 219



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



9.D.a

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.E

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

Taxes 

Prepared by: Teri Smith 

Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

Attachments: Refunds Over $100 (PDF) 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 May, 2024 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.E

Packet Pg. 224



9.E.a

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

  (
R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.F

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

Taxes 

Prepared by: Teri Smith 

Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

Attachments: Vehicle Refunds Over $100 (PDF) 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 May, 2024 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

9.F

Packet Pg. 226



9.F.a

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

  (
V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.G

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Erin Burke, 

Administration 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Emergency Medical Services Agreement 

Attachments: Ermegency Medical Services Agreement FY 2024-

2025 (PDF) 

Summary: 

The purpose of this Agreement is to continue the contractual relationship between Camden 

County and Pasquotank County for Emergency Medical Services for one year, beginning on July 

1, 2024.   

Recommendation: 

Approval.  

9.G

Packet Pg. 228



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



9.G.a

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 E

rm
eg

en
cy

 M
ed

ic
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
F

Y
 2

02
4-

20
25

  (
E

m
er

g
en

cy
 M

ed
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

A
g

re
em

en
t)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.H

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

Administration 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Opioid Litigation 

Attachments: 

Summary: 

It is the request of the County Attorney that the commissioners authorize him to amend the 

pleading to name an additional defendant.   

Recommendation: 

Approval.   

9.H

Packet Pg. 240



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.I

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

Planning & Zoning 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment 

Attachments: AgendaSummary_CA2024_June3-Church

(DOCX) 

1_SawyerCreekRezoningStaffReportPH (DOCX) 

2_Application (PDF) 

3_Deed (PDF) 

4_NeighborhoodMeeting (PDF) 

5_Proposed_Plans (PDF) 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

9.I

Packet Pg. 241



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date: June 3, 2024 

 

Attachments:   New Paths Development LLC Zoning Map Amendment Staff Findings, 

Application, Deed, Neighborhood Meeting Summary, and Proposed Development 

Plan 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title: Application for Zoning Map Amendment for New Sawyer’s Creek Missionary      

Baptist Church 

 

Summary: 

 

New Paths Development LLC has requested Zoning Map Amendment for approximately 8.8 acres from 

Neighborhood Residential Zoning District to Highway Commercial Zoning District.  The parcel located 

at 312 Sleepy Hollow Road in the Courthouse Township is currently being used for a Religious 

Institution. 

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on April 8, 2024.  The Planning Board on May 15, 2024 voted 

unanimously 7-0, recommending approval of the Rezoning Application. 

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

has the property identified as Moderate Density Residential. 

 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2012 County’s Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Map which has the property identified as Rural Preservation. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for July 1, 2024. 

9.I.a

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
aS

u
m

m
ar

y_
C

A
20

24
_J

u
n

e3
-C

h
u

rc
h

  (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



` 

STAFF REPORT 

Ordinance 2024-07-01 

UDO 2024-03-110 

 Zoning Map Amendment  
 

 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

 

 

File Reference:  UDO 2024-03-110 

Project Name:  New Sawyers Creek Missionary 

Baptist Church Rezoning 

 

PIN:  02-8935-01-38-8518-0000 

 

Applicant: New Sawyers Creek Missionary Baptist 

Church  

Address:   312 Sleepy Hollow Rd, Camden NC 

 

Agent for Applicant:  New Paths Development 

LLC  

Address: 1400 Battle Ground Ave. Suite 118 

  Greensboro, NC 27408 

Phone:  336-207-7546 

Email:  john@newpaths.net 

 

Current Owner of Record:  New Sawyers Creek 

Missionary Baptist Church 

 

Meeting Dates: 

April 8, 2024 Neighborhood Meeting 

May 15, 2024 Planning Board Meeting 

 Application Received: 3/18/2024 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

D. Proposed Plan 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Request:  New Paths Development LLC is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment from Neighborhood 

Residential Zoning District to Highway Commercial Zoning District. 

 

Description:  The parcel at 312 Sleepy Hollow Road identified with pin number 02-8935-01-38-

8518.0000 of approximately 8.8 acres is located on the southeast corner of Sleepy Hollow Road and 

Blue Bill Way in the Courthouse Township. 

 

Rezoning from the following Zoning District of Neighborhood Residential 151.3.5.5:   

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

Rezoning to the following Zoning District of Highway Commercial Zoning District 151.3.6.5: 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, 

US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as 

large floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic. The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special 

use permit. New development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral 

vehicular and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-

connected transportation system. New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along 

the major roadway, or is fully screened from view. Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot 

lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and 

multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5 

Development Standards. 

 

SITE DATA 
 

Size of Lots:   Approximately 8.8 acres 

Flood Zone:   Shaded X and AE  

Zoning District(s):  Neighborhood Residential 

Existing Land Uses:  Religious Institution-New Sawyers Creek Church  

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Neighborhood 

Residential 

Neighborhood and 

Rural Residential 

Rural Residential Neighborhood 

Residential 

Use & size Woods & 

Farmland 

Residential Lots, 

Woods & Farmland 

Residential Lots, 

Wetlands & Farmland 

Residential Lots 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is to expand the accessory uses of Religious Institution. 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

  

Vicinity Map 

Existing Church Site 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Zoning Map 

Rural 
Residential 

Neighborhood 
Residential 

Suburban 
Residential 

Working Lands 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 246

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

Very High 

Land Suitability 

Moderate 

Low 

Very Low 

Moderate 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 247

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Not located in Watershed 

 

 AE Flood Zone 

Flood Zone 

 Shaded X 
Flood Zone 

X Flood Zone 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 248

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 

 Not located in Wetlands 
Not located in Watershed 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 249

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

  

Rural Preservation 

Residential 

1-2 Acres 

 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan 

Village Commercial 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

  

 CAMA Future Land Use Plan 

Low Density 

Residential 

Conservation 

Industrial 

Moderate 

Density 

Residential 

Commercial 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Adjacent to property on Sleepy Hollow Rd 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  South Camden Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning not impact Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning not impact Traffic. 
 

 
   

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS FOR THE BOARD TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  In the appropriate location highway commercial zoning district works well.  The proposed 

zoning will match the use. 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The proposed use is an accessory use for the established existing New Sawyers Creek 

Missionary Baptist Church. 

 

3.  Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plan? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  The County future land use plans have this property and surrounding properties as Rural 

Preservation and Moderate Density Residential.  Places of Worship are appropriate specific use in Rural 

Preservation.    

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning should not have a serious impact.  The proposed addition should assist with 

traffic circulation by providing more on-site parking for all church functions.  There should not be 

serious impact to any utilities. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning should not have an impact on county services. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will resultin lessening the enjoyment or 

use of adjacent properties?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning should not lessen the enjoyment or use of adjacent properties. 

  

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, 

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances. 

 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning is to allow an accessory use expansion with the Principle Use of Religious 

Institution. 

 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All areas including environmental concern will be addressed through required permitting 

process of North Carolina State and Camden County. (CAMA permit, NCDEQ Erosion & Sediment 

Control permit, NCDEQ Stormwater permit, County drainage plan, Etc.) 

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 
 

CAMA Land Use Plan: 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is consistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

property identified as Moderate Density Residential.  Places of Worship are appropriate in the core 

village within moderate density residential setting. 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the property as Rural 

Preservation.  Places of Worship are appropriate specific use in Rural Preservation.   

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

Property abuts Sleepy Hollow Road. 

 

Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

Recommendation: 

Planning Board recommends approval of the consistency statement in that the requested zoning map 

amendment is consistent with the Camden County Future Land Use Plans which identifies the property 

as Rural Preservation and Moderate Density Residential, which permits religious institution uses. 

 

Planning Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2024-07-01 Rezoning Application (UDO 2024-03-

110) for 312 Sleepy Hollow Road of New Sawyers Creek Missionary Baptist Church from 

Neighborhood Residential to Highway Commercial. 

9.I.b

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_S
aw

ye
rC

re
ek

R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

H
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Highway Commercial

New Sawyers Creek Missionary Baptist Church

9.I.c

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



9.I.c

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



9.I.d

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



9.I.d

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



9.I.d

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



New Sawyer’s Creek “Event Center” neighborhood community meeting 

Date: 04/08/2024 

Location: New Sawyers Creek Missionary Baptist Church Camden, North Carolina 

Address: 312 Sleepy Hollow Rd Camden, NC 27921 

 

Start time: 6:04pm 

 

1. Opening: John Lewis welcomed the community and the New Paths team introduced 

themselves 

2. Opening Prayer conducted by Pastor Gregory (Pastor of New Sawyers Creek) 

3. John is presenting from a PowerPoint presentation created by New Paths Development.  

a. He is talking about current zoning and proposed Highway Commercial Zoning  

b. He is talking about the rendering of what the event center could look like 

c. He is talking about possible amenities included in the Event Center  

d. He is talking about the location based on map/parcel  

e. He is talking about projected timeline of project  

i. Rezoning 4 months  

ii. Groundbreaking Fall ‘24 

iii. Grand Opening Spring 25’ 

 

Presentation concludes 6:15pm 

 

Q/A 

1. Will the event center be used as a revenue generator for the church? 

a. Yes 

2. Will the size of the building?  

3. Which way will the building face Sleepy Hollow or Blue Bill? 

4. How big is the parking lot? 

5. Concern about the size of the building and parking and concerned about space around 

Blue Bill 

6. Desire of New Path’s is to partner and have community and county participation 

7. What is the Square footage? 

8. Any idea of a secondary community meeting? 

a. 2 to 3 months once the rezoning is completed 

General Comments and feedback: 

1. Could we use the lot and space across from Sleepy Hollow?  

2. What could the “Commercial” space be used for downstairs? 

3. How will rezoning impact property value? 

a. It won’t hurt it… if anything it can help.  

b. More benefit than harm 

 

 

Community Meeting concluded at 6:34pm 

9.I.e

Packet Pg. 259

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Property Owner Address CityStZip

New Sawyers Creek Church 312 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD CAMDEN NC 27921

Harris Joint Revocable Trust 191 LAMBS RD CAMDEN NC 27921

Wanda and Joseph Forbes 244 SAWYERS CREEK RD CAMDEN NC 27921

April and Joshua Brown 296 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD CAMDEN NC 27921

Loren and Deanna Manns 294 SLEEPY HOLLOW RD CAMDEN NC 27921

Sicario Properties 111 BLUE BILL WAY MOYOCK NC 27958

Katarina and Bryan Landers 119 BLUE BILL WAY CAMDEN NC 27921

Daniel and Misty Rice 123 BLUE BILL WAY CAMDEN NC 27921

Vishal Mandal and Mobina 118 BLUE BILL WAY CAMDEN NC 27921

Michells and Andrew Ridgeway 126 BLUE BILL WAY CAMDEN NC 27921

Murky Waters 0 BLUE BILL WAY SHAWBORO NC 27973

Amber Curling P.O. Box 74 117 NC Hwy 343 CAMDEN NC 27921

9.I.e

Packet Pg. 260

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_N
ei

g
h

b
o

rh
o

o
d

M
ee

ti
n

g
  (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



Sawyers Pavilion
New Paths Development

Camden NC

Conceptual Plan & Elevation
12/1/2022

9.I.f

Packet Pg. 261

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_P
la

n
s 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consent Agenda 

Item Number: 9.J

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

Board of Commissioners 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title  Set Public Hearing - Consideration of Establishing a 

Moratorium 

Attachments: Moratorium Consideration Request PB 05-29-24

(DOCX) 

BOC Handouts_031924 (PDF) 

Supporting documentation and recommendation attached. 

9.J

Packet Pg. 262



 
 

 

BACKGROUND 
The Board of Commissioners received information from Chuck Jones, the Camden County Public 

Works Director at a work session on March 19, 2024 outlining current water and waste water usage and 

allocation to meet the needs of approved development. Following the presentation and discussion the 

Board, by consensus, agreed to “Research possible implementation of a 24-month moratorium to allow 

the County to procure funding and permitting and to ensure that County water and sewer facilities are 

adequate for impending growth.” 

 

At the May 6, 2024 Board of Commissioners meeting, the Board directed staff by a vote of 4-1 to begin 

the process of establishing a moratorium due to limited waste water treatment capacity. At the same 

meeting, the Board of Commissioners also approved a contract with Timmons Group for planning 

services for wastewater, particularly in the South Mills service area. This contract will outline the entire 

permitting, design, and construction process and provide an estimate of overall project cost and 

schedule. A breakdown of all permitting, design, construction, and owner responsible costs will be 

provided. This will be an estimate as not all steps and costs can be predicted. Initial steps toward the 

permitting and design for a new waste water treatment plant (WWTP) to serve the northern end of the 

County will take two to two and a half years.  

 

GENERAL STATUTE REQUIREMENTS 
NCGS§160D-107 outlines the law associated with Moratoria in North Carolina. It outlines local 

governmental authority to adopt moratoria, the hearing process required, the projects which are exempt 

from moratoria, required findings, limit of renewal and extension, and the judicial review proceedings 

should a moratorium be challenged. A copy of both the statute and the referenced hearing requirements 

are attached to this memo.  

 

FINDINGS 
In accordance with NCGS§160D-107(d) Required Statements, staff has identified the following 

findings: 

 

A statement of the problems or conditions necessitating the moratorium and what courses of action, 

alternative to a moratorium, were considered by the local government and why those alternative 

courses of action were not deemed adequate. 

According to a March 2024 review of current water & waste water usage and projected allocations for 

vested developments, the ability to provide adequate water & waste water services will be quickly 

outpaced by the construction of new residential properties. Given the condition of lands in Camden 

County according to the Albemarle Regional Health System, the use of traditional septic systems are 

difficult to permit. Additionally, septic systems have proven to be a health and safety concern when 

they are not maintained properly and fail. The use of central sewer protects the health, safety, and 

MEMORANDUM 

 
To:   Chair Bradshaw & Planning Board Members 

  

From:   Erin Burke, County Manager 

 

Date:  May 15, 2024 

 

RE:   Consideration of Establishing a Moratorium 

9.J.a

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

P
B

 0
5-

29
-2

4 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
E

st
ab

lis
h

in
g

 a
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



welfare of current and future residents. Additional production capacity at the water plant will be needed 

as well. Built in capacity can be created with the construction of clear well storage, but the water plant 

will need to increase production to keep up with future demands. The County is obligated to provide 

services to vested properties and needs time to construct adequate facilities before considering 

additional users.  

 

A statement of the development approvals subject to the moratorium and how a moratorium on those 

approvals will address the problems or conditions leading to imposition of the moratorium. 

Staff proposes stopping approvals on any new subdivisions and multifamily developments. These users 

have traditionally been the highest users of waste water in Camden County, and by pausing review and 

approval of these types of uses, the County will be able to build facilities to meet approved and future 

needs. Staff notes in accordance with NCGS§160D-107 (c) Exempt Projects, “Absent an imminent 

threat to public health or safety, a development moratorium adopted pursuant to this section does not 

apply to any project for which a valid building permit issued pursuant to G.S. 160D‑1108 is 

outstanding, to any project for which a special use permit application has been accepted as complete, to 

development set forth in a site‑specific vesting plan approved pursuant to G.S. 160D‑108.1, to 

development for which substantial expenditures have already been made in good‑faith reliance on a 

prior valid development approval, or to preliminary or final subdivision plats that have been accepted 

for review by the local government prior to the call for a hearing to adopt the moratorium. Any 

preliminary subdivision plat accepted for review by the local government prior to the call for a hearing, 

if subsequently approved, shall be allowed to proceed to final plat approval without being subject to the 

moratorium.” 

 

A date for termination of the moratorium and a statement setting forth why that duration is reasonably 

necessary to address the problems or conditions leading to imposition of the moratorium. 

Staff projects that the time period for addressing permitting and construction of a new WWTP will take 

approximately two to two and a half years. Construction of clear well storage will be a similar time 

frame, while water plant expansion would likely be longer. Staff would request the moratorium be 

effective for 30 months from the date of approval, noting that it could be rescinded earlier should 

conditions allow.  

 

A statement of the actions, and the schedule for those actions, proposed to be taken by the local 

government during the duration of the moratorium to address the problems or conditions leading to 

imposition of the moratorium. 

Camden County has invested substantial funding in preparing documents for the construction of a new 

WWTP. The plans were developed using Rural Ready grant funds, and are at 65% completion. The 

remainder of the engineering is contingent upon the location of a new plant and the method of disposal. 

The Board of Commissioners approved a contract at their May 6, 2024 meeting to outline the entire 

permitting, design, and construction process and provide an estimate of overall project cost and 

schedule. In the deliverables for this contract, the County will receive a breakdown of all permitting, 

design, construction, and owner responsible costs. This breakdown will be an estimate as not all steps 

and costs can be predicted. The County has identified the need for “South Mills Waste Water Expansion 

and Disposal (Plant)” in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for a number of years, and will in the 

2024-2029 CIP move it from the Unfunded to Funded category. At the March 19, 2024 meeting staff 

were instructed to begin the investigatory process for the construction of clear well storage at the water 

plant. This will need to include design, bid and construction and would likely take two to two and half 

years.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 
It is staff’s recommendation that the Planning Board recommend to the Board of Commissioners 

approval of a 30-month moratorium on new subdivisions and multifamily developments as a result of 

limited water production and waste water treatment capacity.  

9.J.a

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

P
B

 0
5-

29
-2

4 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
E

st
ab

lis
h

in
g

 a
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 

At the special meeting on May 22, 2024 the Planning Board voted 6-1 to recommend to the Board of 

Commissioners approval of a 30-month moratorium on new subdivisions and multifamily developments 

as a result of limited water production and waste water treatment capacity. 

 

Set Public Hearing for June 25, 2024 at 6:00 PM.   

 

9.J.a

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 R

eq
u

es
t 

P
B

 0
5-

29
-2

4 
 (

S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 C
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
E

st
ab

lis
h

in
g

 a
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 271

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 273

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 274

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 275

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 276

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 277

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 278

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 279

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



9.J.b

Packet Pg. 280

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

O
C

 H
an

d
o

u
ts

_0
31

92
4 

 (
S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 C

o
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

E
st

ab
lis

h
in

g
 a

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

Item Number: 12.A

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

Register of Deeds 

Prepared by: Karen Davis 

Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 281



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 282

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



12.A.a

Packet Pg. 283

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

)



Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

Item Number: 12.B

Meeting Date:  June 03, 2024

Submitted By: Rodney Wooten, 

Library 

Prepared by: Rodney Wooten 

Item Title   Library Report 05-24 

Attachments: 24-05 (DOCX) 

12.B

Packet Pg. 284



Camden County Public Library 

May 2024 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 1,614 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 3,712 

Cloud Library Check Out (eBooks & audiobooks)/ 
Libby - Overdrive 

                                             
174/181 

Computer/ Wireless Use 200/72 

Questions Answered 203 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 15/258 

Teen Program/Attendance 1/6 

Adult Programs/Attendance 4/25 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 2/40 

Study Room Usage/Attendance 34/46 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 1/12 

Days/Hours Open 24/190 

# Items in Collection 22,317 

Library Card Holders 2,869 

 

Comparison by Year 

2022-2024 

  
           

 

 

1,439

1917

1,614

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2022 May 2023 May 2024 May

Attendance

355

4,525

3,712

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

4,500

5,000

2022 May 2023 May 2024 May

Circulation

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 285

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

4-
05

  (
L

ib
ra

ry
 R

ep
o

rt
)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Boyce Porter - Geneva Baptist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Presentations
	A. Employee Recognition - Beverly Fonville
	Printout: Employee Recognition - Beverly Fonville


	4. Public Comments
	5. Public Hearings
	A. Proposed 2024-2025 Budget - Erin Burke
	Printout: Proposed 2024-2025 Budget - Erin Burke
	a. FY 2024-25 Budget MessageFINAL
	b. 24-25 BUDGET ORDINANCE
	c. Schedule of Fees 2024-2025
	d. 24-25 schedule of board adjustments

	B. Proposed Capital Improvement Program 2024-2029 - Erin Burke
	Printout: Proposed Capital Improvement Program 2024-2029 - Erin Burke
	a. 24-29 CIP

	C. Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	Printout: Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	a. 1_AgendaSummary_CrouseRezoningPH
	b. 2_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPH
	c. 3_Deed
	d. 4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting
	e. 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24
	f. 6_Development Agreement_Camden County Camden Yards LLC 4-30-24
	g. 7_FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 2-13-24
	h. 8_2-5-24_4790 Crouse MasterPlan
	i. 9_(2-13-24) Draft Terms & Conditions with Schedules
	j. OrdinanceCrouseRezoning_2024-06-02


	6. Old Business
	A. South Mills Water Association Purchase - Erin Burke
	Printout: South Mills Water Association Purchase - Erin Burke


	7. New Business
	A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	Printout: Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	a. April20240528113527967

	B. Resolution 2024-06-01: Salaries & Compensation - Erin Burke
	Printout: Resolution 2024-06-01: Salaries & Compensation - Erin Burke
	a. Salaries and Compensation 2024-25


	8. Board Appointments
	A. ABC Board
	Printout: ABC Board


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	9. Consent Agenda
	A. BOC Meeting Minutes
	Printout: BOC Meeting Minutes
	a. bocminutes_050624
	b. bocminutes_050724
	c. bocminutes_051424

	B. Budget Amendments
	Printout: Budget Amendments
	a. 23-24 BA 038 Increase to Sheriff's K-9 Fund
	b. 23-24 BA 039 JCPC Salary monies for Capital Outlay

	C. School Budget Amendments
	Printout: School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	D. Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	E. Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Refunds Over $100

	F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	a. Vehicle Refunds Over $100

	G. Emergency Medical Services Agreement
	Printout: Emergency Medical Services Agreement
	a. Ermegency Medical Services Agreement FY 2024-2025

	H. Opioid Litigation
	Printout: Opioid Litigation

	I. Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment
	a. AgendaSummary_CA2024_June3-Church
	b. 1_SawyerCreekRezoningStaffReportPH
	c. 2_Application
	d. 3_Deed
	e. 4_NeighborhoodMeeting
	f. 5_Proposed_Plans

	J. Set Public Hearing - Consideration of Establishing a Moratorium
	Printout: Set Public Hearing - Consideration of Establishing a Moratorium
	a. Moratorium Consideration Request PB 05-29-24
	b. BOC Handouts_031924


	10. County Manager's Report
	11. Commissioners' Reports
	12. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. Library Report
	Printout: Library Report
	a. 24-05


	13. Other Matters
	14. Adjourn
	Reconvene Board of Equalization & Review
	Adjourn Board of Equalization & Review

	Appendix
	3.A · Employee Recognition - Beverly Fonville
	5.A · Proposed 2024-2025 Budget - Erin Burke
	5.A.a · FY 2024-25 Budget MessageFINAL
	5.A.b · 24-25 BUDGET ORDINANCE
	5.A.c · Schedule of Fees 2024-2025
	5.A.d · 24-25 schedule of board adjustments

	5.C · Camden Yards, LLC Application for Zoning Map Amendment
	5.C.a · 1_AgendaSummary_CrouseRezoningPH
	5.C.b · 2_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPH
	5.C.c · 3_Deed
	5.C.d · 4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting
	5.C.e · 5_Crouse Tract Agreement Exhibits 4-30-24
	5.C.f · 6_Development Agreement_Camden County Camden Yards LLC 4-30-24
	5.C.g · 7_FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 2-13-24
	5.C.h · 8_2-5-24_4790 Crouse MasterPlan
	5.C.i · 9_(2-13-24) Draft Terms & Conditions with Schedules
	5.C.j · OrdinanceCrouseRezoning_2024-06-02

	6.A · South Mills Water Association Purchase - Erin Burke
	7.A · Tax Report - Lisa Anderson
	7.A.a · April20240528113527967

	7.B · Resolution 2024-06-01: Salaries & Compensation - Erin Burke
	7.B.a · Salaries and Compensation 2024-25

	8.A · ABC Board
	9.A · BOC Meeting Minutes
	9.A.a · bocminutes_050624
	9.A.b · bocminutes_050724
	9.A.c · bocminutes_051424

	9.B · Budget Amendments
	9.B.a · 23-24 BA 038 Increase to Sheriff's K-9 Fund
	9.B.b · 23-24 BA 039 JCPC Salary monies for Capital Outlay

	9.C · School Budget Amendments
	9.C.a · School Budget Amendments

	9.D · Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	9.D.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	9.E · Refunds Over $100.00
	9.E.a · Refunds Over $100

	9.F · Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00
	9.F.a · Vehicle Refunds Over $100

	9.G · Emergency Medical Services Agreement
	9.G.a · Ermegency Medical Services Agreement FY 2024-2025

	9.H · Opioid Litigation
	9.I · Set Public Hearing - Zoning Map Amendment
	9.I.a · AgendaSummary_CA2024_June3-Church
	9.I.b · 1_SawyerCreekRezoningStaffReportPH
	9.I.c · 2_Application
	9.I.d · 3_Deed
	9.I.e · 4_NeighborhoodMeeting
	9.I.f · 5_Proposed_Plans

	9.J · Set Public Hearing - Consideration of Establishing a Moratorium
	9.J.a · Moratorium Consideration Request PB 05-29-24
	9.J.b · BOC Handouts_031924

	12.A · Register of Deeds Report
	12.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	12.B · Library Report
	12.B.a · 24-05





